
           

Dan Bochsler, President
Kim Willmott, Vice-President
Charles Drane, Secretary/Treasurer
Firouz Haghighi, Director
Joseph Thompson, Director
Veer Patel, Director
Ernest Williams, Director

Christophe Trahan, EDC Director
Lisa Bowman, Admin. Assistant

Will James, Marketing Analyst
 

 NOTICE OF MEETING 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

January 14, 2025
10:00 A.M.

PEDC Office
100 Willow Creek Pkwy, Suite A

Palestine, TX

 

Zoom Link:
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89070354217?pwd=2m2NNsBSZEV1t3C1CGGcSjcDNoYWID.1

Meeting ID: 890 7035 4217
Passcode: 979240

---

One tap mobile
+13462487799,,89070354217#,,,,*979240# US 

Note: when you are joining a Zoom meeting by phone, you can use your phone’s dial pad to enter the commands *6 for toggling
mute/unmute and *9 to “raise your hand.” Learn more here.

Follow us live at: facebook.com/palestinetx/

           

A. CALL TO ORDER
 

  

B. PROPOSED CHANGES OF AGENDA ITEMS
 

  

C. PUBLIC COMMENTS
Any citizen wishing to speak during public comments regarding an item on or off the agenda
may do so during this section of the agenda. All comments must be no more than five
minutes in length. Any comments regarding items, not on the posted agenda may not be
discussed or responded to by the Commissioners. Members of the public may join via Zoom
or in person.
 

  

D. CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURES
 

  

E. ITEMS FROM BOARD
 

  

F. DIRECTOR'S REPORT
 

  

1. Review monthly Director's Report.
  

Strategic Plan Activity
Retail Sector Data
Workforce Data
ETEX Revenue Share Report
All Other Director Activities 

 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89070354217?pwd=2m2NNsBSZEV1t3C1CGGcSjcDNoYWID.1
http://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/201362663-Joining-a-meeting-by-phone
http://www.facebook.com/palestinetx/


 
2. Review monthly Marketing Analyst Report.

 
G. DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS

 
  

1. Presentations regarding Downtown Grant Applications & Perf. Agreements:

a.) Lilly Duncan 
b.) Seth Blood
c.) A. Hugh Summers
d.) Kevin Fuhr for Link Bratton Building, LLC. & Palestine Event Center, LLC.
 

2. Consider approval of the PEDC Minutes from December 10, 2024.
 

3. Consider approval of the December 2024 Financial Report.
 

4. Discussion and possible action regarding the Downtown Grant Perf. Agreement with Mabrico
Phil Johnson, sole proprietor d/b/a Dogwood Embroidery.
 

5. Discussion and possible action regarding the Downtown Grant Performance Agreement with
Thorough Food Company, LLC.
 

6. Consideration and possible action regarding an amendment of the Downtown Grant Perf.
Agreement for Palestine Community Theater, Inc.
 

7. Consideration and possible action regarding an Interlocal Agreement with the Texas State
Railroad Authority.
 

H. PUBLIC HEARINGS
 

  

1. Public Hearing to receive public comments regarding PEDC offering economic development
grants to incentivize community development.

a.) Open Public Hearing
b.) Receive Public Comments
c.) Close Public Hearing
 

  

2. Public Hearing to receive public comments regarding PEDC offering an economic
development grant to incentivize Palestine Mall Redevelopment, LLC.

a.) Open Public Hearing
b.) Receive Public Comments
c.) Close Public Hearing
 

  

I. CLOSED SESSION
The Board will go into Closed Session pursuant to Texas Government Code, Chapter 551,
Subchapter D.
 

  

1. Section 551.087 deliberation regarding Economic Development negotiations; to discuss or   



1. Section 551.087 deliberation regarding Economic Development negotiations; to discuss or
deliberate regarding commercial or financial information that the governmental body has
received from a business prospect that the governmental body seeks to have locate, stay, or
expand in or near the territory of the governmental body and with which the governmental
body is conducting economic development negotiation or to deliberate the offer of a financial
or other incentive to a business prospect described by Subdivision.

a.) Palestine Mall
b.) Texas Futura, LLC. 
c). Lilly Duncan
d.) Seth Blood
e.) A. Hugh Summers 
f.) Palestine Event Center, LLC & Link Bratton Building, LLC
 

  

J. RECONVENE IN REGULAR SESSION
 

  

K. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON CLOSED SESSION ITEMS
 

  

1. Discussion and possible action regarding a Downtown Grant Application and Perf. Agreement
with Lilly Duncan.
 

  

2. Discussion and possible action regarding Downtown Grant Applications and Perf.
Agreements with Seth Blood.
 

  

3. Discussion and possible action regarding Downtown Grant Applications and Perf.
Agreements with A. Hugh Summers.
 

  

4. Discussion and possible action regarding Downtown Grant Applications and Perf.
Agreements with Palestine Event Center, LLC. & Link Bratton Building, LLC.
 

  

L. ADJOURNMENT
 

  

I certify that the above Notice of Meeting was posted at the main entrance of the Palestine Economic
Development Corporation located at 100 Willow Creek Parkway, Suite A, Palestine, Texas, in compliance
with Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code on Friday, January 10, 2025, at 4:30 p.m.

Lisa Bowman, EDC Admin. Assistant  
 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA)
PERSONS IN NEED OF SPECIAL ACCOMMODATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS PROCEEDING
SHALL, CONTACT THE CITY SECRETARY'S OFFICE VIA EMAIL AT citysecretary@palestine-tx.org or
903-731-8414.

mailto:therrera@palestine-tx.org


Agenda Date: 01/14/2025
To: Palestine Economic Development Corporation
From: Lisa Bowman, Economic Development Admin
Agenda Item: Review monthly Director's Report.

SUMMARY:
Review monthly Director's Report. 

Strategic Plan Activity
Retail Sector Data
Workforce Data
ETEX Revenue Share Report
All Other Director Activities  

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Staff recommends the board review the monthly Director's Report.
 

Attachments
Director's Report 
ETEX Report 



Economic Development Activities- December/January 2024-2025 

Business Retention & Expansion 

➢ Coordinated meeting with community leaders to
discuss a potential expansion of the Sanderson
Farms processing facility on 12/16

➢ Conducted a BRE visit with Greenbrier Nursing
Home on 12/19.

New & Small Business Development 

➢ Met with Small Business Development Center
representatives to discuss feasibility of re-establishing a
revolving loan fund program in Palestine on 12/16.

➢ Met with and assisted a local entrepreneur with site
selection for a new business on 12/17.

➢ Met with Chronos Energy to discuss potential sites in
Palestine/Anderson County for site selection on 1/9.

Targeted Marketing & Attraction 

➢ Presented & secured TSRA approval of interlocal
agreement to develop Industrial Rail Park on 12/20.

➢ Completed drafting of Community Development Grant
Agreement for Tri-County Meals on Wheels to support the
expansion of their meeting/convention space.

Incentives/Infrastructure & Quality of Life 

➢ Secured city council approval of city incentives for the
Palestine Mall project on 12/18.

➢ Drafting & Negotiation of incentives for Palestine Mall
project.

➢ Contract drafting & administration of Downtown Capital
Improvement Grant Program.

14 



Strategic Plan – Activity Chart 

Strategic Plan 2024 - 2027 Palestine EDC

Project start date: 01-Oct-24

Legend: Completed Activities

New Activities

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep

2 2/1

1 2 1

2 2 1

2 1

1

1

1 1 1

1 1

1 2

2 2 2/3

2 2

2 1

4

2 1 2 2

1 2

1

4 5 5 4

Support the City of Palestine, Anderson County, and TxDOT to upgrade roads and streets

Update/expand local parks and recreational facilities

Extend utility infrastructure to WNW Loop

Support efforts to extend/widen airport runways and upgrade technology

Preserve and repurpose historic buildings

Promote and capitalize on federal Opportunity Zones located in Palestine and Anderson County

Create Promise scholarships for two- and four- year schools

Support tourists/visitors, special events, and festivals

Secure State of Texas certifications for tourism, film, music, and digital media

Organize local builders to provide affordable apartments/housing and new subdivisions/neighborhoods using local, state, and federal incentives

Support incentives to repurpose old, underutilized residential and commercial buildings in Palestine

Expand healthcare services

Work with NASA-Columbia to attract suppliers and vendors

Market Palestine as a retirement and military/veteran friendly community.

Determine feasibility of creating a FAME (Federation of Advanced Manufacturing Education) curriculum to support advanced manufacturing.

Support UT Tyler/Palestine and TVCC local and regional initiatives.

Expand/upgrade broadband infrastructure/technology

Create incentives to attract skilled workers.

Promote Palestine/Anderson County as an SBA HUB Zone

Design marketing materials that create a brand for Palestine as a business/education destination

Update website, community profile, available sites and buildings, workforce/education

Support the development of a large-scale conference/meeting space within the City of Palestine

Complete the development of the rail-served 333-acre Industrial Park

Assess the feasibility of an airport/NASA-Columbia business park/Education District

Design business retention and expansion contact program

Create Business Education Advisory Council and Workforce Advisory Board

Identify emerging high demand career pathways

Work with TVCC, UT Tyler, the SBDC, Greater Texas Capital Corporation, and SCORE to provide services to new and small businesses

Determine feasibility of creating a Revolving Loan Fund Program (RLF)

Create incubator/makerspace and co-workspace

2024 2025

GOALS



 

Economic Climate 

➢ Retail Sector - December 

 

 

➢ Retail Sector - January 

Net Payment     Net Payment

Current Year 2024/2025 Prior Year 2023/2024

Dec $697,694.93 $554,830.79

Fiscal YTD $2,118,575.38 $1,962,534.38

Dec $408,525.18 $365,231.78

Fiscal YTD $1,362,330.34 $989,812.23

Dec $882,246.43 $701,114.71

Fiscal YTD $2,623,062.60 $2,275,484.90

Dec $852,746.95 $756,001.71

Fiscal YTD $2,363,343.68 $2,285,120.14

Dec $401,370.14 $292,276.49

Fiscal YTD $1,287,515.03 $1,118,686.14

Dec $857,773.15 $830,426.72

Fiscal YTD $2,734,208.46 $2,576,588.07

Dec $726,655.80 $716,431.01

Fiscal YTD $1,993,707.38 $2,221,485.94

Dec $765,665.87 $623,854.40

Fiscal YTD $2,276,224.88 $2,146,157.06

* Note: All Net Payments represent collections conducted approx. 2 months prior

Local Sales & Use Tax Summary
Palestine, Anderson County & Index Cities

Fiscal Year Comparisons

1.4%

-11.4%

13.3%

11.3%

3.3%

27.2%

13.1%

3.2%

Net Change

10.6%

20.5%

7.4%

20.5%
Athens

* Source: Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts

Jacksonville

Kilgore
5.8%

Mount Pleasant

27.3%

Sulphur Springs
18.5%

Collection:

Anderson County

Palestine

Period

Henderson

5.7%



 

 

 

 

➢ Workforce Data 

Unemployment Rates in Anderson & Index Counties – November 2024: 

Anderson County – 3.9% Henderson County – 4.1% 

Net Payment     Net Payment

Current Year 2024/2025 Prior Year 2023/2024

Jan $672,718.49 $700,319.79

Fiscal YTD $2,791,293.87 $2,662,854.17

Jan $407,783.34 $325,765.78

Fiscal YTD $1,770,113.68 $1,315,578.01

Jan $786,891.06 $722,232.04

Fiscal YTD $3,409,953.66 $2,997,716.94

Jan $735,301.19 $817,217.79

Fiscal YTD $3,098,644.87 $3,102,337.93

Jan $430,641.61 $385,490.54

Fiscal YTD $1,718,156.64 $1,504,176.68

Jan $772,084.82 $737,203.13

Fiscal YTD $3,506,293.28 $3,313,791.20

Jan $630,740.57 $680,934.43

Fiscal YTD $2,624,447.95 $2,902,420.37

Jan $785,116.86 $772,963.13

Fiscal YTD $3,061,341.74 $2,919,120.19

* Note: All Net Payments represent collections conducted approx. 2 months prior

Local Sales & Use Tax Summary
Palestine, Anderson County & Index Cities

Fiscal Year Comparisons

-8.0%

-10.6%

12.1%

-11.1%

-0.1%

10.5%

12.5%

4.5%

Net Change

20.1%

-4.1%

4.6%

8.2%
Athens

* Source: Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts

Jacksonville

Kilgore
5.5%

Mount Pleasant

25.7%

Sulphur Springs
1.5%

Collection:

Anderson County

Palestine

Period

Henderson

4.6%



 

Cherokee County – 4.8% 

Gregg County – 5.0% 

State of Texas – 4.2% 

Rusk County – 4.6% 

Titus County – 4.4% 

Hopkins County – 3.3% 

 

 



 

 

Source: Texas Labor Market Information



 
 

ETEX/PEDC Broadband Initiative Revenue Share Report  

As of Q3 2024 

Initial investment payback period: 5 years 

Approximate investment payback period based on current revenues: 3.5 years 

 

 

Q3 2021 50,000.00$              Q3 2021 15,231.69$                  

Q4 2021 37,500.00$              Q4 2021 53,430.10$                  

Q1 2022 37,500.00$              Q1 2022 73,903.73$                  

Q2 2022 37,500.00$              Q2 2022 77,752.30$                  

Q3 2022 37,500.00$              Q3 2022 86,882.90$                  

Q4 2022 37,500.00$              Q4 2022 89,572.58$                  

Q1 2023 37,500.00$              Q1 2023 91,437.60$                  

Q2 2023 37,500.00$              Q2 2023 96,188.53$                  

Q3 2023 37,500.00$              Q3 2023 99,380.94$                  

Q4 2023 95,000.00$              Q4 2023 98,429.54$                  

Q1 2024 95,000.00$              Q1 2024 100,036.55$                

Q2 2024 95,000.00$              Q2 2024 98,782.77$                  

Q3 2024 95,001.00$              Q3 2024 102,400.42$                

PEDC Revenue Budget ETEX Quarterly Revenue Share



 
 

As a result of the revenue share agreement, PEDC receives revenue from clients serviced with the funded 

infrastructure located in the cities of Jacksonville and Palestine. The following are quarterly breakdowns 

of revenue share received by city. 

2021 

Q3 2021 

City July August September Location Totals 

JACKSONVILLE  $        161.42   $          89.98   $        242.94   $            494.34  

PALESTINE  $                 -     $     7,449.04   $     7,120.48   $      14,569.52  

 

Q4 2021 

City October November December Location Totals 

JACKSONVILLE  $        391.92   $                 -     $        519.89   $            911.81  

PALESTINE  $   18,160.22   $   16,922.67   $   17,436.28   $      52,519.17  

 

2022 

Q1 2022 

City January February March Location Totals 

JACKSONVILLE  $     1,119.36   $     1,571.28   $     1,098.20   $        3,788.84  

PALESTINE  $   23,074.41   $   21,242.20   $   25,398.28   $      69,714.89  

 

Q2 2022 

City April May June Location Totals 

JACKSONVILLE  $     1,340.40   $     1,225.68   $     1,225.18   $        3,791.25  

PALESTINE  $   24,058.96   $   24,418.52   $   25,483.58   $      73,961.05  

 

Q3 2022 

City July August September Location Totals 

JACKSONVILLE  $     1,370.81   $     1,324.15   $     1,324.15   $        4,019.11  

PALESTINE  $   26,410.62   $   28,280.68   $   28,172.50   $      82,863.80  

 

Q4 2022 

City October November December Location Totals 

JACKSONVILLE  $     1,324.15   $     1,324.15   $     1,324.15   $        3,972.45  

PALESTINE  $   28,387.26   $   28,354.90   $   28,857.97   $      85,600.13  

 



 
2023 

Q1 2023 

City January February March Location Totals 

JACKSONVILLE  $     1,324.15   $     1,361.65   $     1,324.15   $        4,009.95  

PALESTINE  $   28,879.02   $   29,209.09   $   29,339.54   $      87,427.65  

 

Q2 2023 

City April May June Location Share 

JACKSONVILLE  $     1,324.15   $     1,324.15   $     1,324.15   $        3,972.45  

PALESTINE  $   31,921.26   $   29,644.57   $   30,650.26   $      92,216.08  

 

Q3 2023 

City July Aug Sep Location Share 

JACKSONVILLE  $     1,324.15   $     1,324.15   $     1,324.15   $        3,972.45  

PALESTINE  $   31,705.69   $   30,906.12   $   32,796.69   $      95,408.50  

 

Q4 2023 

City October November December Location Share 

JACKSONVILLE  $     1,255.85   $     1,255.85   $     1,253.35   $        3,765.05  

PALESTINE  $   31,677.83   $   31,282.92   $   31,703.74   $      94,664.49  

 

2024 

Q1 2024 

City January February March Location Share 

JACKSONVILLE  $     1,205.85   $     1,205.85   $     1,205.85   $        3,617.55  

PALESTINE  $   31,776.19   $   32,352.14   $   32,290.66   $      96,418.99  

 

Q2 2024 

City April May June Location Share 

JACKSONVILLE  $     1,173.38   $     1,173.38   $     1,173.38   $        3,520.13  

PALESTINE  $   31,552.77   $   31,829.76   $   31,880.11   $      95,262.99  

 

Q3 2024 

City July August September Location Share 

JACKSONVILLE  $     1,173.38   $     1,173.38   $     1,092.89   $        3,439.65  

PALESTINE  $   32,923.83   $   32,613.57   $   33,423.37   $      98,960.77  

 



Agenda Date: 01/14/2025
To: Palestine Economic Development Corporation
From: Lisa Bowman, Economic Development Admin
Agenda Item: Review monthly Marketing Analyst Report.

SUMMARY:
Review monthly Marketing Analyst Report.
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Staff recommends the board review the monthly Marketing Analyst Report.
 

Attachments
Marketing Report 



Mktg Analyst Will James

Partnered with Multiview to
successfully go live with our targeted
advertising campaign, driving greater
visibility for our initiatives.

Organized and coordinated the
inaugural meeting for the Anderson
County Workforce Development
Council, scheduled for Thursday,
January 16th, to bring key
stakeholders together.

Collaborated with Golden Shovel
Agency to maximize the use of their
in-house tools, enabling the
elimination of an $8,500 expense for
an external demographic profile and
property listing service.

Teamed up with Viking to produce
high-quality video content
showcasing Christmas in Palestine.
The footage is currently in the editing
phase, with completion expected in
the coming weeks.

Marketing Activities - December 2024/January 2025



Mktg Analytics 

The website attracted 1,700 unique

users over the past 30 days.

The year-end news article emerged as

the second most visited page on the

site, following the homepage.

Dallas led as the top city for user

traffic.

Marketing Activities - December 2024/January 2025



Agenda Date: 01/14/2025
To: Palestine Economic Development Corporation
From: Lisa Bowman, Economic Development Admin
Agenda Item: Presentations regarding Downtown Grant Applications & Perf. Agreements.

SUMMARY:
Presentations regarding Downtown Grant Applications & Perf. Agreements:

a.) Lilly Duncan 
b.) Seth Blood
c.) A. Hugh Summers
d.) Kevin Fuhr for Link Bratton Building, LLC. & Palestine Event Center, LLC.
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Staff recommends the board accept the presentation regarding Downtown Grant Applications & Perf.
Agreements.
 

Attachments
Duncan Depot - Application 
Duncan Depot - Perf. Agreement 
Bloodlines - Application 1 
Bloodlines - Perf. Agreement 1 
Bloodlines - Application 2 
Bloodlines - Perf. Agreement 2 
H. Grant - Application 1 
H. Grant - Perf. Agreement 1 
H. Grant - Application 2 
H. Grant - Perf. Agreement 2 
K. Fuhr - Application 1 
K. Fuhr - Perf. Agreement 1 
K. Fuhr - Application 2 
K. Fuhr - Perf. Agreement 2 











































DOWNTOWN GRANT PERFORMANCE 

AGREEMENT 

 

This Downtown Grant Performance Agreement ("GRANT AGREEMENT") is executed 

by and between the Palestine Economic Development Corporation, a Texas Section 4B 

Economic Development Corporation ("PEDC"), whose address is 100 Willow Creek Pkwy. 

Suite A, Palestine, Texas 75801, and Lilly Duncan ("APPLICANT"), whose current address is 

1611 E US HWY 84, Palestine, Texas 75801. 
 

RECITALS 

 

WHEREAS, the PEDC is an Economic Development Corporation, organized under the Texas 

Development Corporation Act of 1979, Article 5190.6, Section 4B of Vernon's Texas Civil 

Statutes, now Section 501 et seq. of the Texas Local Government Code (the Act), and authorized 

by the City of Palestine, Texas (City); 

 

WHEREAS, the PEDC has adopted, and the City approved, a Downtown Grant Program 

("GRANT PROGRAM"); 

 

WHEREAS, the APPLICANT submitted its Application dated December 4, 2024 for a 

Downtown Grant ("APPLICATION"); and 

 

   WHEREAS, the APPLICANT plans to make real property capital investments of          

Twenty-Six Thousand Three Hundred Seven Dollars and Thirty-One Cents ($26,307.31) 

for the purpose of installing new LED lighting, restoring wooden frames and reglazing windows, 

exterior painting, and rebuilding an awning at the business property of Duncan Depot Antiques, 

that being 106 W Main St, Palestine, TX 75801 (“PROJECT”). PEDC has found that the 

proposed improvements of APPLICANT'S property will encourage economic development in the 

City and will add to the ad valorem tax rolls of the City and other local taxing entities, and the 

PEDC and City have approved a cash performance grant to APPLICANT that matches funds 

expended by APPLICANT not to exceed a grant of Nineteen Thousand Seven Hundred Thirty 

Dollars and Forty-Eight Cents ($19,730.48) ("GRANT"). 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of mutual covenants and agreements contained 

herein and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby 

acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 

 
1. APPLICANT’S OBLIGATIONS 

 

1.1. The GRANT PROGRAM, APPLICATION, and APPLICATION GRANT APPROVAL are 

incorporated herein by reference as if specifically set forth herein. 

 

1.2. APPLICANT accepts such grant subject to PEDC and City approval.  

 



1.3. APPLICANT recognizes that, pursuant to the terms and provisions of Texas law, this GRANT 

AGREEMENT will not be valid and binding on PEDC until it is approved by the City Council of 

the City of Palestine, Texas. 

 

1.4. APPLICANT will secure completion of the improvements in compliance within its 

APPLICATION, the GRANT APPLICATION APPROVAL, and the GRANT PROGRAM before 

October 27, 2025. 

 

1.5. APPLICANT will obtain all permits required by the CITY or otherwise required by other 

government authorities for the improvement project. 

 

1.6. PEDC, by its designated representative, shall have the right to inspect during the construction 

of the improvements and, following APPLICANT'S notice of completion, to evaluate 

APPLICANT'S compliance with the APPLICATION, the GRANT APPLICATION 

APPROVAL, and the GRANT PROGRAM. 

 

 

2. FUNDING 

 

2.1. APPLICANT will be provided with 50% of the total grant award upon execution of this 

GRANT AGREEMENT. 

 

2.2. APPLICANT shall provide PEDC with written notification of project completion by certified 

mail, return receipt requested, stating that all improvements have been completed in accordance 

with the APPLICATION and GRANT APPLICATION APPROVAL and GRANT PROGRAM, 

and that full payments have been made for all labor and materials with attached payment receipts 

for materials and labor, required permits, inspection reports, and project photographs. 

 

2.3. Upon PEDC'S receipt of APPLICANT'S notification of completion, an on-site inspection 

may be made by a representative or representatives of PEDC. Such inspection shall not be 

considered in any way as a reflection of PEDC'S approval on the quality, safety, or reliability of 

the improvements, such being the sole responsibility of APPLICANT. 

 

2.4. Following on-site inspection, PEDC will review the findings and may request additional 

information if needed and then either notify the APPLICANT of compliance or identify items of 

non-compliance. APPLICANT shall correct the items of non-compliance within thirty (30) days 

of notice thereof or this GRANT AGREEMENT shall be immediately cancelled and the 

APPLICANT shall immediately refund of all grant monies received to date, if any. 

 

2.5. Upon the PEDC board of directors making a finding of completion of the project, as per the 

terms of the APPLICATION, the GRANT APPLICATION APPROVAL and the GRANT 

AGREEMENT, payment of the remaining 50% of the total grant award will be made. 

 

3. REPRESENTATION AND WARRANTIES 

 

APPLICANT represents and warrants to PEDC that: 



 

3.1. APPLICANT has the power and authority, corporate or otherwise, to conduct its business 

and to perform all of its obligations under this GRANT AGREEMENT. 

 

3.2. APPLICANT'S execution, delivery, and performance of this GRANT AGREEMENT has 

been duly authorized by all necessary action, corporate or otherwise, and does not and will not 

violate any provision of any existing law, rule, regulation, contract, or lien by which 

APPLICANT or its property or assets is bound or affected. 

 

3.3. To the best of APPLICANT'S knowledge neither it, nor any division, branch, subsidiary, or 

related agency of the APPLICANT, is a party to any administrative or legal proceeding that is 

active or threatened against the APPLICANT or APPLICANT'S officers which may result in any 

material adverse change in APPLICANT'S business operations or assets which may be the 

subject of this GRANT AGREEMENT. 

 

3.4. APPLICANT represents and warrants that they are not engaged in business with Iran, Sudan, 

or a foreign terrorist organization, as prohibited by Section 2252.152 of the Government Code. 

 

3.5. Information, documentation, and other material in connection with the GRANT 

AGREEMENT may be subject to public disclosure pursuant to Chapter 552 of the Government 

Code (the “Public Information Act”). To the extent, if any, that any provision of the Agreement 

is in conflict with the Public Information Act, such provision shall be void and have no force or 

effect. 

 

In accordance with Section 2252.907 of the Government Code, APPLICANT is required to 

make any information created or exchanged with the PEDC pursuant to the GRANT 

AGREEMENT, regardless of contrary provisions contained herein, and not otherwise excepted 

from disclosure under the Public Information Act, available in a format that is accessible by the 

public at no additional charge to the PEDC. 

 

3.6. No Indemnification by the PEDC. APPLICANT and the PEDC expressly acknowledge that 

the PEDC’S authority to indemnify and hold harmless any third party is governed by Article XI, 

Section 7, of the Texas Constitution and any provision that purports to require indemnification 

by the PEDC is invalid. Nothing in this GRANT AGREEMENT requires that the PEDC incur 

debt, assess or collect funds, or create a sinking fund. 

 

3.7. APPLICANT is aware of the limitations imposed on this GRANT and the use of funds by 

law and acknowledges that the funds herein granted shall be utilized solely for purposes 

authorized under law and by the terms of this GRANT AGREEMENT. In the event that an audit 

determines that the financial incentives granted under this GRANT AGREEMENT were not used 

for proper purposes, APPLICANT agrees to reimburse PEDC for the sums of money spent for 

purposes not authorized by law or this GRANT AGREEMENT, with interest at the rate 

periodically announced by the Wall Street Journal as the prime or base commercial lending rate, 

or if the Wall Street Journal shall ever cease to exist or cease to announce a prime or base lending 

rate, then at the annual rate of interest from time to time announced by Citibank, N.A. (or by any 



other New York money center bank selected by the City) as its prime or base commercial lending 

rate. The payment of interest shall be from the date that the money was spent for purposes not 

authorized by law or this GRANT AGREEMENT.  

 

3.8. APPLICANT does not and will not knowingly employ an undocumented worker, as that 

term is defined by Tex. Gov't. Code Sec. 2264.001, directly or indirectly through a contractor or 

subcontractor. If, after receiving the funds herein granted, APPLICANT is convicted of a violation 

under 8 U.S.C. § 1324a(t), APPLICANT shall repay the amount of the grant paid by PEDC to 

APPLICANT with interest at the rate periodically announced by the Wall Street Journal as the 

prime or base commercial lending rate, or if the Wall Street Journal shall ever cease to exist or 

cease to announce a prime or base lending rate, then at the annual rate of interest from time to 

time announced by Citibank, N.A. (or by any other New York money center bank selected by the 

City) as its prime or base commercial lending rate. The payment of interest shall be, no later than 

120 days after the date that APPLICANT receives notification of such a violation.  

 

3.9. APPLICANT shall fully comply with all local, state and federal laws applicable or otherwise 

implicated by APPLICANT'S receipt of funds under this GRANT PROGRAM, which includes 

but is not limited to APPLICANT'S compliance with Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964, as 

amended, the Texas Labor Code, the Drug Free Workplace Act of 1988, and the Americans with 

Disabilities Act, as well as APPLICANT’S refraining from discrimination of persons based on 

race, color, religion, sex (including pregnancy, childbirth, and related medical conditions; sexual 

orientation), national origin, disability, age, citizenship status, genetic information, political 

affiliation or participation in civil rights activities. Furthermore, while the City of Palestine fully 

supports the exercise of freedom of speech, the City of Palestine will not financially support or 

fund projects that incorporate or promote ideas of hate or which are intended to vilify, humiliate, 

or incite hatred against a group or a class of persons on the basis of race, religion, skin color, sexual 

identity, gender identity, ethnicity, disability or national origin. 

 

3.10. APPLICANT will use all commercially reasonable efforts to continue operations in 

Palestine, Anderson County, Texas. 

 

3.11. APPLICANT shall timely pay all ad valorem taxes due and owed by it to the CITY and all 

other taxing authorities having jurisdiction over the APPLICANT'S property. APPLICANT shall 

also timely pay any and all water and sewer bills owed to the CITY. In addition, APPLICANT 

shall timely pay all employment, income, franchise, and other taxes owed by it to all local, state, 

and federal government entities. 

 

3.12. APPLICANT shall properly notify the Anderson County Appraisal District of all capital 

improvements, personal property, and equipment and shall list the City of Palestine as the taxable 

situs of all capital improvements, personal property, and equipment located on the property. 

 

3.13. If APPLICANT'S operations, past or present, cause the CITY or PEDC to be fined by any 

governmental entity, this AGREEMENT shall terminate immediately and the PEDC will have 

no further obligations under this GRANT AGREEMENT and APPLICANT shall immediately 

repay the CITY or PEDC for such fines, penalties, and expenses within thirty (30) days. 

 



3.14. If the business property, that being 106 W Main St., Palestine, Texas 75801, is sold, 

conveyed, or utilized for a purpose not originally intended by the GRANT APPLICATION 

within one year of grant funding being awarded to APPLICANT, APPLICANT shall be required 

to reimburse the PEDC immediately for the full amount of the grant. 

 

4. REMEDIES 

 

4.1. Upon default, the non-defaulting party shall have the right to seek any remedy available in 

law or equity including, termination of this GRANT AGREEMENT, recovery of GRANT funds, 

and pre-judgment and post-judgment interest at the rate provided by law or as otherwise provided 

by this GRANT AGREEMENT (whichever is greater). 

 

4.2 Attorney’s Fees. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, each party shall bear its 

own costs and attorney’s fees in connection with this Agreement, including any dispute relating 

thereto. 

5. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

 

5.1. All representations, warranties, covenants, and agreements, as well as rights and benefits for 

the parties to this GRANT AGREEMENT shall survive the payment of grant funds to 

APPLICANT. 

 

5.2. This GRANT AGREEMENT may not be assigned by APPLICANT without the prior written 

consent of PEDC. No such assignment shall relieve APPLICANT of any of its obligations under 

this GRANT AGREEMENT. 

 

5.3. The GRANT AGREEMENT may not be amended, modified, altered, or changed unless in 

writing, signed by both parties to this GRANT AGREEMENT and approved by the City of 

Palestine. 

 

5.4. APPLICANT SHALL INDEMNIFY AND HOLD THE PEDC, ITS EMPLOYEES, 

AND ITS AGENTS HARMLESS FOR ANY DAMAGES, BOTH PERSONAL AND 

PROPERTY, WHICH MAY RESULT DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY FROM ANY 

INCIDENT ASSOCIATED WITH PROJECT BOTH DURING AND AFTER 

CONSTRUCTION, AND THAT PEDC, ITS EMPLOYEES, AND ITS AGENTS SHALL 

NOT BE LIABLE FOR ANY DEBTS INCURRED IN ASSOCIATION WITH THE 

EXECUTION AND COMPLETION OF THE SUBJECT PROJECT OF THIS 

APPLICATION. 

 

PEDC, ITS EMPLOYEES, AND ITS AGENTS, DO NOT ATTEST TO THE QUALITY, 

SAFETY, OR CONSTRUCTION OF A PROJECT ELIGIBLE FOR, OR RECEIVING 

GRANT FUNDING. THEREFORE, PEDC, ITS EMPLOYEES AND AGENTS SHALL 

BE HELD HARMLESS BY THE APPLICANT FOR ANY PROJECT WHOSE 

APPLICATION HAS BEEN APPROVED OR HAS RECEIVED ACTUAL GRANT 

FUNDING. 

 



5.5.  Severability. In the event of any one or more words, phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs, 

sections, or other parts of this Agreement, or the application thereof to any person, firm, 

corporations, or circumstance, shall be held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or 

unconstitutional for any reason, then the application, invalidity, or unconstitutionality of such 

words, phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs, sections, or other parts of this Agreement shall 

be deemed to be independent of and severable from the remainder of this Agreement, and the 

application, validity, or constitutionality of the remaining parts of this Agreement shall not be 

affected thereby. 

 

5.6. This GRANT AGREEMENT shall be binding upon an inure to the benefit of the parties and 

their respective heirs, administrators, and assigns. 

 

5.7. No failure or delay on the part of the PEDC in exercising any right, power, or exercise 

hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any such 

right, power, or remedy preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other 

right, power or remedy hereunder. No notice to or demand on APPLICANT in any case shall 

entitle APPLICANT to any other or further notice or demand in similar or other circumstances. 

 

5.8. All notices, consents, requests, demands, and other communication hereunder shall be in 

writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given to the party hereto if mailed by certified mail, 

prepaid, to the APPLICANT'S address shown above as first written. 

 

5.9. Time is of the essence of this agreement. 

 
5.10. Neither party will be liable for delays or failure in its performance hereunder to the extent that 

such delay or failure is caused by acts of God, war, terrorism, or threats of terrorism, natural 

disaster, strike, lockout, labor dispute, work stoppage, fire, third-party criminal act, quarantine 

restriction, epidemic, pandemic, act of government, or other events outside of the reasonable 

control of a party (a “Force Majeure Event”); provided that the delayed party took reasonable 

precaution to prevent the impact of the Force Majeure Event. 

 

5.11. This GRANT AGREEMENT shall be deemed a contract made under the laws of the State of 

Texas and for all purposes shall be construed in accordance with the Laws of said State. The 

venue shall be in Anderson County, Texas. 

 

5.12. The providing of this GRANT AGREEMENT by PEDC to APPLICANT by any means of 

delivery constitutes an offer by PEDC to APPLICANT to accept this GRANT AGREEMENT 

on the terms and conditions contained therein, subject to approval by the City of Palestine City 

Council. If APPLICANT has not accepted the offer by ninety (90) days from the date approved 

by the City Council of the City of Palestine, Texas, the offer will lapse, and the offer and this 

GRANT AGREEMENT shall become null and void. 

 

6. TERM 

 

6.1. This GRANT AGREEMENT shall be effective on the date of the last signature below.  The 

GRANT AGREEMENT shall terminate one year from the date that the PEDC board of directors 



makes a finding of completion of the project pursuant to Section 2.5 of this GRANT 

AGREEMENT or earlier as otherwise terminated according to the provisions of this GRANT 

AGREEMENT. 

 

AGREED and SIGNED to be effective as of the Effective Date. 

 

 

 

 

For the Applicant(s): 

Duncan Depot Antiques 

 

 

 

By _________________________ Date ___________________ 

     Lilly Duncan, Owner 

 

 

For the PEDC:  

Palestine Economic Development Corporation 

 

 

By_________________________ Date ___________________ 

Dan Bochsler, Board President 

 

 

APPROVED:   

City of Palestine, Texas 

 

 

By _________________________ Date ___________________ 

Mitchell Jordan, Mayor 



























.. Exhibit "A'' 
Tract One; 
All tho�c cert.iin lots, tracts or parcels of land, situated in Anderson County, Tt'<JS, being Lots 3, 4 and 5, Block 51, 
Original Atltl1tion, to the City of PJlc�tinc, Teta�. in the Jacob Snively SurHy, A·63; being also known as the Texas 
Land Comp.111y Addition; according to the map or plJt thereof rccortkd in Volume A, Page 321 of the �lap R.:cords 
or Anul!rrnn County, Te·cts; alt(J hcing the same land described in Deed from �I.A. D.ivcy, Sr. to Dorothy Davey 
Colley d.1ted October 2�, 19-t9, rccordcd in Volume -HJ, Page 370 of the Deed Records of Anderson County, Te'tas, 
and the same l..1nd being ckscribcd in Deecl from Dorothy f'i. Colley,et al to Jod;1r;1, Inc. a Tel:1s Corporation, dated 
.Jul;, 21, 1978, rccflrdccl in Volume 880, Page 515 of the Deed Records of Anderson County, Telas. 

Tract Two: 
All th.II certJiu lot, trnct or parcel of 1:incJ, situatctl in And.:rson County, Tcl:ts, bcin� Lot l, Block 51, Original 
Additi,rn, to the City of Palestine, Tex.is, in the .facol> Snively Suney, A-63; l>cin� also known :1.s the Tc.tJS Land 
Company Addition; a�cording tn the map or pl.it thereof recorded in Vohtm� A, l'age 3! I of the I\IJp Records of 
.-\nckrson County, Tc'(:tS, and being the! same land d!!scribcd as in Trad One in Dcecl from \Villiam Pence to Jod.1ra, 
In�. d.itccl April 16, �001, recorded in Volume 1666, PJgc 5J5 of the Orlicial Public Records of Real Property of 
Anderson County, Te'(:tS. 

Tract Three: Ali t.l,.1t c:!�J::1 l,�; or ra: ;.!l of la .. ac 5:'.i:.:!.:�c i:-. A.nd<!r3on Cotmcy, Tc::os, 
cv:r..,.)nly r�fe:-:-!J u H 313 W:!s'. Ois: a::J J l i W:!.;: �-'.Jin. Pa!�st:::e, An.:b·:;on Cour-.t}, 
T<!:o.;, d-:sc:ibd a3 fol:o•.v5· 

A'.1 t..:�.:i: c:!:':.1::1 t:1.:t or f.'a:;::!� ofl�.i 31:·J'.l'.:!d in Ar:i.i-:!rs0r. Co 1..1:1t"f, T:!:u.;, ar .. d tei:::g Lot 2, 
i:1 B:0d: 5 l of th<:! Te:cl..i Lar.J Cor::p:1::1 A:ldi:ion to t!-.e Cit) of P .1;-:stin�, a patt of tr.e hcob 
Sai•;-!t: Si_;_r,-,:1, A.·63 in A::.:!:!rsor. Co,..:r.t'J, Te:<1s, cescdc<!j b1 r.-:<!t:!s a:::d bound3 as 
f.:>ll0 1.vs: 

BEG!::'-0['.'G :1: '.�-! S,:, 11::1-!:is: cJnc: of Loe t of s:ii:l.Bl-�ck51, si:j poir.t betr.g loca:-!d 25 
fre: E.:i.;t o:t:-:.! 1:--.t:!rs.!.:t: ;:-: c:·t:-i:! E2.s· \:::e c:- r.:JJi:1 ofQ•!ee:-: s,�eet, a:1d tr.e ;--;ort.'-1 c11::;;i:1 
o:' M.1ln S:r:!:!t; 

Tf-E:--:CE �:or:h \\!th t�:! E:is: lir.t.! of s;,i:J Lot �0. l an-:! t::.<! \\':!s: lir.:! of Lot 1'-,'0 2 of Bloc'.< 
5:, I )0 fr:t to th:! "r,; 0r!2.:!:l.it cor:1c� cf Loe t a.'id th� Nortl-:,v�st cor.1er of Lot 2, a: a i;oint i:1 
t.L:� S0t:th t:"lJ.rgin of Oak Scree!; 

Ti-E:}.;'CE S,)..;'.'.1 v.i�1 t!:c E.:ut l:::e of sa:J Loi 2 :i::-:! t.�e West lir.c of aid Lot 3, 100 f.!et to 
t!-'.c S0t:c..1-..'-' !::it cor.:cc of s.1:.:!. Lot 3 a.,d t!-:.e So..:.theJst comer of s.1id Lot 2 of Block 51, a: a 
�•)i�t ir. the �or+...1.i: margin of Ma:n S::e::t, 

Ti-1=.�CE We.;:,;,(::: the SJL:h Ii::-: of sa:.:! lot 2 a.-.11 ""ith the �:.;r-_'-: r..ar5l:1 o; �(a:n Str:!et 
::!5 b:t t.; t:.e �b�e of begir��,i:ig. a�-: bo;:(�g t.t..e s:1r:1-: l..1 .. :-:d di::s.;ribed ir. a Deed from \Vilha."':1 
F. M•.tQr.:, M Palestir.<! Broad.;:l..lt:r.; Corpor:i:ion of r:::-.:crc! i::: Voh.1:-!le 623, at Page 418 of
t:-. .! De-:d Re..:c,,�5 c: A..:1de:-s,m Cour.t), Te:-::is, ar.d ah.:- t:-.e s.L-:i.e l.i:-:d descrited a5 TrJ�t
Tw,J in a DI!;!.: :�:-::ir.. \v'illi1.71 H!nry Pe::c;! tv Jodx:i, Inc., d.1t<!J April 16, 200 t. of rt'.cord ir.
\."o'.U.'":'.:! 1666, P.1;-! 535 oft::e Offr:i1l Pu�Ec Recodsof Anderson County, Tt:u..:;,

Lisa Bowman
Highlight

Lisa Bowman
Highlight

Lisa Bowman
Highlight

Lisa Bowman
Highlight

Lisa Bowman
Highlight





From: Christophe Trahan
To: Lisa Bowman
Subject: Fw: Notification regarding 315 W Main St bid
Date: Wednesday, December 4, 2024 2:01:28 PM
Attachments: Outlook-Logo PEDC

Seth's bid declination.

Christophe Trahan
Palestine Economic Development Corporation
Executive Director
Office: 903-729-4100
Cell: 430-342-5262
Fax: 903-729-4500
 

 

From: Seth Blood <sethblood13@gmail.com>
Sent: Tuesday, December 3, 2024 11:53 AM
To: Christophe Trahan <edcdirector@palestine-tx.org>
Subject: Fwd: Notification regarding 315 W Main St bid
 

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Isaiah Adams <adamshomerenovationsllc@gmail.com>
Date: December 3, 2024 at 6:54:33 AM CST
To: sethblood13@gmail.com
Subject: Re: Notification regarding 315 W Main St bid

﻿

On Mon, Dec 2, 2024 at 3:24 PM Isaiah Adams
<adamshomerenovationsllc@gmail.com> wrote:

Dear Seth Blood

We are writing to inform you that, after reviewing the scope of work for the
roofing project at 315 W Main St Palestine, Tx 75801, Adams Home
Renovations, LLC will unfortunately be unable to submit a competitive bid for
this project. 

mailto:edcdirector@palestine-tx.org
mailto:edcadmin@palestine-tx.org
mailto:adamshomerenovationsllc@gmail.com

* ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT + o

PALESTINE
Nexas 1857





We appreciate the opportunity allowing us to be considered as a potential
partner in this project, but with the project scope and our current workload wait
time we cannot expect you to wait for availability. 

We take great value in every client and opportunity granted to serve our
community. We hope you will consider our business in the future for any
construction needs as our availability arises. 

Feel free to contact us if you have any questions or concerns. 

Best regards, 

Ronald Adams
Adams Home Renovations, LLC
(903)203-7458
708 Crockett Rd
Palestine, Tx 75801



DOWNTOWN GRANT PERFORMANCE 

AGREEMENT 

 

This Downtown Grant Performance Agreement ("GRANT AGREEMENT") is executed 

by and between the Palestine Economic Development Corporation, a Texas Section 4B 

Economic Development Corporation ("PEDC"), whose address is 100 Willow Creek Pkwy. 

Suite A, Palestine, Texas 75801, and Seth Blood ("APPLICANT"), whose current address is 200 

ACR 2312 Montalba, Texas 75853. 
 

RECITALS 

 

WHEREAS, the PEDC is an Economic Development Corporation, organized under the Texas 

Development Corporation Act of 1979, Article 5190.6, Section 4B of Vernon's Texas Civil 

Statutes, now Section 501 et seq. of the Texas Local Government Code (the Act), and authorized 

by the City of Palestine, Texas (City); 

 

WHEREAS, the PEDC has adopted, and the City approved, a Downtown Grant Program 

("GRANT PROGRAM"); 

 

WHEREAS, the APPLICANT submitted its Application dated January 7, 2025 for a 

Downtown Grant ("APPLICATION"); and 

 

   WHEREAS, the APPLICANT plans to make real property capital investments of          

Thirty-Six Thousand Two Hundred Fifty Dollars and No Cents ($36,250.00) for the purpose 

of a full roof replacement at the vacant property located at  314 W. Oak St, Palestine, TX 75801 

(“PROJECT”). PEDC has found that the proposed improvements of APPLICANT'S property will 

encourage economic development in the City and will add to the ad valorem tax rolls of the City 

and other local taxing entities, and the PEDC and City have approved a cash performance grant 

to APPLICANT that matches funds expended by APPLICANT not to exceed a grant of Twenty-

Seven Thousand One Hundred Eighty-Seven Dollars and Fifty Cents ($27,187.50) 

("GRANT"). 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of mutual covenants and agreements contained 

herein and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby 

acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 

 
1. APPLICANT’S OBLIGATIONS 

 

1.1. The GRANT PROGRAM, APPLICATION, and APPLICATION GRANT APPROVAL are 

incorporated herein by reference as if specifically set forth herein. 

 

1.2. APPLICANT accepts such grant subject to PEDC and City approval.  

 

1.3. APPLICANT recognizes that, pursuant to the terms and provisions of Texas law, this GRANT 

AGREEMENT will not be valid and binding on PEDC until it is approved by the City Council of 

the City of Palestine, Texas. 



 

1.4. APPLICANT will secure completion of the improvements in compliance within its 

APPLICATION, the GRANT APPLICATION APPROVAL, and the GRANT PROGRAM before 

October 27, 2025. 

 

1.5. APPLICANT will obtain all permits required by the CITY or otherwise required by other 

government authorities for the improvement project. 

 

1.6. PEDC, by its designated representative, shall have the right to inspect during the construction 

of the improvements and, following APPLICANT'S notice of completion, to evaluate 

APPLICANT'S compliance with the APPLICATION, the GRANT APPLICATION 

APPROVAL, and the GRANT PROGRAM. 

 

 

2. FUNDING 

 

2.1. APPLICANT will be provided with 50% of the total grant award upon execution of this 

GRANT AGREEMENT. 

 

2.2. APPLICANT shall provide PEDC with written notification of project completion by certified 

mail, return receipt requested, stating that all improvements have been completed in accordance 

with the APPLICATION and GRANT APPLICATION APPROVAL and GRANT PROGRAM, 

and that full payments have been made for all labor and materials with attached payment receipts 

for materials and labor, required permits, inspection reports, and project photographs. 

 

2.3. Upon PEDC'S receipt of APPLICANT'S notification of completion, an on-site inspection 

may be made by a representative or representatives of PEDC. Such inspection shall not be 

considered in any way as a reflection of PEDC'S approval on the quality, safety, or reliability of 

the improvements, such being the sole responsibility of APPLICANT. 

 

2.4. Following on-site inspection, PEDC will review the findings and may request additional 

information if needed and then either notify the APPLICANT of compliance or identify items of 

non-compliance. APPLICANT shall correct the items of non-compliance within thirty (30) days 

of notice thereof or this GRANT AGREEMENT shall be immediately cancelled and the 

APPLICANT shall immediately refund of all grant monies received to date, if any. 

 

2.5. Upon the PEDC board of directors making a finding of completion of the project, as per the 

terms of the APPLICATION, the GRANT APPLICATION APPROVAL and the GRANT 

AGREEMENT, payment of the remaining 50% of the total grant award will be made. 

 

 

3. REPRESENTATION AND WARRANTIES 

 

APPLICANT represents and warrants to PEDC that: 

 



3.1. APPLICANT has the power and authority, corporate or otherwise, to conduct its business 

and to perform all of its obligations under this GRANT AGREEMENT. 

 

3.2. APPLICANT'S execution, delivery, and performance of this GRANT AGREEMENT has 

been duly authorized by all necessary action, corporate or otherwise, and does not and will not 

violate any provision of any existing law, rule, regulation, contract, or lien by which 

APPLICANT or its property or assets is bound or affected. 

 

3.3. To the best of APPLICANT'S knowledge neither it, nor any division, branch, subsidiary, or 

related agency of the APPLICANT, is a party to any administrative or legal proceeding that is 

active or threatened against the APPLICANT or APPLICANT'S officers which may result in any 

material adverse change in APPLICANT'S business operations or assets which may be the 

subject of this GRANT AGREEMENT. 

 

3.4. APPLICANT represents and warrants that they are not engaged in business with Iran, Sudan, 

or a foreign terrorist organization, as prohibited by Section 2252.152 of the Government Code. 

 

3.5. Information, documentation, and other material in connection with the GRANT 

AGREEMENT may be subject to public disclosure pursuant to Chapter 552 of the Government 

Code (the “Public Information Act”). To the extent, if any, that any provision of the Agreement 

is in conflict with the Public Information Act, such provision shall be void and have no force or 

effect. 

 

In accordance with Section 2252.907 of the Government Code, APPLICANT is required to 

make any information created or exchanged with the PEDC pursuant to the GRANT 

AGREEMENT, regardless of contrary provisions contained herein, and not otherwise excepted 

from disclosure under the Public Information Act, available in a format that is accessible by the 

public at no additional charge to the PEDC. 

 

3.6. No Indemnification by the PEDC. APPLICANT and the PEDC expressly acknowledge that 

the PEDC’S authority to indemnify and hold harmless any third party is governed by Article XI, 

Section 7, of the Texas Constitution and any provision that purports to require indemnification 

by the PEDC is invalid. Nothing in this GRANT AGREEMENT requires that the PEDC incur 

debt, assess or collect funds, or create a sinking fund. 

 

3.7. APPLICANT is aware of the limitations imposed on this GRANT and the use of funds by 

law and acknowledges that the funds herein granted shall be utilized solely for purposes 

authorized under law and by the terms of this GRANT AGREEMENT. In the event that an audit 

determines that the financial incentives granted under this GRANT AGREEMENT were not used 

for proper purposes, APPLICANT agrees to reimburse PEDC for the sums of money spent for 

purposes not authorized by law or this GRANT AGREEMENT, with interest at the rate 

periodically announced by the Wall Street Journal as the prime or base commercial lending rate, 

or if the Wall Street Journal shall ever cease to exist or cease to announce a prime or base lending 

rate, then at the annual rate of interest from time to time announced by Citibank, N.A. (or by any 

other New York money center bank selected by the City) as its prime or base commercial lending 



rate. The payment of interest shall be from the date that the money was spent for purposes not 

authorized by law or this GRANT AGREEMENT.  

 

3.8. APPLICANT does not and will not knowingly employ an undocumented worker, as that 

term is defined by Tex. Gov't. Code Sec. 2264.001, directly or indirectly through a contractor or 

subcontractor. If, after receiving the funds herein granted, APPLICANT is convicted of a violation 

under 8 U.S.C. § 1324a(t), APPLICANT shall repay the amount of the grant paid by PEDC to 

APPLICANT with interest at the rate periodically announced by the Wall Street Journal as the 

prime or base commercial lending rate, or if the Wall Street Journal shall ever cease to exist or 

cease to announce a prime or base lending rate, then at the annual rate of interest from time to 

time announced by Citibank, N.A. (or by any other New York money center bank selected by the 

City) as its prime or base commercial lending rate. The payment of interest shall be, no later than 

120 days after the date that APPLICANT receives notification of such a violation.  

 

3.9. APPLICANT shall fully comply with all local, state and federal laws applicable or otherwise 

implicated by APPLICANT'S receipt of funds under this GRANT PROGRAM, which includes 

but is not limited to APPLICANT'S compliance with Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964, as 

amended, the Texas Labor Code, the Drug Free Workplace Act of 1988, and the Americans with 

Disabilities Act, as well as APPLICANT’S refraining from discrimination of persons based on 

race, color, religion, sex (including pregnancy, childbirth, and related medical conditions; sexual 

orientation), national origin, disability, age, citizenship status, genetic information, political 

affiliation or participation in civil rights activities. Furthermore, while the City of Palestine fully 

supports the exercise of freedom of speech, the City of Palestine will not financially support or 

fund projects that incorporate or promote ideas of hate or which are intended to vilify, humiliate, 

or incite hatred against a group or a class of persons on the basis of race, religion, skin color, sexual 

identity, gender identity, ethnicity, disability or national origin. 

 

3.10. APPLICANT will use all commercially reasonable efforts to continue operations in 

Palestine, Anderson County, Texas. 

 

3.11. APPLICANT shall timely pay all ad valorem taxes due and owed by it to the CITY and all 

other taxing authorities having jurisdiction over the APPLICANT'S property. APPLICANT shall 

also timely pay any and all water and sewer bills owed to the CITY. In addition, APPLICANT 

shall timely pay all employment, income, franchise, and other taxes owed by it to all local, state, 

and federal government entities. 

 

3.12. APPLICANT shall properly notify the Anderson County Appraisal District of all capital 

improvements, personal property, and equipment and shall list the City of Palestine as the taxable 

situs of all capital improvements, personal property, and equipment located on the property. 

 

3.13. If APPLICANT'S operations, past or present, cause the CITY or PEDC to be fined by any 

governmental entity, this AGREEMENT shall terminate immediately and the PEDC will have 

no further obligations under this GRANT AGREEMENT and APPLICANT shall immediately 

repay the CITY or PEDC for such fines, penalties, and expenses within thirty (30) days. 

 



3.14. If the business property, that being 314 W. Oak St., Palestine, Texas 75801, is sold, 

conveyed, or utilized for a purpose not originally intended by the GRANT APPLICATION 

within one year of grant funding being awarded to APPLICANT, APPLICANT shall be required 

to reimburse the PEDC immediately for the full amount of the grant. 

 

4. REMEDIES 

 

4.1. Upon default, the non-defaulting party shall have the right to seek any remedy available in 

law or equity including, termination of this GRANT AGREEMENT, recovery of GRANT funds, 

and pre-judgment and post-judgment interest at the rate provided by law or as otherwise provided 

by this GRANT AGREEMENT (whichever is greater). 

 

4.2 Attorney’s Fees. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, each party shall bear its 

own costs and attorney’s fees in connection with this Agreement, including any dispute relating 

thereto. 

5. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

 

5.1. All representations, warranties, covenants, and agreements, as well as rights and benefits for 

the parties to this GRANT AGREEMENT shall survive the payment of grant funds to 

APPLICANT. 

 

5.2. This GRANT AGREEMENT may not be assigned by APPLICANT without the prior written 

consent of PEDC. No such assignment shall relieve APPLICANT of any of its obligations under 

this GRANT AGREEMENT. 

 

5.3. The GRANT AGREEMENT may not be amended, modified, altered, or changed unless in 

writing, signed by both parties to this GRANT AGREEMENT and approved by the City of 

Palestine. 

 

5.4. APPLICANT SHALL INDEMNIFY AND HOLD THE PEDC, ITS EMPLOYEES, 

AND ITS AGENTS HARMLESS FOR ANY DAMAGES, BOTH PERSONAL AND 

PROPERTY, WHICH MAY RESULT DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY FROM ANY 

INCIDENT ASSOCIATED WITH PROJECT BOTH DURING AND AFTER 

CONSTRUCTION, AND THAT PEDC, ITS EMPLOYEES, AND ITS AGENTS SHALL 

NOT BE LIABLE FOR ANY DEBTS INCURRED IN ASSOCIATION WITH THE 

EXECUTION AND COMPLETION OF THE SUBJECT PROJECT OF THIS 

APPLICATION. 

 

PEDC, ITS EMPLOYEES, AND ITS AGENTS, DO NOT ATTEST TO THE QUALITY, 

SAFETY, OR CONSTRUCTION OF A PROJECT ELIGIBLE FOR, OR RECEIVING 

GRANT FUNDING. THEREFORE, PEDC, ITS EMPLOYEES AND AGENTS SHALL 

BE HELD HARMLESS BY THE APPLICANT FOR ANY PROJECT WHOSE 

APPLICATION HAS BEEN APPROVED OR HAS RECEIVED ACTUAL GRANT 

FUNDING. 

 



5.5.  Severability. In the event of any one or more words, phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs, 

sections, or other parts of this Agreement, or the application thereof to any person, firm, 

corporations, or circumstance, shall be held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or 

unconstitutional for any reason, then the application, invalidity, or unconstitutionality of such 

words, phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs, sections, or other parts of this Agreement shall 

be deemed to be independent of and severable from the remainder of this Agreement, and the 

application, validity, or constitutionality of the remaining parts of this Agreement shall not be 

affected thereby. 

 

5.6. This GRANT AGREEMENT shall be binding upon an inure to the benefit of the parties and 

their respective heirs, administrators, and assigns. 

 

5.7. No failure or delay on the part of the PEDC in exercising any right, power, or exercise 

hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any such 

right, power, or remedy preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other 

right, power or remedy hereunder. No notice to or demand on APPLICANT in any case shall 

entitle APPLICANT to any other or further notice or demand in similar or other circumstances. 

 

5.8. All notices, consents, requests, demands, and other communication hereunder shall be in 

writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given to the party hereto if mailed by certified mail, 

prepaid, to the APPLICANT'S address shown above as first written. 

 

5.9. Time is of the essence of this agreement. 

 
5.10. Neither party will be liable for delays or failure in its performance hereunder to the extent that 

such delay or failure is caused by acts of God, war, terrorism, or threats of terrorism, natural 

disaster, strike, lockout, labor dispute, work stoppage, fire, third-party criminal act, quarantine 

restriction, epidemic, pandemic, act of government, or other events outside of the reasonable 

control of a party (a “Force Majeure Event”); provided that the delayed party took reasonable 

precaution to prevent the impact of the Force Majeure Event. 

 

5.11. This GRANT AGREEMENT shall be deemed a contract made under the laws of the State of 

Texas and for all purposes shall be construed in accordance with the Laws of said State. The 

venue shall be in Anderson County, Texas. 

 

5.12. The providing of this GRANT AGREEMENT by PEDC to APPLICANT by any means of 

delivery constitutes an offer by PEDC to APPLICANT to accept this GRANT AGREEMENT 

on the terms and conditions contained therein, subject to approval by the City of Palestine City 

Council. If APPLICANT has not accepted the offer by ninety (90) days from the date approved 

by the City Council of the City of Palestine, Texas, the offer will lapse, and the offer and this 

GRANT AGREEMENT shall become null and void. 

 

6. TERM 

 

6.1. This GRANT AGREEMENT shall be effective on the date of the last signature below.  The 

GRANT AGREEMENT shall terminate one year from the date that the PEDC board of directors 



makes a finding of completion of the project pursuant to Section 2.5 of this GRANT 

AGREEMENT or earlier as otherwise terminated according to the provisions of this GRANT 

AGREEMENT. 

 

AGREED and SIGNED to be effective as of the Effective Date. 

 

 

 

 

For the Applicant(s): 

Seth Blood 

 

By _________________________ Date ___________________ 

     Seth Blood, Building Owner 

 

 

For the PEDC:  

Palestine Economic Development Corporation 

 

 

By_________________________ Date ___________________ 

Dan Bochsler, Board President 

 

 

APPROVED:   

City of Palestine, Texas 

 

 

By _________________________ Date ___________________ 

Mitchell Jordan, Mayor 



























.. Exhibit "A'' 
Tract One; 
All tho�c cert.iin lots, tracts or parcels of land, situated in Anderson County, Tt'<JS, being Lots 3, 4 and 5, Block 51, 
Original Atltl1tion, to the City of PJlc�tinc, Teta�. in the Jacob Snively SurHy, A·63; being also known as the Texas 
Land Comp.111y Addition; according to the map or plJt thereof rccortkd in Volume A, Page 321 of the �lap R.:cords 
or Anul!rrnn County, Te·cts; alt(J hcing the same land described in Deed from �I.A. D.ivcy, Sr. to Dorothy Davey 
Colley d.1ted October 2�, 19-t9, rccordcd in Volume -HJ, Page 370 of the Deed Records of Anderson County, Te'tas, 
and the same l..1nd being ckscribcd in Deecl from Dorothy f'i. Colley,et al to Jod;1r;1, Inc. a Tel:1s Corporation, dated 
.Jul;, 21, 1978, rccflrdccl in Volume 880, Page 515 of the Deed Records of Anderson County, Telas. 

Tract Two: 
All th.II certJiu lot, trnct or parcel of 1:incJ, situatctl in And.:rson County, Tcl:ts, bcin� Lot l, Block 51, Original 
Additi,rn, to the City of Palestine, Tex.is, in the .facol> Snively Suney, A-63; l>cin� also known :1.s the Tc.tJS Land 
Company Addition; a�cording tn the map or pl.it thereof recorded in Vohtm� A, l'age 3! I of the I\IJp Records of 
.-\nckrson County, Tc'(:tS, and being the! same land d!!scribcd as in Trad One in Dcecl from \Villiam Pence to Jod.1ra, 
In�. d.itccl April 16, �001, recorded in Volume 1666, PJgc 5J5 of the Orlicial Public Records of Real Property of 
Anderson County, Te'(:tS. 

Tract Three: Ali t.l,.1t c:!�J::1 l,�; or ra: ;.!l of la .. ac 5:'.i:.:!.:�c i:-. A.nd<!r3on Cotmcy, Tc::os, 
cv:r..,.)nly r�fe:-:-!J u H 313 W:!s'. Ois: a::J J l i W:!.;: �-'.Jin. Pa!�st:::e, An.:b·:;on Cour-.t}, 
T<!:o.;, d-:sc:ibd a3 fol:o•.v5· 

A'.1 t..:�.:i: c:!:':.1::1 t:1.:t or f.'a:;::!� ofl�.i 31:·J'.l'.:!d in Ar:i.i-:!rs0r. Co 1..1:1t"f, T:!:u.;, ar .. d tei:::g Lot 2, 
i:1 B:0d: 5 l of th<:! Te:cl..i Lar.J Cor::p:1::1 A:ldi:ion to t!-.e Cit) of P .1;-:stin�, a patt of tr.e hcob 
Sai•;-!t: Si_;_r,-,:1, A.·63 in A::.:!:!rsor. Co,..:r.t'J, Te:<1s, cescdc<!j b1 r.-:<!t:!s a:::d bound3 as 
f.:>ll0 1.vs: 

BEG!::'-0['.'G :1: '.�-! S,:, 11::1-!:is: cJnc: of Loe t of s:ii:l.Bl-�ck51, si:j poir.t betr.g loca:-!d 25 
fre: E.:i.;t o:t:-:.! 1:--.t:!rs.!.:t: ;:-: c:·t:-i:! E2.s· \:::e c:- r.:JJi:1 ofQ•!ee:-: s,�eet, a:1d tr.e ;--;ort.'-1 c11::;;i:1 
o:' M.1ln S:r:!:!t; 

Tf-E:--:CE �:or:h \\!th t�:! E:is: lir.t.! of s;,i:J Lot �0. l an-:! t::.<! \\':!s: lir.:! of Lot 1'-,'0 2 of Bloc'.< 
5:, I )0 fr:t to th:! "r,; 0r!2.:!:l.it cor:1c� cf Loe t a.'id th� Nortl-:,v�st cor.1er of Lot 2, a: a i;oint i:1 
t.L:� S0t:th t:"lJ.rgin of Oak Scree!; 

Ti-E:}.;'CE S,)..;'.'.1 v.i�1 t!:c E.:ut l:::e of sa:J Loi 2 :i::-:! t.�e West lir.c of aid Lot 3, 100 f.!et to 
t!-'.c S0t:c..1-..'-' !::it cor.:cc of s.1:.:!. Lot 3 a.,d t!-:.e So..:.theJst comer of s.1id Lot 2 of Block 51, a: a 
�•)i�t ir. the �or+...1.i: margin of Ma:n S::e::t, 

Ti-1=.�CE We.;:,;,(::: the SJL:h Ii::-: of sa:.:! lot 2 a.-.11 ""ith the �:.;r-_'-: r..ar5l:1 o; �(a:n Str:!et 
::!5 b:t t.; t:.e �b�e of begir��,i:ig. a�-: bo;:(�g t.t..e s:1r:1-: l..1 .. :-:d di::s.;ribed ir. a Deed from \Vilha."':1 
F. M•.tQr.:, M Palestir.<! Broad.;:l..lt:r.; Corpor:i:ion of r:::-.:crc! i::: Voh.1:-!le 623, at Page 418 of
t:-. .! De-:d Re..:c,,�5 c: A..:1de:-s,m Cour.t), Te:-::is, ar.d ah.:- t:-.e s.L-:i.e l.i:-:d descrited a5 TrJ�t
Tw,J in a DI!;!.: :�:-::ir.. \v'illi1.71 H!nry Pe::c;! tv Jodx:i, Inc., d.1t<!J April 16, 200 t. of rt'.cord ir.
\."o'.U.'":'.:! 1666, P.1;-! 535 oft::e Offr:i1l Pu�Ec Recodsof Anderson County, Tt:u..:;,

Lisa Bowman
Highlight

Lisa Bowman
Highlight

Lisa Bowman
Highlight

Lisa Bowman
Highlight

Lisa Bowman
Highlight





From: Christophe Trahan
To: Lisa Bowman
Subject: Fw: Notification regarding 315 W Main St bid
Date: Wednesday, December 4, 2024 2:01:28 PM
Attachments: Outlook-Logo PEDC

Seth's bid declination.

Christophe Trahan
Palestine Economic Development Corporation
Executive Director
Office: 903-729-4100
Cell: 430-342-5262
Fax: 903-729-4500
 

 

From: Seth Blood <sethblood13@gmail.com>
Sent: Tuesday, December 3, 2024 11:53 AM
To: Christophe Trahan <edcdirector@palestine-tx.org>
Subject: Fwd: Notification regarding 315 W Main St bid
 

Sent from my iPhone

Begin forwarded message:

From: Isaiah Adams <adamshomerenovationsllc@gmail.com>
Date: December 3, 2024 at 6:54:33 AM CST
To: sethblood13@gmail.com
Subject: Re: Notification regarding 315 W Main St bid

﻿

On Mon, Dec 2, 2024 at 3:24 PM Isaiah Adams
<adamshomerenovationsllc@gmail.com> wrote:

Dear Seth Blood

We are writing to inform you that, after reviewing the scope of work for the
roofing project at 315 W Main St Palestine, Tx 75801, Adams Home
Renovations, LLC will unfortunately be unable to submit a competitive bid for
this project. 

mailto:edcdirector@palestine-tx.org
mailto:edcadmin@palestine-tx.org
mailto:adamshomerenovationsllc@gmail.com

* ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT + o

PALESTINE
Nexas 1857





We appreciate the opportunity allowing us to be considered as a potential
partner in this project, but with the project scope and our current workload wait
time we cannot expect you to wait for availability. 

We take great value in every client and opportunity granted to serve our
community. We hope you will consider our business in the future for any
construction needs as our availability arises. 

Feel free to contact us if you have any questions or concerns. 

Best regards, 

Ronald Adams
Adams Home Renovations, LLC
(903)203-7458
708 Crockett Rd
Palestine, Tx 75801



DOWNTOWN GRANT PERFORMANCE 

AGREEMENT 

 

This Downtown Grant Performance Agreement ("GRANT AGREEMENT") is executed 

by and between the Palestine Economic Development Corporation, a Texas Section 4B 

Economic Development Corporation ("PEDC"), whose address is 100 Willow Creek Pkwy. 

Suite A, Palestine, Texas 75801, and Seth Blood ("APPLICANT"), whose current address is 200 

ACR 2312 Montalba, Texas 75853. 
 

RECITALS 

 

WHEREAS, the PEDC is an Economic Development Corporation, organized under the Texas 

Development Corporation Act of 1979, Article 5190.6, Section 4B of Vernon's Texas Civil 

Statutes, now Section 501 et seq. of the Texas Local Government Code (the Act), and authorized 

by the City of Palestine, Texas (City); 

 

WHEREAS, the PEDC has adopted, and the City approved, a Downtown Grant Program 

("GRANT PROGRAM"); 

 

WHEREAS, the APPLICANT submitted its Application dated January 7, 2025 for a 

Downtown Grant ("APPLICATION"); and 

 

   WHEREAS, the APPLICANT plans to make real property capital investments of          

Thirty-Six Thousand Two Hundred Fifty Dollars and No Cents ($36,250.00) for the purpose 

of a full roof replacement at the vacant property located at 316 W. Oak St, Palestine, TX 75801 

(“PROJECT”). PEDC has found that the proposed improvements of APPLICANT'S property will 

encourage economic development in the City and will add to the ad valorem tax rolls of the City 

and other local taxing entities, and the PEDC and City have approved a cash performance grant 

to APPLICANT that matches funds expended by APPLICANT not to exceed a grant of Twenty-

Seven Thousand One Hundred Eighty-Seven Dollars and Fifty Cents ($27,187.50) 

("GRANT"). 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of mutual covenants and agreements contained 

herein and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby 

acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 

 
1. APPLICANT’S OBLIGATIONS 

 

1.1. The GRANT PROGRAM, APPLICATION, and APPLICATION GRANT APPROVAL are 

incorporated herein by reference as if specifically set forth herein. 

 

1.2. APPLICANT accepts such grant subject to PEDC and City approval.  

 

1.3. APPLICANT recognizes that, pursuant to the terms and provisions of Texas law, this GRANT 

AGREEMENT will not be valid and binding on PEDC until it is approved by the City Council of 

the City of Palestine, Texas. 



 

1.4. APPLICANT will secure completion of the improvements in compliance within its 

APPLICATION, the GRANT APPLICATION APPROVAL, and the GRANT PROGRAM before 

October 27, 2025. 

 

1.5. APPLICANT will obtain all permits required by the CITY or otherwise required by other 

government authorities for the improvement project. 

 

1.6. PEDC, by its designated representative, shall have the right to inspect during the construction 

of the improvements and, following APPLICANT'S notice of completion, to evaluate 

APPLICANT'S compliance with the APPLICATION, the GRANT APPLICATION 

APPROVAL, and the GRANT PROGRAM. 

 

 

2. FUNDING 

 

2.1. APPLICANT will be provided with 50% of the total grant award upon execution of this 

GRANT AGREEMENT. 

 

2.2. APPLICANT shall provide PEDC with written notification of project completion by certified 

mail, return receipt requested, stating that all improvements have been completed in accordance 

with the APPLICATION and GRANT APPLICATION APPROVAL and GRANT PROGRAM, 

and that full payments have been made for all labor and materials with attached payment receipts 

for materials and labor, required permits, inspection reports, and project photographs. 

 

2.3. Upon PEDC'S receipt of APPLICANT'S notification of completion, an on-site inspection 

may be made by a representative or representatives of PEDC. Such inspection shall not be 

considered in any way as a reflection of PEDC'S approval on the quality, safety, or reliability of 

the improvements, such being the sole responsibility of APPLICANT. 

 

2.4. Following on-site inspection, PEDC will review the findings and may request additional 

information if needed and then either notify the APPLICANT of compliance or identify items of 

non-compliance. APPLICANT shall correct the items of non-compliance within thirty (30) days 

of notice thereof or this GRANT AGREEMENT shall be immediately cancelled and the 

APPLICANT shall immediately refund of all grant monies received to date, if any. 

 

2.5. Upon the PEDC board of directors making a finding of completion of the project, as per the 

terms of the APPLICATION, the GRANT APPLICATION APPROVAL and the GRANT 

AGREEMENT, payment of the remaining 50% of the total grant award will be made. 

 

 

3. REPRESENTATION AND WARRANTIES 

 

APPLICANT represents and warrants to PEDC that: 

 



3.1. APPLICANT has the power and authority, corporate or otherwise, to conduct its business 

and to perform all of its obligations under this GRANT AGREEMENT. 

 

3.2. APPLICANT'S execution, delivery, and performance of this GRANT AGREEMENT has 

been duly authorized by all necessary action, corporate or otherwise, and does not and will not 

violate any provision of any existing law, rule, regulation, contract, or lien by which 

APPLICANT or its property or assets is bound or affected. 

 

3.3. To the best of APPLICANT'S knowledge neither it, nor any division, branch, subsidiary, or 

related agency of the APPLICANT, is a party to any administrative or legal proceeding that is 

active or threatened against the APPLICANT or APPLICANT'S officers which may result in any 

material adverse change in APPLICANT'S business operations or assets which may be the 

subject of this GRANT AGREEMENT. 

 

3.4. APPLICANT represents and warrants that they are not engaged in business with Iran, Sudan, 

or a foreign terrorist organization, as prohibited by Section 2252.152 of the Government Code. 

 

3.5. Information, documentation, and other material in connection with the GRANT 

AGREEMENT may be subject to public disclosure pursuant to Chapter 552 of the Government 

Code (the “Public Information Act”). To the extent, if any, that any provision of the Agreement 

is in conflict with the Public Information Act, such provision shall be void and have no force or 

effect. 

 

In accordance with Section 2252.907 of the Government Code, APPLICANT is required to 

make any information created or exchanged with the PEDC pursuant to the GRANT 

AGREEMENT, regardless of contrary provisions contained herein, and not otherwise excepted 

from disclosure under the Public Information Act, available in a format that is accessible by the 

public at no additional charge to the PEDC. 

 

3.6. No Indemnification by the PEDC. APPLICANT and the PEDC expressly acknowledge that 

the PEDC’S authority to indemnify and hold harmless any third party is governed by Article XI, 

Section 7, of the Texas Constitution and any provision that purports to require indemnification 

by the PEDC is invalid. Nothing in this GRANT AGREEMENT requires that the PEDC incur 

debt, assess or collect funds, or create a sinking fund. 

 

3.7. APPLICANT is aware of the limitations imposed on this GRANT and the use of funds by 

law and acknowledges that the funds herein granted shall be utilized solely for purposes 

authorized under law and by the terms of this GRANT AGREEMENT. In the event that an audit 

determines that the financial incentives granted under this GRANT AGREEMENT were not used 

for proper purposes, APPLICANT agrees to reimburse PEDC for the sums of money spent for 

purposes not authorized by law or this GRANT AGREEMENT, with interest at the rate 

periodically announced by the Wall Street Journal as the prime or base commercial lending rate, 

or if the Wall Street Journal shall ever cease to exist or cease to announce a prime or base lending 

rate, then at the annual rate of interest from time to time announced by Citibank, N.A. (or by any 

other New York money center bank selected by the City) as its prime or base commercial lending 



rate. The payment of interest shall be from the date that the money was spent for purposes not 

authorized by law or this GRANT AGREEMENT.  

 

3.8. APPLICANT does not and will not knowingly employ an undocumented worker, as that 

term is defined by Tex. Gov't. Code Sec. 2264.001, directly or indirectly through a contractor or 

subcontractor. If, after receiving the funds herein granted, APPLICANT is convicted of a violation 

under 8 U.S.C. § 1324a(t), APPLICANT shall repay the amount of the grant paid by PEDC to 

APPLICANT with interest at the rate periodically announced by the Wall Street Journal as the 

prime or base commercial lending rate, or if the Wall Street Journal shall ever cease to exist or 

cease to announce a prime or base lending rate, then at the annual rate of interest from time to 

time announced by Citibank, N.A. (or by any other New York money center bank selected by the 

City) as its prime or base commercial lending rate. The payment of interest shall be, no later than 

120 days after the date that APPLICANT receives notification of such a violation.  

 

3.9. APPLICANT shall fully comply with all local, state and federal laws applicable or otherwise 

implicated by APPLICANT'S receipt of funds under this GRANT PROGRAM, which includes 

but is not limited to APPLICANT'S compliance with Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964, as 

amended, the Texas Labor Code, the Drug Free Workplace Act of 1988, and the Americans with 

Disabilities Act, as well as APPLICANT’S refraining from discrimination of persons based on 

race, color, religion, sex (including pregnancy, childbirth, and related medical conditions; sexual 

orientation), national origin, disability, age, citizenship status, genetic information, political 

affiliation or participation in civil rights activities. Furthermore, while the City of Palestine fully 

supports the exercise of freedom of speech, the City of Palestine will not financially support or 

fund projects that incorporate or promote ideas of hate or which are intended to vilify, humiliate, 

or incite hatred against a group or a class of persons on the basis of race, religion, skin color, sexual 

identity, gender identity, ethnicity, disability or national origin. 

 

3.10. APPLICANT will use all commercially reasonable efforts to continue operations in 

Palestine, Anderson County, Texas. 

 

3.11. APPLICANT shall timely pay all ad valorem taxes due and owed by it to the CITY and all 

other taxing authorities having jurisdiction over the APPLICANT'S property. APPLICANT shall 

also timely pay any and all water and sewer bills owed to the CITY. In addition, APPLICANT 

shall timely pay all employment, income, franchise, and other taxes owed by it to all local, state, 

and federal government entities. 

 

3.12. APPLICANT shall properly notify the Anderson County Appraisal District of all capital 

improvements, personal property, and equipment and shall list the City of Palestine as the taxable 

situs of all capital improvements, personal property, and equipment located on the property. 

 

3.13. If APPLICANT'S operations, past or present, cause the CITY or PEDC to be fined by any 

governmental entity, this AGREEMENT shall terminate immediately and the PEDC will have 

no further obligations under this GRANT AGREEMENT and APPLICANT shall immediately 

repay the CITY or PEDC for such fines, penalties, and expenses within thirty (30) days. 

 



3.14. If the business property, that being 316 W. Oak St., Palestine, Texas 75801, is sold, 

conveyed, or utilized for a purpose not originally intended by the GRANT APPLICATION 

within one year of grant funding being awarded to APPLICANT, APPLICANT shall be required 

to reimburse the PEDC immediately for the full amount of the grant. 

 

4. REMEDIES 

 

4.1. Upon default, the non-defaulting party shall have the right to seek any remedy available in 

law or equity including, termination of this GRANT AGREEMENT, recovery of GRANT funds, 

and pre-judgment and post-judgment interest at the rate provided by law or as otherwise provided 

by this GRANT AGREEMENT (whichever is greater). 

 

4.2 Attorney’s Fees. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, each party shall bear its 

own costs and attorney’s fees in connection with this Agreement, including any dispute relating 

thereto. 

5. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

 

5.1. All representations, warranties, covenants, and agreements, as well as rights and benefits for 

the parties to this GRANT AGREEMENT shall survive the payment of grant funds to 

APPLICANT. 

 

5.2. This GRANT AGREEMENT may not be assigned by APPLICANT without the prior written 

consent of PEDC. No such assignment shall relieve APPLICANT of any of its obligations under 

this GRANT AGREEMENT. 

 

5.3. The GRANT AGREEMENT may not be amended, modified, altered, or changed unless in 

writing, signed by both parties to this GRANT AGREEMENT and approved by the City of 

Palestine. 

 

5.4. APPLICANT SHALL INDEMNIFY AND HOLD THE PEDC, ITS EMPLOYEES, 

AND ITS AGENTS HARMLESS FOR ANY DAMAGES, BOTH PERSONAL AND 

PROPERTY, WHICH MAY RESULT DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY FROM ANY 

INCIDENT ASSOCIATED WITH PROJECT BOTH DURING AND AFTER 

CONSTRUCTION, AND THAT PEDC, ITS EMPLOYEES, AND ITS AGENTS SHALL 

NOT BE LIABLE FOR ANY DEBTS INCURRED IN ASSOCIATION WITH THE 

EXECUTION AND COMPLETION OF THE SUBJECT PROJECT OF THIS 

APPLICATION. 

 

PEDC, ITS EMPLOYEES, AND ITS AGENTS, DO NOT ATTEST TO THE QUALITY, 

SAFETY, OR CONSTRUCTION OF A PROJECT ELIGIBLE FOR, OR RECEIVING 

GRANT FUNDING. THEREFORE, PEDC, ITS EMPLOYEES AND AGENTS SHALL 

BE HELD HARMLESS BY THE APPLICANT FOR ANY PROJECT WHOSE 

APPLICATION HAS BEEN APPROVED OR HAS RECEIVED ACTUAL GRANT 

FUNDING. 

 



5.5.  Severability. In the event of any one or more words, phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs, 

sections, or other parts of this Agreement, or the application thereof to any person, firm, 

corporations, or circumstance, shall be held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or 

unconstitutional for any reason, then the application, invalidity, or unconstitutionality of such 

words, phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs, sections, or other parts of this Agreement shall 

be deemed to be independent of and severable from the remainder of this Agreement, and the 

application, validity, or constitutionality of the remaining parts of this Agreement shall not be 

affected thereby. 

 

5.6. This GRANT AGREEMENT shall be binding upon an inure to the benefit of the parties and 

their respective heirs, administrators, and assigns. 

 

5.7. No failure or delay on the part of the PEDC in exercising any right, power, or exercise 

hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any such 

right, power, or remedy preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other 

right, power or remedy hereunder. No notice to or demand on APPLICANT in any case shall 

entitle APPLICANT to any other or further notice or demand in similar or other circumstances. 

 

5.8. All notices, consents, requests, demands, and other communication hereunder shall be in 

writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given to the party hereto if mailed by certified mail, 

prepaid, to the APPLICANT'S address shown above as first written. 

 

5.9. Time is of the essence of this agreement. 

 
5.10. Neither party will be liable for delays or failure in its performance hereunder to the extent that 

such delay or failure is caused by acts of God, war, terrorism, or threats of terrorism, natural 

disaster, strike, lockout, labor dispute, work stoppage, fire, third-party criminal act, quarantine 

restriction, epidemic, pandemic, act of government, or other events outside of the reasonable 

control of a party (a “Force Majeure Event”); provided that the delayed party took reasonable 

precaution to prevent the impact of the Force Majeure Event. 

 

5.11. This GRANT AGREEMENT shall be deemed a contract made under the laws of the State of 

Texas and for all purposes shall be construed in accordance with the Laws of said State. The 

venue shall be in Anderson County, Texas. 

 

5.12. The providing of this GRANT AGREEMENT by PEDC to APPLICANT by any means of 

delivery constitutes an offer by PEDC to APPLICANT to accept this GRANT AGREEMENT 

on the terms and conditions contained therein, subject to approval by the City of Palestine City 

Council. If APPLICANT has not accepted the offer by ninety (90) days from the date approved 

by the City Council of the City of Palestine, Texas, the offer will lapse, and the offer and this 

GRANT AGREEMENT shall become null and void. 

 

6. TERM 

 

6.1. This GRANT AGREEMENT shall be effective on the date of the last signature below.  The 

GRANT AGREEMENT shall terminate one year from the date that the PEDC board of directors 



makes a finding of completion of the project pursuant to Section 2.5 of this GRANT 

AGREEMENT or earlier as otherwise terminated according to the provisions of this GRANT 

AGREEMENT. 

 

AGREED and SIGNED to be effective as of the Effective Date. 

 

 

 

 

For the Applicant(s): 

Seth Blood 

 

By _________________________ Date ___________________ 

     Seth Blood, Building Owner 

 

 

For the PEDC:  

Palestine Economic Development Corporation 

 

 

By_________________________ Date ___________________ 

Dan Bochsler, Board President 

 

 

APPROVED:   

City of Palestine, Texas 

 

 

By _________________________ Date ___________________ 

Mitchell Jordan, Mayor 



























DOWNTOWN GRANT PERFORMANCE 

AGREEMENT 

 

This Downtown Grant Performance Agreement ("GRANT AGREEMENT") is executed 

by and between the Palestine Economic Development Corporation, a Texas Section 4B 

Economic Development Corporation ("PEDC"), whose address is 100 Willow Creek Pkwy. 

Suite A, Palestine, Texas 75801, and A. Hugh Summers ("APPLICANT"), whose current 

address is 111 West Spring Street, Palestine, Texas 75801. 
 

RECITALS 

 

WHEREAS, the PEDC is an Economic Development Corporation, organized under the Texas 

Development Corporation Act of 1979, Article 5190.6, Section 4B of Vernon's Texas Civil 

Statutes, now Section 501 et seq. of the Texas Local Government Code (the Act), and authorized 

by the City of Palestine, Texas (City); 

 

WHEREAS, the PEDC has adopted, and the City approved, a Downtown Grant Program 

("GRANT PROGRAM"); 

 

WHEREAS, according to the GRANT PROGRAM approved by the City and in accordance 

with Texas Local Government Code Section 505.158, the PEDC Board has the authority to 

consider grants in amounts of less than $10,000 without requiring final approval from the City 

of Palestine City Council; 

 

WHEREAS, the APPLICANT submitted its Application dated December 19, 2024 for a 

Downtown Grant ("APPLICATION"); and 

 

   WHEREAS, the APPLICANT plans to make real property capital investments of          

Twelve Thousand Five Hundred Dollars and No Cents ($12,500.00) for the purpose of 

replacing two HVAC units at the office property of A. Hugh Summers, that being 111 W. Spring 

St, Palestine, TX 75801 (“PROJECT”). PEDC has found that the proposed improvements of 

APPLICANT'S property will encourage economic development in the City and will add to the ad 

valorem tax rolls of the City and other local taxing entities, and the PEDC has approved a cash 

performance grant to APPLICANT that matches funds expended by APPLICANT not to exceed 

a grant of Eighteen Thousand Seven Hundred Fifty Dollars and No Cents ($9,375.00) 

("GRANT"). 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of mutual covenants and agreements contained 

herein and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby 

acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 

 
1. APPLICANT’S OBLIGATIONS 

 

1.1. The GRANT PROGRAM, APPLICATION, and APPLICATION GRANT APPROVAL are 

incorporated herein by reference as if specifically set forth herein. 

 



1.2. APPLICANT accepts such grant subject to approval by the PEDC Board of Directors. 

 

1.3. APPLICANT recognizes that, pursuant to the terms and provisions of Texas law, this GRANT 

AGREEMENT will not be valid and binding on PEDC until it is approved by the PEDC Board of 

Directors. 

 

1.4. APPLICANT will secure completion of the improvements in compliance within its 

APPLICATION, the GRANT APPLICATION APPROVAL, and the GRANT PROGRAM before 

October 27, 2025. 

 

1.5. APPLICANT will obtain all permits required by the CITY or otherwise required by other 

government authorities for the improvement project. 

 

1.6. PEDC, by its designated representative, shall have the right to inspect during the construction 

of the improvements and, following APPLICANT'S notice of completion, to evaluate 

APPLICANT'S compliance with the APPLICATION, the GRANT APPLICATION 

APPROVAL, and the GRANT PROGRAM. 

 

 

2. FUNDING 

 

2.1. APPLICANT will be provided with 50% of the total grant award upon execution of this 

GRANT AGREEMENT. 

 

2.2. APPLICANT shall provide PEDC with written notification of project completion by certified 

mail, return receipt requested, stating that all improvements have been completed in accordance 

with the APPLICATION and GRANT APPLICATION APPROVAL and GRANT PROGRAM, 

and that full payments have been made for all labor and materials with attached payment receipts 

for materials and labor, required permits, inspection reports, and project photographs. 

 

2.3. Upon PEDC'S receipt of APPLICANT'S notification of completion, an on-site inspection 

may be made by a representative or representatives of PEDC. Such inspection shall not be 

considered in any way as a reflection of PEDC'S approval on the quality, safety, or reliability of 

the improvements, such being the sole responsibility of APPLICANT. 

 

2.4. Following on-site inspection, PEDC will review the findings and may request additional 

information if needed and then either notify the APPLICANT of compliance or identify items of 

non-compliance. APPLICANT shall correct the items of non-compliance within thirty (30) days 

of notice thereof or this GRANT AGREEMENT shall be immediately cancelled and the 

APPLICANT shall immediately refund of all grant monies received to date, if any. 

 

2.5. Upon the PEDC board of directors making a finding of completion of the project, as per the 

terms of the APPLICATION, the GRANT APPLICATION APPROVAL and the GRANT 

AGREEMENT, payment of the remaining 50% of the total grant award will be made. 

 

 



3. REPRESENTATION AND WARRANTIES 

 

APPLICANT represents and warrants to PEDC that: 

 

3.1. APPLICANT has the power and authority, corporate or otherwise, to conduct its business 

and to perform all of its obligations under this GRANT AGREEMENT. 

 

3.2. APPLICANT'S execution, delivery, and performance of this GRANT AGREEMENT has 

been duly authorized by all necessary action, corporate or otherwise, and does not and will not 

violate any provision of any existing law, rule, regulation, contract, or lien by which 

APPLICANT or its property or assets is bound or affected. 

 

3.3. To the best of APPLICANT'S knowledge neither it, nor any division, branch, subsidiary, or 

related agency of the APPLICANT, is a party to any administrative or legal proceeding that is 

active or threatened against the APPLICANT or APPLICANT'S officers which may result in any 

material adverse change in APPLICANT'S business operations or assets which may be the 

subject of this GRANT AGREEMENT. 

 

3.4. APPLICANT represents and warrants that they are not engaged in business with Iran, Sudan, 

or a foreign terrorist organization, as prohibited by Section 2252.152 of the Government Code. 

 

3.5. Information, documentation, and other material in connection with the GRANT 

AGREEMENT may be subject to public disclosure pursuant to Chapter 552 of the Government 

Code (the “Public Information Act”). To the extent, if any, that any provision of the Agreement 

is in conflict with the Public Information Act, such provision shall be void and have no force or 

effect. 

 

In accordance with Section 2252.907 of the Government Code, APPLICANT is required to 

make any information created or exchanged with the PEDC pursuant to the GRANT 

AGREEMENT, regardless of contrary provisions contained herein, and not otherwise excepted 

from disclosure under the Public Information Act, available in a format that is accessible by the 

public at no additional charge to the PEDC. 

 

3.6. No Indemnification by the PEDC. APPLICANT and the PEDC expressly acknowledge that 

the PEDC’S authority to indemnify and hold harmless any third party is governed by Article XI, 

Section 7, of the Texas Constitution and any provision that purports to require indemnification 

by the PEDC is invalid. Nothing in this GRANT AGREEMENT requires that the PEDC incur 

debt, assess or collect funds, or create a sinking fund. 

 

3.7. APPLICANT is aware of the limitations imposed on this GRANT and the use of funds by 

law and acknowledges that the funds herein granted shall be utilized solely for purposes 

authorized under law and by the terms of this GRANT AGREEMENT. In the event that an audit 

determines that the financial incentives granted under this GRANT AGREEMENT were not used 

for proper purposes, APPLICANT agrees to reimburse PEDC for the sums of money spent for 

purposes not authorized by law or this GRANT AGREEMENT, with interest at the rate 

periodically announced by the Wall Street Journal as the prime or base commercial lending rate, 



or if the Wall Street Journal shall ever cease to exist or cease to announce a prime or base lending 

rate, then at the annual rate of interest from time to time announced by Citibank, N.A. (or by any 

other New York money center bank selected by the City) as its prime or base commercial lending 

rate. The payment of interest shall be from the date that the money was spent for purposes not 

authorized by law or this GRANT AGREEMENT.  

 

3.8. APPLICANT does not and will not knowingly employ an undocumented worker, as that 

term is defined by Tex. Gov't. Code Sec. 2264.001, directly or indirectly through a contractor or 

subcontractor. If, after receiving the funds herein granted, APPLICANT is convicted of a violation 

under 8 U.S.C. § 1324a(t), APPLICANT shall repay the amount of the grant paid by PEDC to 

APPLICANT with interest at the rate periodically announced by the Wall Street Journal as the 

prime or base commercial lending rate, or if the Wall Street Journal shall ever cease to exist or 

cease to announce a prime or base lending rate, then at the annual rate of interest from time to 

time announced by Citibank, N.A. (or by any other New York money center bank selected by the 

City) as its prime or base commercial lending rate. The payment of interest shall be, no later than 

120 days after the date that APPLICANT receives notification of such a violation.  

 

3.9. APPLICANT shall fully comply with all local, state and federal laws applicable or otherwise 

implicated by APPLICANT'S receipt of funds under this GRANT PROGRAM, which includes 

but is not limited to APPLICANT'S compliance with Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964, as 

amended, the Texas Labor Code, the Drug Free Workplace Act of 1988, and the Americans with 

Disabilities Act, as well as APPLICANT’S refraining from discrimination of persons based on 

race, color, religion, sex (including pregnancy, childbirth, and related medical conditions; sexual 

orientation), national origin, disability, age, citizenship status, genetic information, political 

affiliation or participation in civil rights activities. Furthermore, while the City of Palestine fully 

supports the exercise of freedom of speech, the City of Palestine will not financially support or 

fund projects that incorporate or promote ideas of hate or which are intended to vilify, humiliate, 

or incite hatred against a group or a class of persons on the basis of race, religion, skin color, sexual 

identity, gender identity, ethnicity, disability or national origin. 

 

3.10. APPLICANT will use all commercially reasonable efforts to continue operations in 

Palestine, Anderson County, Texas. 

 

3.11. APPLICANT shall timely pay all ad valorem taxes due and owed by it to the CITY and all 

other taxing authorities having jurisdiction over the APPLICANT'S property. APPLICANT shall 

also timely pay any and all water and sewer bills owed to the CITY. In addition, APPLICANT 

shall timely pay all employment, income, franchise, and other taxes owed by it to all local, state, 

and federal government entities. 

 

3.12. APPLICANT shall properly notify the Anderson County Appraisal District of all capital 

improvements, personal property, and equipment and shall list the City of Palestine as the taxable 

situs of all capital improvements, personal property, and equipment located on the property. 

 

3.13. If APPLICANT'S operations, past or present, cause the CITY or PEDC to be fined by any 

governmental entity, this AGREEMENT shall terminate immediately and the PEDC will have 



no further obligations under this GRANT AGREEMENT and APPLICANT shall immediately 

repay the CITY or PEDC for such fines, penalties, and expenses within thirty (30) days. 

 

3.14. If the business property, that being 111 W. Spring St., Palestine, Texas 75801, is sold, 

conveyed, or utilized for a purpose not originally intended by the GRANT APPLICATION 

within one year of grant funding being awarded to APPLICANT, APPLICANT shall be required 

to reimburse the PEDC immediately for the full amount of the grant. 

 

4. REMEDIES 

 

4.1. Upon default, the non-defaulting party shall have the right to seek any remedy available in 

law or equity including, termination of this GRANT AGREEMENT, recovery of GRANT funds, 

and pre-judgment and post-judgment interest at the rate provided by law or as otherwise provided 

by this GRANT AGREEMENT (whichever is greater). 

 

4.2 Attorney’s Fees. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, each party shall bear its 

own costs and attorney’s fees in connection with this Agreement, including any dispute relating 

thereto. 

5. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

 

5.1. All representations, warranties, covenants, and agreements, as well as rights and benefits for 

the parties to this GRANT AGREEMENT shall survive the payment of grant funds to 

APPLICANT. 

 

5.2. This GRANT AGREEMENT may not be assigned by APPLICANT without the prior written 

consent of PEDC. No such assignment shall relieve APPLICANT of any of its obligations under 

this GRANT AGREEMENT. 

 

5.3. The GRANT AGREEMENT may not be amended, modified, altered, or changed unless in 

writing, signed by both parties to this GRANT AGREEMENT.. 

 

5.4. APPLICANT SHALL INDEMNIFY AND HOLD THE PEDC, ITS EMPLOYEES, 

AND ITS AGENTS HARMLESS FOR ANY DAMAGES, BOTH PERSONAL AND 

PROPERTY, WHICH MAY RESULT DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY FROM ANY 

INCIDENT ASSOCIATED WITH PROJECT BOTH DURING AND AFTER 

CONSTRUCTION, AND THAT PEDC, ITS EMPLOYEES, AND ITS AGENTS SHALL 

NOT BE LIABLE FOR ANY DEBTS INCURRED IN ASSOCIATION WITH THE 

EXECUTION AND COMPLETION OF THE SUBJECT PROJECT OF THIS 

APPLICATION. 

 

PEDC, ITS EMPLOYEES, AND ITS AGENTS, DO NOT ATTEST TO THE QUALITY, 

SAFETY, OR CONSTRUCTION OF A PROJECT ELIGIBLE FOR, OR RECEIVING 

GRANT FUNDING. THEREFORE, PEDC, ITS EMPLOYEES AND AGENTS SHALL 

BE HELD HARMLESS BY THE APPLICANT FOR ANY PROJECT WHOSE 



APPLICATION HAS BEEN APPROVED OR HAS RECEIVED ACTUAL GRANT 

FUNDING. 

 

5.5.  Severability. In the event of any one or more words, phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs, 

sections, or other parts of this Agreement, or the application thereof to any person, firm, 

corporations, or circumstance, shall be held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or 

unconstitutional for any reason, then the application, invalidity, or unconstitutionality of such 

words, phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs, sections, or other parts of this Agreement shall 

be deemed to be independent of and severable from the remainder of this Agreement, and the 

application, validity, or constitutionality of the remaining parts of this Agreement shall not be 

affected thereby. 

 

5.6. This GRANT AGREEMENT shall be binding upon an inure to the benefit of the parties and 

their respective heirs, administrators, and assigns. 

 

5.7. No failure or delay on the part of the PEDC in exercising any right, power, or exercise 

hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any such 

right, power, or remedy preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other 

right, power or remedy hereunder. No notice to or demand on APPLICANT in any case shall 

entitle APPLICANT to any other or further notice or demand in similar or other circumstances. 

 

5.8. All notices, consents, requests, demands, and other communication hereunder shall be in 

writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given to the party hereto if mailed by certified mail, 

prepaid, to the APPLICANT'S address shown above as first written. 

 

5.9. Time is of the essence of this agreement. 

 
5.10. Neither party will be liable for delays or failure in its performance hereunder to the extent that 

such delay or failure is caused by acts of God, war, terrorism, or threats of terrorism, natural 

disaster, strike, lockout, labor dispute, work stoppage, fire, third-party criminal act, quarantine 

restriction, epidemic, pandemic, act of government, or other events outside of the reasonable 

control of a party (a “Force Majeure Event”); provided that the delayed party took reasonable 

precaution to prevent the impact of the Force Majeure Event. 

 

5.11. This GRANT AGREEMENT shall be deemed a contract made under the laws of the State of 

Texas and for all purposes shall be construed in accordance with the Laws of said State. The 

venue shall be in Anderson County, Texas. 

 

5.12. The providing of this GRANT AGREEMENT by PEDC to APPLICANT by any means of 

delivery constitutes an offer by PEDC to APPLICANT to accept this GRANT AGREEMENT 

on the terms and conditions contained therein, subject to approval by the PEDC Board of 

Directors. If APPLICANT has not accepted the offer by ninety (90) days from the date approved 

by the PEDC Board of Directors, the offer will lapse, and the offer and this GRANT 

AGREEMENT shall become null and void. 



 

6. TERM 

 

6.1. This GRANT AGREEMENT shall be effective on the date of the last signature below.  The 

GRANT AGREEMENT shall terminate one year from the date that the PEDC board of directors 

makes a finding of completion of the project pursuant to Section 2.5 of this GRANT 

AGREEMENT or earlier as otherwise terminated according to the provisions of this GRANT 

AGREEMENT. 

 

AGREED and SIGNED to be effective as of the Effective Date. 

 

 

 

 

For the Applicant(s): 

A. Hugh Summers 

 

 

By _________________________ Date ___________________ 

     A. Hugh Summers, Building Owner 

 

 

For the PEDC:  

Palestine Economic Development Corporation 

 

 

By_________________________ Date ___________________ 

Dan Bochsler, Board President 

 

 

 

































DOWNTOWN GRANT PERFORMANCE 
AGREEMENT 

 
This Downtown Grant Performance Agreement ("GRANT AGREEMENT") is executed 

by and between the Palestine Economic Development Corporation, a Texas Section 4B 
Economic Development Corporation ("PEDC"), whose address is 100 Willow Creek Pkwy. 
Suite A, Palestine, Texas 75801, and A. Hugh Summers ("APPLICANT"), whose current 
address is 111 West Spring Street, Palestine, Texas 75801. 

 
RECITALS 

 
WHEREAS, the PEDC is an Economic Development Corporation, organized under the Texas 
Development Corporation Act of 1979, Article 5190.6, Section 4B of Vernon's Texas Civil 
Statutes, now Section 501 et seq. of the Texas Local Government Code (the Act), and authorized 
by the City of Palestine, Texas (City); 

 
WHEREAS, the PEDC has adopted, and the City approved, a Downtown Grant Program 
("GRANT PROGRAM"); 

 
WHEREAS, the APPLICANT submitted its Application dated December 19, 2024 for a 
Downtown Grant ("APPLICATION"); and 

 
   WHEREAS, the APPLICANT plans to make real property capital investments of          

Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars and No Cents ($25,000.00) for the purpose of replacing three 
HVAC units at the business property of Old Town Vintage Antiques, that being 306 N. Sycamore 
St, Palestine, TX 75801 (“PROJECT”). PEDC has found that the proposed improvements of 
APPLICANT'S property will encourage economic development in the City and will add to the ad 
valorem tax rolls of the City and other local taxing entities, and the PEDC and City have approved 
a cash performance grant to APPLICANT that matches funds expended by APPLICANT not to 
exceed a grant of Eighteen Thousand Seven Hundred Fifty Dollars and No Cents 
($18,750.00) ("GRANT"). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of mutual covenants and agreements contained 

herein and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby 
acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 

 
1. APPLICANT’S OBLIGATIONS 

 
1.1. The GRANT PROGRAM, APPLICATION, and APPLICATION GRANT APPROVAL are 
incorporated herein by reference as if specifically set forth herein. 
 
1.2. APPLICANT accepts such grant subject to PEDC and City approval.  
 
1.3. APPLICANT recognizes that, pursuant to the terms and provisions of Texas law, this GRANT 
AGREEMENT will not be valid and binding on PEDC until it is approved by the City Council of 
the City of Palestine, Texas. 



 
1.4. APPLICANT will secure completion of the improvements in compliance within its 
APPLICATION, the GRANT APPLICATION APPROVAL, and the GRANT PROGRAM before 
October 27, 2025. 
 
1.5. APPLICANT will obtain all permits required by the CITY or otherwise required by other 
government authorities for the improvement project. 
 
1.6. PEDC, by its designated representative, shall have the right to inspect during the construction 
of the improvements and, following APPLICANT'S notice of completion, to evaluate 
APPLICANT'S compliance with the APPLICATION, the GRANT APPLICATION 
APPROVAL, and the GRANT PROGRAM. 
 
 

2. FUNDING 
 
2.1. APPLICANT will be provided with 50% of the total grant award upon execution of this 
GRANT AGREEMENT. 
 
2.2. APPLICANT shall provide PEDC with written notification of project completion by certified 
mail, return receipt requested, stating that all improvements have been completed in accordance 
with the APPLICATION and GRANT APPLICATION APPROVAL and GRANT PROGRAM, 
and that full payments have been made for all labor and materials with attached payment receipts 
for materials and labor, required permits, inspection reports, and project photographs. 
 
2.3. Upon PEDC'S receipt of APPLICANT'S notification of completion, an on-site inspection 
may be made by a representative or representatives of PEDC. Such inspection shall not be 
considered in any way as a reflection of PEDC'S approval on the quality, safety, or reliability of 
the improvements, such being the sole responsibility of APPLICANT. 
 
2.4. Following on-site inspection, PEDC will review the findings and may request additional 
information if needed and then either notify the APPLICANT of compliance or identify items of 
non-compliance. APPLICANT shall correct the items of non-compliance within thirty (30) days 
of notice thereof or this GRANT AGREEMENT shall be immediately cancelled and the 
APPLICANT shall immediately refund of all grant monies received to date, if any. 
 
2.5. Upon the PEDC board of directors making a finding of completion of the project, as per the 
terms of the APPLICATION, the GRANT APPLICATION APPROVAL and the GRANT 
AGREEMENT, payment of the remaining 50% of the total grant award will be made. 
 
 

3. REPRESENTATION AND WARRANTIES 
 

APPLICANT represents and warrants to PEDC that: 
 



3.1. APPLICANT has the power and authority, corporate or otherwise, to conduct its business 
and to perform all of its obligations under this GRANT AGREEMENT. 
 
3.2. APPLICANT'S execution, delivery, and performance of this GRANT AGREEMENT has 
been duly authorized by all necessary action, corporate or otherwise, and does not and will not 
violate any provision of any existing law, rule, regulation, contract, or lien by which 
APPLICANT or its property or assets is bound or affected. 
 
3.3. To the best of APPLICANT'S knowledge neither it, nor any division, branch, subsidiary, or 
related agency of the APPLICANT, is a party to any administrative or legal proceeding that is 
active or threatened against the APPLICANT or APPLICANT'S officers which may result in any 
material adverse change in APPLICANT'S business operations or assets which may be the 
subject of this GRANT AGREEMENT. 
 
3.4. APPLICANT represents and warrants that they are not engaged in business with Iran, Sudan, 
or a foreign terrorist organization, as prohibited by Section 2252.152 of the Government Code. 
 
3.5. Information, documentation, and other material in connection with the GRANT 
AGREEMENT may be subject to public disclosure pursuant to Chapter 552 of the Government 
Code (the “Public Information Act”). To the extent, if any, that any provision of the Agreement 
is in conflict with the Public Information Act, such provision shall be void and have no force or 
effect. 
 
In accordance with Section 2252.907 of the Government Code, APPLICANT is required to 
make any information created or exchanged with the PEDC pursuant to the GRANT 
AGREEMENT, regardless of contrary provisions contained herein, and not otherwise excepted 
from disclosure under the Public Information Act, available in a format that is accessible by the 
public at no additional charge to the PEDC. 
 
3.6. No Indemnification by the PEDC. APPLICANT and the PEDC expressly acknowledge that 
the PEDC’S authority to indemnify and hold harmless any third party is governed by Article XI, 
Section 7, of the Texas Constitution and any provision that purports to require indemnification 
by the PEDC is invalid. Nothing in this GRANT AGREEMENT requires that the PEDC incur 
debt, assess or collect funds, or create a sinking fund. 
 
3.7. APPLICANT is aware of the limitations imposed on this GRANT and the use of funds by 
law and acknowledges that the funds herein granted shall be utilized solely for purposes 
authorized under law and by the terms of this GRANT AGREEMENT. In the event that an audit 
determines that the financial incentives granted under this GRANT AGREEMENT were not used 
for proper purposes, APPLICANT agrees to reimburse PEDC for the sums of money spent for 
purposes not authorized by law or this GRANT AGREEMENT, with interest at the rate 
periodically announced by the Wall Street Journal as the prime or base commercial lending rate, 
or if the Wall Street Journal shall ever cease to exist or cease to announce a prime or base lending 
rate, then at the annual rate of interest from time to time announced by Citibank, N.A. (or by any 
other New York money center bank selected by the City) as its prime or base commercial lending 



rate. The payment of interest shall be from the date that the money was spent for purposes not 
authorized by law or this GRANT AGREEMENT.  
 
3.8. APPLICANT does not and will not knowingly employ an undocumented worker, as that 
term is defined by Tex. Gov't. Code Sec. 2264.001, directly or indirectly through a contractor or 
subcontractor. If, after receiving the funds herein granted, APPLICANT is convicted of a violation 
under 8 U.S.C. § 1324a(t), APPLICANT shall repay the amount of the grant paid by PEDC to 
APPLICANT with interest at the rate periodically announced by the Wall Street Journal as the 
prime or base commercial lending rate, or if the Wall Street Journal shall ever cease to exist or 
cease to announce a prime or base lending rate, then at the annual rate of interest from time to 
time announced by Citibank, N.A. (or by any other New York money center bank selected by the 
City) as its prime or base commercial lending rate. The payment of interest shall be, no later than 
120 days after the date that APPLICANT receives notification of such a violation.  
 
3.9. APPLICANT shall fully comply with all local, state and federal laws applicable or otherwise 
implicated by APPLICANT'S receipt of funds under this GRANT PROGRAM, which includes 
but is not limited to APPLICANT'S compliance with Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964, as 
amended, the Texas Labor Code, the Drug Free Workplace Act of 1988, and the Americans with 
Disabilities Act, as well as APPLICANT’S refraining from discrimination of persons based on 
race, color, religion, sex (including pregnancy, childbirth, and related medical conditions; sexual 
orientation), national origin, disability, age, citizenship status, genetic information, political 
affiliation or participation in civil rights activities. Furthermore, while the City of Palestine fully 
supports the exercise of freedom of speech, the City of Palestine will not financially support or 
fund projects that incorporate or promote ideas of hate or which are intended to vilify, humiliate, 
or incite hatred against a group or a class of persons on the basis of race, religion, skin color, sexual 
identity, gender identity, ethnicity, disability or national origin. 
 
3.10. APPLICANT will use all commercially reasonable efforts to continue operations in 
Palestine, Anderson County, Texas. 
 
3.11. APPLICANT shall timely pay all ad valorem taxes due and owed by it to the CITY and all 
other taxing authorities having jurisdiction over the APPLICANT'S property. APPLICANT shall 
also timely pay any and all water and sewer bills owed to the CITY. In addition, APPLICANT 
shall timely pay all employment, income, franchise, and other taxes owed by it to all local, state, 
and federal government entities. 
 
3.12. APPLICANT shall properly notify the Anderson County Appraisal District of all capital 
improvements, personal property, and equipment and shall list the City of Palestine as the taxable 
situs of all capital improvements, personal property, and equipment located on the property. 
 
3.13. If APPLICANT'S operations, past or present, cause the CITY or PEDC to be fined by any 
governmental entity, this AGREEMENT shall terminate immediately and the PEDC will have 
no further obligations under this GRANT AGREEMENT and APPLICANT shall immediately 
repay the CITY or PEDC for such fines, penalties, and expenses within thirty (30) days. 
 



3.14. If the business property, that being 306 N. Sycamore St., Palestine, Texas 75801, is sold, 
conveyed, or utilized for a purpose not originally intended by the GRANT APPLICATION 
within one year of grant funding being awarded to APPLICANT, APPLICANT shall be required 
to reimburse the PEDC immediately for the full amount of the grant. 
 

4. REMEDIES 
 
4.1. Upon default, the non-defaulting party shall have the right to seek any remedy available in 
law or equity including, termination of this GRANT AGREEMENT, recovery of GRANT funds, 
and pre-judgment and post-judgment interest at the rate provided by law or as otherwise provided 
by this GRANT AGREEMENT (whichever is greater). 
 
4.2 Attorney’s Fees. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, each party shall bear its 
own costs and attorney’s fees in connection with this Agreement, including any dispute relating 
thereto. 

5. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
 

5.1. All representations, warranties, covenants, and agreements, as well as rights and benefits for 
the parties to this GRANT AGREEMENT shall survive the payment of grant funds to 
APPLICANT. 
 

5.2. This GRANT AGREEMENT may not be assigned by APPLICANT without the prior written 
consent of PEDC. No such assignment shall relieve APPLICANT of any of its obligations under 
this GRANT AGREEMENT. 
 
5.3. The GRANT AGREEMENT may not be amended, modified, altered, or changed unless in 
writing, signed by both parties to this GRANT AGREEMENT and approved by the City of 
Palestine. 
 
5.4. APPLICANT SHALL INDEMNIFY AND HOLD THE PEDC, ITS EMPLOYEES, 
AND ITS AGENTS HARMLESS FOR ANY DAMAGES, BOTH PERSONAL AND 
PROPERTY, WHICH MAY RESULT DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY FROM ANY 
INCIDENT ASSOCIATED WITH PROJECT BOTH DURING AND AFTER 
CONSTRUCTION, AND THAT PEDC, ITS EMPLOYEES, AND ITS AGENTS SHALL 
NOT BE LIABLE FOR ANY DEBTS INCURRED IN ASSOCIATION WITH THE 
EXECUTION AND COMPLETION OF THE SUBJECT PROJECT OF THIS 
APPLICATION. 
 
PEDC, ITS EMPLOYEES, AND ITS AGENTS, DO NOT ATTEST TO THE QUALITY, 
SAFETY, OR CONSTRUCTION OF A PROJECT ELIGIBLE FOR, OR RECEIVING 
GRANT FUNDING. THEREFORE, PEDC, ITS EMPLOYEES AND AGENTS SHALL 
BE HELD HARMLESS BY THE APPLICANT FOR ANY PROJECT WHOSE 
APPLICATION HAS BEEN APPROVED OR HAS RECEIVED ACTUAL GRANT 
FUNDING. 
 



5.5.  Severability. In the event of any one or more words, phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs, 
sections, or other parts of this Agreement, or the application thereof to any person, firm, 
corporations, or circumstance, shall be held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or 
unconstitutional for any reason, then the application, invalidity, or unconstitutionality of such 
words, phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs, sections, or other parts of this Agreement shall 
be deemed to be independent of and severable from the remainder of this Agreement, and the 
application, validity, or constitutionality of the remaining parts of this Agreement shall not be 
affected thereby. 
 
5.6. This GRANT AGREEMENT shall be binding upon an inure to the benefit of the parties and 
their respective heirs, administrators, and assigns. 
 
5.7. No failure or delay on the part of the PEDC in exercising any right, power, or exercise 
hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any such 
right, power, or remedy preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other 
right, power or remedy hereunder. No notice to or demand on APPLICANT in any case shall 
entitle APPLICANT to any other or further notice or demand in similar or other circumstances. 
 
5.8. All notices, consents, requests, demands, and other communication hereunder shall be in 
writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given to the party hereto if mailed by certified mail, 
prepaid, to the APPLICANT'S address shown above as first written. 
 
5.9. Time is of the essence of this agreement. 
 
5.10. Neither party will be liable for delays or failure in its performance hereunder to the extent that 
such delay or failure is caused by acts of God, war, terrorism, or threats of terrorism, natural 
disaster, strike, lockout, labor dispute, work stoppage, fire, third-party criminal act, quarantine 
restriction, epidemic, pandemic, act of government, or other events outside of the reasonable 
control of a party (a “Force Majeure Event”); provided that the delayed party took reasonable 
precaution to prevent the impact of the Force Majeure Event. 

 
5.11. This GRANT AGREEMENT shall be deemed a contract made under the laws of the State of 
Texas and for all purposes shall be construed in accordance with the Laws of said State. The 
venue shall be in Anderson County, Texas. 
 
5.12. The providing of this GRANT AGREEMENT by PEDC to APPLICANT by any means of 
delivery constitutes an offer by PEDC to APPLICANT to accept this GRANT AGREEMENT 
on the terms and conditions contained therein, subject to approval by the City of Palestine City 
Council. If APPLICANT has not accepted the offer by ninety (90) days from the date approved 
by the City Council of the City of Palestine, Texas, the offer will lapse, and the offer and this 
GRANT AGREEMENT shall become null and void. 
 

6. TERM 
 

6.1. This GRANT AGREEMENT shall be effective on the date of the last signature below.  The 
GRANT AGREEMENT shall terminate one year from the date that the PEDC board of directors 



makes a finding of completion of the project pursuant to Section 2.5 of this GRANT 
AGREEMENT or earlier as otherwise terminated according to the provisions of this GRANT 
AGREEMENT. 
 
AGREED and SIGNED to be effective as of the Effective Date. 
 
 
 
 
For the Applicant(s): 
A. Hugh Summers 
 
 
By _________________________ Date ___________________ 
     A. Hugh Summers, Building Owner 
 
 
For the PEDC:  
Palestine Economic Development Corporation 
 
 
By_________________________ Date ___________________ 
Dan Bochsler, Board President 
 
 
APPROVED:   
City of Palestine, Texas 
 
 
By _________________________ Date ___________________ 
Mitchell Jordan, Mayor 





















ESTIMATE
My Texas Contracting, LLC
4608 Maxey Rd Ste 100
Fort Worth, TX 76119

invoices@mytexascontracting.com
+1 (817) 887-9020
www.mytexascontracting.com

Bill to

Rodolfo Dominguez
Texas Solar Pro

201 W Crawford St.
Palestine, TX 75801

Estimate details

Estimate no.: 24167
Estimate date: 11/08/2024

# Product or service Description Qty Rate Amount

1. Services Innovi TPO Roof System Overlay

Scope of Work

We Propose:

-To clean the entire roof of any debris.

-Install new 3" foam insulation over the existing
roof system. Will attach with plates and fasteners
from Innovi Manufacturer.

-Install 60mil. Innovi TPO Roof System,
mechanically attach with plates and fasteners by
Innovi Manufacturer.

-Remove existing old A/C unit and plug in with
3/4" wood deck.

-Install new curb for new roof hatch installation, 4
by 4 ft.

-Fix 2 existing scuppers to better water flow.

-Install new pipe flashings, pitch pan flashings,
A/C curved flashings and any other flashings as
needed.

-TPO membrane will be up and over the parapet
walls. Will fully adhere to the walls only, not field.
Will use water block sealant and termination bar
all around the perimeter.

1 $62,142.00 $62,142.00

mailto:invoices@mytexascontracting.com
tel:+18178879020
http://www.mytexascontracting.com/


Total Approx. 62 SQs; including field, parapet
walls and waste factor

3-Year Workmanship Warranty
20-Year Manufacturer Warranty

50% down payment and 50% upon completion

This price includes Lodging, Skytrack, and Turn-
key.

This price is good for 30 days starting 11/08/24.

Total $62,142.00

Accepted date Accepted by



Texas Solar Pro

545 Jealouse Way

Cedar Hill, TX  75104 US

+1 4695810008

ryan@texassolar.pro

Estimate  1390

ADDRESS SHIP TO

Kevin Fuhr 201-205 West 

Crawford

201- 205 West Crawford Street

Palestine, Texas  75801 USA

Kevin Fuhr 201-205 West 

Crawford

201- 205 West Crawford Street

Palestine, Texas  75801 USA

DATE

11/26/2024

TOTAL

$128,700.00

DATE ACTIVITY DESCRIPTION QTY RATE AMOUNT

Roofing Project Specifications:

 • Roof Coverage: Approx. 109 
squares (includes field, parapet 
walls, and waste factor).

Warranties:

 • 3-Year Workmanship Warranty

 • 20-Year Manufacturer Warranty

1 128,700.00 128,700.00

SUBTOTAL 128,700.00

TAX 0.00

TOTAL $128,700.00

50% payment is due at the start of the project, with the 

remaining 50% upon completion.

This proposal is valid for 30 days, starting November 26, 2024.

Thank you!

THANK YOU.

Accepted By Accepted Date



 
 

545 Jealouse Way, Cedar Hill, TX 75104  -  469.581.0008 

 Scope of Work:

We propose the following services:

  1.  Roof Cleaning and Preparation

  •  Remove all debris from the roof.

  •  Clear and haul away loose roofing materials from parapet walls.

  2.  Insulation and Decking Installation

  •  Apply 3” foam insulation, fastened with approved plates and anchors.

  •  Securely install 7/16” OSB decking to parapet walls using concrete anchors.

  3.  TPO Roof Installation

  •  Install a 60mil TPO Roof System, secured with plates and fasteners per manufacturer specifications.

  •  Extend TPO membrane over parapet walls, fully adhering it to the walls but not the field.

  •  Seal the perimeter with water block sealant and termination bar for added durability.

  4.  Flashings and Drainage Adjustments

  •  Install pipe flashings, pitch pan flashings, A/C curved flashings, and any additional flashings as required.

  •  Enhance drainage by repairing two scuppers, replacing one collector box, and installing a new downspout.

  5.  Skylight Removal and Replacement



DOWNTOWN GRANT PERFORMANCE 

AGREEMENT 

 

This Downtown Grant Performance Agreement ("GRANT AGREEMENT") is executed 

by and between the Palestine Economic Development Corporation, a Texas Section 4B 

Economic Development Corporation ("PEDC"), whose address is 100 Willow Creek Pkwy. 

Suite A, Palestine, Texas 75801, and Palestine Event Center LLC ("APPLICANT"), whose 

current address is 100 West Crawford Street, Apartment 5, Palestine, Texas 75801. 
 

RECITALS 

 

WHEREAS, the PEDC is an Economic Development Corporation, organized under the Texas 

Development Corporation Act of 1979, Article 5190.6, Section 4B of Vernon's Texas Civil 

Statutes, now Section 501 et seq. of the Texas Local Government Code (the Act), and authorized 

by the City of Palestine, Texas (City); 

 

WHEREAS, the PEDC has adopted, and the City approved, a Downtown Grant Program 

("GRANT PROGRAM"); 

 

WHEREAS, the APPLICANT submitted its Application dated January 5, 2025 for a 

Downtown Grant ("APPLICATION"); and 

 

   WHEREAS, the APPLICANT plans to make real property capital investments of          

Sixty-Two Thousand One Hundred Forty-Two Dollars and No Cents ($62,142.00) for the 

purpose of a full roof replacement and insulation installation at the business property of The 

Historic Palestine Event Center, that being 201 W. Crawford St, Palestine, TX 75801 

(“PROJECT”). PEDC has found that the proposed improvements of APPLICANT'S property will 

encourage economic development in the City and will add to the ad valorem tax rolls of the City 

and other local taxing entities, and the PEDC and City have approved a cash performance grant 

to APPLICANT that matches funds expended by APPLICANT not to exceed a grant of Forty-

Six Thousand Six Hundred Six Dollars and Fifty Cents ($46,606.50) ("GRANT"). 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of mutual covenants and agreements contained 

herein and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby 

acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 

 
1. APPLICANT’S OBLIGATIONS 

 

1.1. The GRANT PROGRAM, APPLICATION, and APPLICATION GRANT APPROVAL are 

incorporated herein by reference as if specifically set forth herein. 

 

1.2. APPLICANT accepts such grant subject to PEDC and City approval.  

 

1.3. APPLICANT recognizes that, pursuant to the terms and provisions of Texas law, this GRANT 

AGREEMENT will not be valid and binding on PEDC until it is approved by the City Council of 

the City of Palestine, Texas. 



 

1.4. APPLICANT will secure completion of the improvements in compliance within its 

APPLICATION, the GRANT APPLICATION APPROVAL, and the GRANT PROGRAM before 

October 27, 2025. 

 

1.5. APPLICANT will obtain all permits required by the CITY or otherwise required by other 

government authorities for the improvement project. 

 

1.6. PEDC, by its designated representative, shall have the right to inspect during the construction 

of the improvements and, following APPLICANT'S notice of completion, to evaluate 

APPLICANT'S compliance with the APPLICATION, the GRANT APPLICATION 

APPROVAL, and the GRANT PROGRAM. 

 

 

2. FUNDING 

 

2.1. APPLICANT will be provided with 50% of the total grant award upon execution of this 

GRANT AGREEMENT. 

 

2.2. APPLICANT shall provide PEDC with written notification of project completion by certified 

mail, return receipt requested, stating that all improvements have been completed in accordance 

with the APPLICATION and GRANT APPLICATION APPROVAL and GRANT PROGRAM, 

and that full payments have been made for all labor and materials with attached payment receipts 

for materials and labor, required permits, inspection reports, and project photographs. 

 

2.3. Upon PEDC'S receipt of APPLICANT'S notification of completion, an on-site inspection 

may be made by a representative or representatives of PEDC. Such inspection shall not be 

considered in any way as a reflection of PEDC'S approval on the quality, safety, or reliability of 

the improvements, such being the sole responsibility of APPLICANT. 

 

2.4. Following on-site inspection, PEDC will review the findings and may request additional 

information if needed and then either notify the APPLICANT of compliance or identify items of 

non-compliance. APPLICANT shall correct the items of non-compliance within thirty (30) days 

of notice thereof or this GRANT AGREEMENT shall be immediately cancelled and the 

APPLICANT shall immediately refund of all grant monies received to date, if any. 

 

2.5. Upon the PEDC board of directors making a finding of completion of the project, as per the 

terms of the APPLICATION, the GRANT APPLICATION APPROVAL and the GRANT 

AGREEMENT, payment of the remaining 50% of the total grant award will be made. 

 

 

3. REPRESENTATION AND WARRANTIES 

 

APPLICANT represents and warrants to PEDC that: 

 



3.1. APPLICANT has the power and authority, corporate or otherwise, to conduct its business 

and to perform all of its obligations under this GRANT AGREEMENT. 

 

3.2. APPLICANT'S execution, delivery, and performance of this GRANT AGREEMENT has 

been duly authorized by all necessary action, corporate or otherwise, and does not and will not 

violate any provision of any existing law, rule, regulation, contract, or lien by which 

APPLICANT or its property or assets is bound or affected. 

 

3.3. To the best of APPLICANT'S knowledge neither it, nor any division, branch, subsidiary, or 

related agency of the APPLICANT, is a party to any administrative or legal proceeding that is 

active or threatened against the APPLICANT or APPLICANT'S officers which may result in any 

material adverse change in APPLICANT'S business operations or assets which may be the 

subject of this GRANT AGREEMENT. 

 

3.4. APPLICANT represents and warrants that they are not engaged in business with Iran, Sudan, 

or a foreign terrorist organization, as prohibited by Section 2252.152 of the Government Code. 

 

3.5. Information, documentation, and other material in connection with the GRANT 

AGREEMENT may be subject to public disclosure pursuant to Chapter 552 of the Government 

Code (the “Public Information Act”). To the extent, if any, that any provision of the Agreement 

is in conflict with the Public Information Act, such provision shall be void and have no force or 

effect. 

 

In accordance with Section 2252.907 of the Government Code, APPLICANT is required to 

make any information created or exchanged with the PEDC pursuant to the GRANT 

AGREEMENT, regardless of contrary provisions contained herein, and not otherwise excepted 

from disclosure under the Public Information Act, available in a format that is accessible by the 

public at no additional charge to the PEDC. 

 

3.6. No Indemnification by the PEDC. APPLICANT and the PEDC expressly acknowledge that 

the PEDC’S authority to indemnify and hold harmless any third party is governed by Article XI, 

Section 7, of the Texas Constitution and any provision that purports to require indemnification 

by the PEDC is invalid. Nothing in this GRANT AGREEMENT requires that the PEDC incur 

debt, assess or collect funds, or create a sinking fund. 

 

3.7. APPLICANT is aware of the limitations imposed on this GRANT and the use of funds by 

law and acknowledges that the funds herein granted shall be utilized solely for purposes 

authorized under law and by the terms of this GRANT AGREEMENT. In the event that an audit 

determines that the financial incentives granted under this GRANT AGREEMENT were not used 

for proper purposes, APPLICANT agrees to reimburse PEDC for the sums of money spent for 

purposes not authorized by law or this GRANT AGREEMENT, with interest at the rate 

periodically announced by the Wall Street Journal as the prime or base commercial lending rate, 

or if the Wall Street Journal shall ever cease to exist or cease to announce a prime or base lending 

rate, then at the annual rate of interest from time to time announced by Citibank, N.A. (or by any 

other New York money center bank selected by the City) as its prime or base commercial lending 



rate. The payment of interest shall be from the date that the money was spent for purposes not 

authorized by law or this GRANT AGREEMENT.  

 

3.8. APPLICANT does not and will not knowingly employ an undocumented worker, as that 

term is defined by Tex. Gov't. Code Sec. 2264.001, directly or indirectly through a contractor or 

subcontractor. If, after receiving the funds herein granted, APPLICANT is convicted of a violation 

under 8 U.S.C. § 1324a(t), APPLICANT shall repay the amount of the grant paid by PEDC to 

APPLICANT with interest at the rate periodically announced by the Wall Street Journal as the 

prime or base commercial lending rate, or if the Wall Street Journal shall ever cease to exist or 

cease to announce a prime or base lending rate, then at the annual rate of interest from time to 

time announced by Citibank, N.A. (or by any other New York money center bank selected by the 

City) as its prime or base commercial lending rate. The payment of interest shall be, no later than 

120 days after the date that APPLICANT receives notification of such a violation.  

 

3.9. APPLICANT shall fully comply with all local, state and federal laws applicable or otherwise 

implicated by APPLICANT'S receipt of funds under this GRANT PROGRAM, which includes 

but is not limited to APPLICANT'S compliance with Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964, as 

amended, the Texas Labor Code, the Drug Free Workplace Act of 1988, and the Americans with 

Disabilities Act, as well as APPLICANT’S refraining from discrimination of persons based on 

race, color, religion, sex (including pregnancy, childbirth, and related medical conditions; sexual 

orientation), national origin, disability, age, citizenship status, genetic information, political 

affiliation or participation in civil rights activities. Furthermore, while the City of Palestine fully 

supports the exercise of freedom of speech, the City of Palestine will not financially support or 

fund projects that incorporate or promote ideas of hate or which are intended to vilify, humiliate, 

or incite hatred against a group or a class of persons on the basis of race, religion, skin color, sexual 

identity, gender identity, ethnicity, disability or national origin. 

 

3.10. APPLICANT will use all commercially reasonable efforts to continue operations in 

Palestine, Anderson County, Texas. 

 

3.11. APPLICANT shall timely pay all ad valorem taxes due and owed by it to the CITY and all 

other taxing authorities having jurisdiction over the APPLICANT'S property. APPLICANT shall 

also timely pay any and all water and sewer bills owed to the CITY. In addition, APPLICANT 

shall timely pay all employment, income, franchise, and other taxes owed by it to all local, state, 

and federal government entities. 

 

3.12. APPLICANT shall properly notify the Anderson County Appraisal District of all capital 

improvements, personal property, and equipment and shall list the City of Palestine as the taxable 

situs of all capital improvements, personal property, and equipment located on the property. 

 

3.13. If APPLICANT'S operations, past or present, cause the CITY or PEDC to be fined by any 

governmental entity, this AGREEMENT shall terminate immediately and the PEDC will have 

no further obligations under this GRANT AGREEMENT and APPLICANT shall immediately 

repay the CITY or PEDC for such fines, penalties, and expenses within thirty (30) days. 

 



3.14. If the business property, that being 201 W. Crawford St., Palestine, Texas 75801, is sold, 

conveyed, or utilized for a purpose not originally intended by the GRANT APPLICATION 

within one year of grant funding being awarded to APPLICANT, APPLICANT shall be required 

to reimburse the PEDC immediately for the full amount of the grant. 

 

4. REMEDIES 

 

4.1. Upon default, the non-defaulting party shall have the right to seek any remedy available in 

law or equity including, termination of this GRANT AGREEMENT, recovery of GRANT funds, 

and pre-judgment and post-judgment interest at the rate provided by law or as otherwise provided 

by this GRANT AGREEMENT (whichever is greater). 

 

4.2 Attorney’s Fees. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, each party shall bear its 

own costs and attorney’s fees in connection with this Agreement, including any dispute relating 

thereto. 

5. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

 

5.1. All representations, warranties, covenants, and agreements, as well as rights and benefits for 

the parties to this GRANT AGREEMENT shall survive the payment of grant funds to 

APPLICANT. 

 

5.2. This GRANT AGREEMENT may not be assigned by APPLICANT without the prior written 

consent of PEDC. No such assignment shall relieve APPLICANT of any of its obligations under 

this GRANT AGREEMENT. 

 

5.3. The GRANT AGREEMENT may not be amended, modified, altered, or changed unless in 

writing, signed by both parties to this GRANT AGREEMENT and approved by the City of 

Palestine. 

 

5.4. APPLICANT SHALL INDEMNIFY AND HOLD THE PEDC, ITS EMPLOYEES, 

AND ITS AGENTS HARMLESS FOR ANY DAMAGES, BOTH PERSONAL AND 

PROPERTY, WHICH MAY RESULT DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY FROM ANY 

INCIDENT ASSOCIATED WITH PROJECT BOTH DURING AND AFTER 

CONSTRUCTION, AND THAT PEDC, ITS EMPLOYEES, AND ITS AGENTS SHALL 

NOT BE LIABLE FOR ANY DEBTS INCURRED IN ASSOCIATION WITH THE 

EXECUTION AND COMPLETION OF THE SUBJECT PROJECT OF THIS 

APPLICATION. 

 

PEDC, ITS EMPLOYEES, AND ITS AGENTS, DO NOT ATTEST TO THE QUALITY, 

SAFETY, OR CONSTRUCTION OF A PROJECT ELIGIBLE FOR, OR RECEIVING 

GRANT FUNDING. THEREFORE, PEDC, ITS EMPLOYEES AND AGENTS SHALL 

BE HELD HARMLESS BY THE APPLICANT FOR ANY PROJECT WHOSE 

APPLICATION HAS BEEN APPROVED OR HAS RECEIVED ACTUAL GRANT 

FUNDING. 

 



5.5.  Severability. In the event of any one or more words, phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs, 

sections, or other parts of this Agreement, or the application thereof to any person, firm, 

corporations, or circumstance, shall be held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or 

unconstitutional for any reason, then the application, invalidity, or unconstitutionality of such 

words, phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs, sections, or other parts of this Agreement shall 

be deemed to be independent of and severable from the remainder of this Agreement, and the 

application, validity, or constitutionality of the remaining parts of this Agreement shall not be 

affected thereby. 

 

5.6. This GRANT AGREEMENT shall be binding upon an inure to the benefit of the parties and 

their respective heirs, administrators, and assigns. 

 

5.7. No failure or delay on the part of the PEDC in exercising any right, power, or exercise 

hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any such 

right, power, or remedy preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other 

right, power or remedy hereunder. No notice to or demand on APPLICANT in any case shall 

entitle APPLICANT to any other or further notice or demand in similar or other circumstances. 

 

5.8. All notices, consents, requests, demands, and other communication hereunder shall be in 

writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given to the party hereto if mailed by certified mail, 

prepaid, to the APPLICANT'S address shown above as first written. 

 

5.9. Time is of the essence of this agreement. 

 
5.10. Neither party will be liable for delays or failure in its performance hereunder to the extent that 

such delay or failure is caused by acts of God, war, terrorism, or threats of terrorism, natural 

disaster, strike, lockout, labor dispute, work stoppage, fire, third-party criminal act, quarantine 

restriction, epidemic, pandemic, act of government, or other events outside of the reasonable 

control of a party (a “Force Majeure Event”); provided that the delayed party took reasonable 

precaution to prevent the impact of the Force Majeure Event. 

 

5.11. This GRANT AGREEMENT shall be deemed a contract made under the laws of the State of 

Texas and for all purposes shall be construed in accordance with the Laws of said State. The 

venue shall be in Anderson County, Texas. 

 

5.12. The providing of this GRANT AGREEMENT by PEDC to APPLICANT by any means of 

delivery constitutes an offer by PEDC to APPLICANT to accept this GRANT AGREEMENT 

on the terms and conditions contained therein, subject to approval by the City of Palestine City 

Council. If APPLICANT has not accepted the offer by ninety (90) days from the date approved 

by the City Council of the City of Palestine, Texas, the offer will lapse, and the offer and this 

GRANT AGREEMENT shall become null and void. 

 

6. TERM 

 

6.1. This GRANT AGREEMENT shall be effective on the date of the last signature below.  The 

GRANT AGREEMENT shall terminate one year from the date that the PEDC board of directors 



makes a finding of completion of the project pursuant to Section 2.5 of this GRANT 

AGREEMENT or earlier as otherwise terminated according to the provisions of this GRANT 

AGREEMENT. 

 

AGREED and SIGNED to be effective as of the Effective Date. 

 

 

 

 

For the Applicant(s): 

Palestine Event Center LLC 

 

By _________________________ Date ___________________ 

     Kevin Fuhr, Managing Member 

 

 

For the PEDC:  

Palestine Economic Development Corporation 

 

 

By_________________________ Date ___________________ 

Dan Bochsler, Board President 

 

 

APPROVED:   

City of Palestine, Texas 

 

 

By _________________________ Date ___________________ 

Mitchell Jordan, Mayor 



















ESTIMATE
My Texas Contracting, LLC
4608 Maxey Rd Ste 100
Fort Worth, TX 76119

invoices@mytexascontracting.com
+1 (817) 887-9020
www.mytexascontracting.com

Bill to

Rodolfo Dominguez
Texas Solar Pro
205 W Crawford St.
Palestine, TX 75801

Estimate details

Estimate no.: 24168
Estimate date: 11/08/2024

# Product or service Description Qty Rate Amount

1. Services IB PVC Roof System Overlay

Scope of Work

We Propose:

-To clean all debris from entire roof.

-Install new 1" foam insulation, attach with plates
and approve fasteners by IB manufacturer.

-Will install 50 mil. IB PVC Roof System, "Grease
Resistance" attach with plates and fasteners by
IB manufacturer.

-Will Install new pipe flashings, pitch pan
flashings, A/C curved flashings and any other
flashings as needed.

-IB membrane will be up and over the parapet
walls. Will fully adhere to the walls only, not field.
Will use water block sealant and termination bar
all around the perimeter.

Total Approx. 42 SQs; including field, parapet
walls and waste factor

3-Year Workmanship Warranty
20-Year Manufacturer Warranty

50% down payment and 50% upon completion

This price includes Lodging, Skytrack, and Turn-

$56,125.00 $56,125.00

mailto:invoices@mytexascontracting.com
tel:+18178879020
http://www.mytexascontracting.com/


key.

This price is good for 30 days starting 11/08/24.

2. "Optional Product"
Ecodur Castagra Roof Coating System

We Propose:

-To Power Wash the entire roof, let it dry out, and
reseal all flashings with M-1 Sealant.

Will apply one coat on all flashings, then apply
one coating on entire roof.

Total Approx. 42 SQs

Total Optional: $24,975.00

Total $56,125.00

Accepted date Accepted by



Texas Solar Pro

545 Jealouse Way

Cedar Hill, TX  75104 US

+1 4695810008

ryan@texassolar.pro

Estimate  1390

ADDRESS SHIP TO

Kevin Fuhr 201-205 West 

Crawford

201- 205 West Crawford Street

Palestine, Texas  75801 USA

Kevin Fuhr 201-205 West 

Crawford

201- 205 West Crawford Street

Palestine, Texas  75801 USA

DATE

11/26/2024

TOTAL

$128,700.00

DATE ACTIVITY DESCRIPTION QTY RATE AMOUNT

Roofing Project Specifications:

 • Roof Coverage: Approx. 109 
squares (includes field, parapet 
walls, and waste factor).

Warranties:

 • 3-Year Workmanship Warranty

 • 20-Year Manufacturer Warranty

1 128,700.00 128,700.00

SUBTOTAL 128,700.00

TAX 0.00

TOTAL $128,700.00

50% payment is due at the start of the project, with the 

remaining 50% upon completion.

This proposal is valid for 30 days, starting November 26, 2024.

Thank you!

THANK YOU.

Accepted By Accepted Date



 
 

545 Jealouse Way, Cedar Hill, TX 75104  -  469.581.0008 

 Scope of Work:

We propose the following services:

  1.  Roof Cleaning and Preparation

  •  Remove all debris from the roof.

  •  Clear and haul away loose roofing materials from parapet walls.

  2.  Insulation and Decking Installation

  •  Apply 3” foam insulation, fastened with approved plates and anchors.

  •  Securely install 7/16” OSB decking to parapet walls using concrete anchors.

  3.  TPO Roof Installation

  •  Install a 60mil TPO Roof System, secured with plates and fasteners per manufacturer specifications.

  •  Extend TPO membrane over parapet walls, fully adhering it to the walls but not the field.

  •  Seal the perimeter with water block sealant and termination bar for added durability.

  4.  Flashings and Drainage Adjustments

  •  Install pipe flashings, pitch pan flashings, A/C curved flashings, and any additional flashings as required.

  •  Enhance drainage by repairing two scuppers, replacing one collector box, and installing a new downspout.

  5.  Skylight Removal and Replacement



DOWNTOWN GRANT PERFORMANCE 

AGREEMENT 

 

This Downtown Grant Performance Agreement ("GRANT AGREEMENT") is executed 

by and between the Palestine Economic Development Corporation, a Texas Section 4B 

Economic Development Corporation ("PEDC"), whose address is 100 Willow Creek Pkwy. 

Suite A, Palestine, Texas 75801, and Link Bratton Building LLC ("APPLICANT"), whose 

current address is 100 West Crawford Street, Apartment 5, Palestine, Texas 75801. 
 

RECITALS 

 

WHEREAS, the PEDC is an Economic Development Corporation, organized under the Texas 

Development Corporation Act of 1979, Article 5190.6, Section 4B of Vernon's Texas Civil 

Statutes, now Section 501 et seq. of the Texas Local Government Code (the Act), and authorized 

by the City of Palestine, Texas (City); 

 

WHEREAS, the PEDC has adopted, and the City approved, a Downtown Grant Program 

("GRANT PROGRAM"); 

 

WHEREAS, the APPLICANT submitted its Application dated January 5, 2025 for a 

Downtown Grant ("APPLICATION"); and 

 

   WHEREAS, the APPLICANT plans to make real property capital investments of          

Fifty-Six Thousand One Hundred Twenty-Five Dollars and No Cents ($56,125.00) for the 

purpose of a full roof replacement and insulation installation at the business property of New 

Town Double Tap, that being 205 W. Crawford St, Palestine, TX 75801 (“PROJECT”). PEDC 

has found that the proposed improvements of APPLICANT'S property will encourage economic 

development in the City and will add to the ad valorem tax rolls of the City and other local taxing 

entities, and the PEDC and City have approved a cash performance grant to APPLICANT that 

matches funds expended by APPLICANT not to exceed a grant of Forty-Two Thousand 

Ninety-Three Dollars and Seventy-Five Cents ($42,093.75) ("GRANT"). 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of mutual covenants and agreements contained 

herein and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby 

acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 

 
1. APPLICANT’S OBLIGATIONS 

 

1.1. The GRANT PROGRAM, APPLICATION, and APPLICATION GRANT APPROVAL are 

incorporated herein by reference as if specifically set forth herein. 

 

1.2. APPLICANT accepts such grant subject to PEDC and City approval.  

 

1.3. APPLICANT recognizes that, pursuant to the terms and provisions of Texas law, this GRANT 

AGREEMENT will not be valid and binding on PEDC until it is approved by the City Council of 

the City of Palestine, Texas. 



 

1.4. APPLICANT will secure completion of the improvements in compliance within its 

APPLICATION, the GRANT APPLICATION APPROVAL, and the GRANT PROGRAM before 

October 27, 2025. 

 

1.5. APPLICANT will obtain all permits required by the CITY or otherwise required by other 

government authorities for the improvement project. 

 

1.6. PEDC, by its designated representative, shall have the right to inspect during the construction 

of the improvements and, following APPLICANT'S notice of completion, to evaluate 

APPLICANT'S compliance with the APPLICATION, the GRANT APPLICATION 

APPROVAL, and the GRANT PROGRAM. 

 

 

2. FUNDING 

 

2.1. APPLICANT will be provided with 50% of the total grant award upon execution of this 

GRANT AGREEMENT. 

 

2.2. APPLICANT shall provide PEDC with written notification of project completion by certified 

mail, return receipt requested, stating that all improvements have been completed in accordance 

with the APPLICATION and GRANT APPLICATION APPROVAL and GRANT PROGRAM, 

and that full payments have been made for all labor and materials with attached payment receipts 

for materials and labor, required permits, inspection reports, and project photographs. 

 

2.3. Upon PEDC'S receipt of APPLICANT'S notification of completion, an on-site inspection 

may be made by a representative or representatives of PEDC. Such inspection shall not be 

considered in any way as a reflection of PEDC'S approval on the quality, safety, or reliability of 

the improvements, such being the sole responsibility of APPLICANT. 

 

2.4. Following on-site inspection, PEDC will review the findings and may request additional 

information if needed and then either notify the APPLICANT of compliance or identify items of 

non-compliance. APPLICANT shall correct the items of non-compliance within thirty (30) days 

of notice thereof or this GRANT AGREEMENT shall be immediately cancelled and the 

APPLICANT shall immediately refund of all grant monies received to date, if any. 

 

2.5. Upon the PEDC board of directors making a finding of completion of the project, as per the 

terms of the APPLICATION, the GRANT APPLICATION APPROVAL and the GRANT 

AGREEMENT, payment of the remaining 50% of the total grant award will be made. 

 

 

3. REPRESENTATION AND WARRANTIES 

 

APPLICANT represents and warrants to PEDC that: 

 



3.1. APPLICANT has the power and authority, corporate or otherwise, to conduct its business 

and to perform all of its obligations under this GRANT AGREEMENT. 

 

3.2. APPLICANT'S execution, delivery, and performance of this GRANT AGREEMENT has 

been duly authorized by all necessary action, corporate or otherwise, and does not and will not 

violate any provision of any existing law, rule, regulation, contract, or lien by which 

APPLICANT or its property or assets is bound or affected. 

 

3.3. To the best of APPLICANT'S knowledge neither it, nor any division, branch, subsidiary, or 

related agency of the APPLICANT, is a party to any administrative or legal proceeding that is 

active or threatened against the APPLICANT or APPLICANT'S officers which may result in any 

material adverse change in APPLICANT'S business operations or assets which may be the 

subject of this GRANT AGREEMENT. 

 

3.4. APPLICANT represents and warrants that they are not engaged in business with Iran, Sudan, 

or a foreign terrorist organization, as prohibited by Section 2252.152 of the Government Code. 

 

3.5. Information, documentation, and other material in connection with the GRANT 

AGREEMENT may be subject to public disclosure pursuant to Chapter 552 of the Government 

Code (the “Public Information Act”). To the extent, if any, that any provision of the Agreement 

is in conflict with the Public Information Act, such provision shall be void and have no force or 

effect. 

 

In accordance with Section 2252.907 of the Government Code, APPLICANT is required to 

make any information created or exchanged with the PEDC pursuant to the GRANT 

AGREEMENT, regardless of contrary provisions contained herein, and not otherwise excepted 

from disclosure under the Public Information Act, available in a format that is accessible by the 

public at no additional charge to the PEDC. 

 

3.6. No Indemnification by the PEDC. APPLICANT and the PEDC expressly acknowledge that 

the PEDC’S authority to indemnify and hold harmless any third party is governed by Article XI, 

Section 7, of the Texas Constitution and any provision that purports to require indemnification 

by the PEDC is invalid. Nothing in this GRANT AGREEMENT requires that the PEDC incur 

debt, assess or collect funds, or create a sinking fund. 

 

3.7. APPLICANT is aware of the limitations imposed on this GRANT and the use of funds by 

law and acknowledges that the funds herein granted shall be utilized solely for purposes 

authorized under law and by the terms of this GRANT AGREEMENT. In the event that an audit 

determines that the financial incentives granted under this GRANT AGREEMENT were not used 

for proper purposes, APPLICANT agrees to reimburse PEDC for the sums of money spent for 

purposes not authorized by law or this GRANT AGREEMENT, with interest at the rate 

periodically announced by the Wall Street Journal as the prime or base commercial lending rate, 

or if the Wall Street Journal shall ever cease to exist or cease to announce a prime or base lending 

rate, then at the annual rate of interest from time to time announced by Citibank, N.A. (or by any 

other New York money center bank selected by the City) as its prime or base commercial lending 



rate. The payment of interest shall be from the date that the money was spent for purposes not 

authorized by law or this GRANT AGREEMENT.  

 

3.8. APPLICANT does not and will not knowingly employ an undocumented worker, as that 

term is defined by Tex. Gov't. Code Sec. 2264.001, directly or indirectly through a contractor or 

subcontractor. If, after receiving the funds herein granted, APPLICANT is convicted of a violation 

under 8 U.S.C. § 1324a(t), APPLICANT shall repay the amount of the grant paid by PEDC to 

APPLICANT with interest at the rate periodically announced by the Wall Street Journal as the 

prime or base commercial lending rate, or if the Wall Street Journal shall ever cease to exist or 

cease to announce a prime or base lending rate, then at the annual rate of interest from time to 

time announced by Citibank, N.A. (or by any other New York money center bank selected by the 

City) as its prime or base commercial lending rate. The payment of interest shall be, no later than 

120 days after the date that APPLICANT receives notification of such a violation.  

 

3.9. APPLICANT shall fully comply with all local, state and federal laws applicable or otherwise 

implicated by APPLICANT'S receipt of funds under this GRANT PROGRAM, which includes 

but is not limited to APPLICANT'S compliance with Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964, as 

amended, the Texas Labor Code, the Drug Free Workplace Act of 1988, and the Americans with 

Disabilities Act, as well as APPLICANT’S refraining from discrimination of persons based on 

race, color, religion, sex (including pregnancy, childbirth, and related medical conditions; sexual 

orientation), national origin, disability, age, citizenship status, genetic information, political 

affiliation or participation in civil rights activities. Furthermore, while the City of Palestine fully 

supports the exercise of freedom of speech, the City of Palestine will not financially support or 

fund projects that incorporate or promote ideas of hate or which are intended to vilify, humiliate, 

or incite hatred against a group or a class of persons on the basis of race, religion, skin color, sexual 

identity, gender identity, ethnicity, disability or national origin. 

 

3.10. APPLICANT will use all commercially reasonable efforts to continue operations in 

Palestine, Anderson County, Texas. 

 

3.11. APPLICANT shall timely pay all ad valorem taxes due and owed by it to the CITY and all 

other taxing authorities having jurisdiction over the APPLICANT'S property. APPLICANT shall 

also timely pay any and all water and sewer bills owed to the CITY. In addition, APPLICANT 

shall timely pay all employment, income, franchise, and other taxes owed by it to all local, state, 

and federal government entities. 

 

3.12. APPLICANT shall properly notify the Anderson County Appraisal District of all capital 

improvements, personal property, and equipment and shall list the City of Palestine as the taxable 

situs of all capital improvements, personal property, and equipment located on the property. 

 

3.13. If APPLICANT'S operations, past or present, cause the CITY or PEDC to be fined by any 

governmental entity, this AGREEMENT shall terminate immediately and the PEDC will have 

no further obligations under this GRANT AGREEMENT and APPLICANT shall immediately 

repay the CITY or PEDC for such fines, penalties, and expenses within thirty (30) days. 

 



3.14. If the business property, that being 205 W. Crawford St., Palestine, Texas 75801, is sold, 

conveyed, or utilized for a purpose not originally intended by the GRANT APPLICATION 

within one year of grant funding being awarded to APPLICANT, APPLICANT shall be required 

to reimburse the PEDC immediately for the full amount of the grant. 

 

4. REMEDIES 

 

4.1. Upon default, the non-defaulting party shall have the right to seek any remedy available in 

law or equity including, termination of this GRANT AGREEMENT, recovery of GRANT funds, 

and pre-judgment and post-judgment interest at the rate provided by law or as otherwise provided 

by this GRANT AGREEMENT (whichever is greater). 

 

4.2 Attorney’s Fees. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, each party shall bear its 

own costs and attorney’s fees in connection with this Agreement, including any dispute relating 

thereto. 

5. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

 

5.1. All representations, warranties, covenants, and agreements, as well as rights and benefits for 

the parties to this GRANT AGREEMENT shall survive the payment of grant funds to 

APPLICANT. 

 

5.2. This GRANT AGREEMENT may not be assigned by APPLICANT without the prior written 

consent of PEDC. No such assignment shall relieve APPLICANT of any of its obligations under 

this GRANT AGREEMENT. 

 

5.3. The GRANT AGREEMENT may not be amended, modified, altered, or changed unless in 

writing, signed by both parties to this GRANT AGREEMENT and approved by the City of 

Palestine. 

 

5.4. APPLICANT SHALL INDEMNIFY AND HOLD THE PEDC, ITS EMPLOYEES, 

AND ITS AGENTS HARMLESS FOR ANY DAMAGES, BOTH PERSONAL AND 

PROPERTY, WHICH MAY RESULT DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY FROM ANY 

INCIDENT ASSOCIATED WITH PROJECT BOTH DURING AND AFTER 

CONSTRUCTION, AND THAT PEDC, ITS EMPLOYEES, AND ITS AGENTS SHALL 

NOT BE LIABLE FOR ANY DEBTS INCURRED IN ASSOCIATION WITH THE 

EXECUTION AND COMPLETION OF THE SUBJECT PROJECT OF THIS 

APPLICATION. 

 

PEDC, ITS EMPLOYEES, AND ITS AGENTS, DO NOT ATTEST TO THE QUALITY, 

SAFETY, OR CONSTRUCTION OF A PROJECT ELIGIBLE FOR, OR RECEIVING 

GRANT FUNDING. THEREFORE, PEDC, ITS EMPLOYEES AND AGENTS SHALL 

BE HELD HARMLESS BY THE APPLICANT FOR ANY PROJECT WHOSE 

APPLICATION HAS BEEN APPROVED OR HAS RECEIVED ACTUAL GRANT 

FUNDING. 

 



5.5.  Severability. In the event of any one or more words, phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs, 

sections, or other parts of this Agreement, or the application thereof to any person, firm, 

corporations, or circumstance, shall be held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or 

unconstitutional for any reason, then the application, invalidity, or unconstitutionality of such 

words, phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs, sections, or other parts of this Agreement shall 

be deemed to be independent of and severable from the remainder of this Agreement, and the 

application, validity, or constitutionality of the remaining parts of this Agreement shall not be 

affected thereby. 

 

5.6. This GRANT AGREEMENT shall be binding upon an inure to the benefit of the parties and 

their respective heirs, administrators, and assigns. 

 

5.7. No failure or delay on the part of the PEDC in exercising any right, power, or exercise 

hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any such 

right, power, or remedy preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other 

right, power or remedy hereunder. No notice to or demand on APPLICANT in any case shall 

entitle APPLICANT to any other or further notice or demand in similar or other circumstances. 

 

5.8. All notices, consents, requests, demands, and other communication hereunder shall be in 

writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given to the party hereto if mailed by certified mail, 

prepaid, to the APPLICANT'S address shown above as first written. 

 

5.9. Time is of the essence of this agreement. 

 
5.10. Neither party will be liable for delays or failure in its performance hereunder to the extent that 

such delay or failure is caused by acts of God, war, terrorism, or threats of terrorism, natural 

disaster, strike, lockout, labor dispute, work stoppage, fire, third-party criminal act, quarantine 

restriction, epidemic, pandemic, act of government, or other events outside of the reasonable 

control of a party (a “Force Majeure Event”); provided that the delayed party took reasonable 

precaution to prevent the impact of the Force Majeure Event. 

 

5.11. This GRANT AGREEMENT shall be deemed a contract made under the laws of the State of 

Texas and for all purposes shall be construed in accordance with the Laws of said State. The 

venue shall be in Anderson County, Texas. 

 

5.12. The providing of this GRANT AGREEMENT by PEDC to APPLICANT by any means of 

delivery constitutes an offer by PEDC to APPLICANT to accept this GRANT AGREEMENT 

on the terms and conditions contained therein, subject to approval by the City of Palestine City 

Council. If APPLICANT has not accepted the offer by ninety (90) days from the date approved 

by the City Council of the City of Palestine, Texas, the offer will lapse, and the offer and this 

GRANT AGREEMENT shall become null and void. 

 

6. TERM 

 

6.1. This GRANT AGREEMENT shall be effective on the date of the last signature below.  The 

GRANT AGREEMENT shall terminate one year from the date that the PEDC board of directors 



makes a finding of completion of the project pursuant to Section 2.5 of this GRANT 

AGREEMENT or earlier as otherwise terminated according to the provisions of this GRANT 

AGREEMENT. 

 

AGREED and SIGNED to be effective as of the Effective Date. 

 

 

 

 

For the Applicant(s): 

Link Bratton Building LLC 

 

By _________________________ Date ___________________ 

     Kevin Fuhr, Managing Member 

 

 

For the PEDC:  

Palestine Economic Development Corporation 

 

 

By_________________________ Date ___________________ 

Dan Bochsler, Board President 

 

 

APPROVED:   

City of Palestine, Texas 

 

 

By _________________________ Date ___________________ 

Mitchell Jordan, Mayor 



Agenda Date: 01/14/2025
To: Palestine Economic Development Corporation
From: Lisa Bowman, Economic Development Admin
Agenda Item: Consider approval of the PEDC Minutes from December 10, 2024.

SUMMARY:
Consider approval of the PEDC Minutes from December 10, 2024.
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Consider approval of the PEDC Minutes from December 10, 2024.
 

Attachments
PEDC Minutes 12.10.24 



Minutes of the Economic Development Board Meeting of December 10, 2024 

Page 1 of 5 

 

THE STATE OF TEXAS  § 

COUNTY OF ANDERSON  § 

CITY OF PALESTINE  § 

 

The Economic Development Board of the City of Palestine convened in a regular meeting on 

Tuesday, December 10, 2024, at 10:00 a.m., at PEDC Office, 100 Willow Creek Pkwy, Suite A, 

Palestine, Texas, with the following people present: President Dan Bochsler; Vice-President Kim 

Willmott; Secretary/Treasurer Charles Drane; Directors: Veer Patel, Firouz Haghighi. 

 

Staff Present: PEDC Director Christophe Trahan, Marketing Analyst Will James, and 

Administrative Assistant Lisa Bowman. 

 

Others Present: City Manager Teresa Herrera and City Finance Director Andrew Sibai, Mollard 

Properties, Ltd. Owner Jean Mollard, Mike Searcy, Warren’s Barber Shop owner Saundra Vasquez, 

and Venture Commercial Real Estate, LLC. representatives John Christon, Will Meachum & Josh 

Devin. 

 

A. CALL TO ORDER 

With a quorum present, President Bochsler called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. 

 

Director Thompson entered the board meeting at 10:01 a.m. 

 

B. PROPOSED CHANGES OF AGENDA ITEMS 

President Bochsler proposed to have item J. Director’s Report to be moved and discussed after 

item E. Items from Board.  

 

C. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

There were none. 

 

D. CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURES 

There were none. 

  

E. ITEMS FROM BOARD 

There were none. 

 

J. DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

 

1. Review monthly Director’s Report. 

• ACTE Conference – San Antonio, TX 

• Texas Labor Market Information Data – Regional Unemployment Comparison. 

• Strategic Plan – Activity Report 

 

2. Review monthly Marketing Analyst Report. 

• Introductory meeting with MultiView 

• Lender’s Roundtable Meeting 

 



Minutes of the Economic Development Board Meeting of December 10, 2024 

Page 2 of 5 

 

F. DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS 

 

1. Presentation regarding a Downtown Grant Application & Perf. Agreement with Saundra 

Vasquez d/b/a Warren’s Barber Shop. 

 

Saundra Vasquez, d/b/a Warren’s Barber Shop, presented to the board her Downtown Grant 

Application requesting funds to assist with the cost of removing the existing awning and 

constructing a new overhead canopy for the business located at 307 W. Oak Street. 

 

2. Discussion and possible action regarding a Downtown Grant Application & perf. Agreement 

with Mollard Properties, Ltd., a Texas limited partnership. 

 

Jean Mollard, owner of Mollard Properties, Ltd., presented to the board her Downtown Grant 

Application requesting funds to assist with the cost of power washing & repainting bands, 

entries, window ledges, flashing, balcony railing, and elevator shaft for the business located at 

400 N. Queen Street. 

 

3. Discussion and possible action regarding the Downtown Grant Performance Agreement with 

Kevin Fuhr d/b/a The Historic Palestine Event Center. 

 

Motion by Director Thompson, seconded by Vice President Willmott to approve the final 

payment to Kevin Fuhr d/b/a The Historic Palestine Event Center for work completed under their 

Grant Performance Agreement. Upon vote, the motion carried unanimously 6-0. 

 

4. Consider approval of the PEDC Minutes from November 12, 2024. 

 

Motion by Director Thompson, seconded by Director Patel to approve the item as presented. 

Upon vote, the motion carried unanimously 6-0. 

 

5. Consider approval of the November 2024 Financial Report. 

 

Motion by Director Thompson, seconded by Vice President Willmott to approve the item as 

presented. Upon vote, the motion carried unanimously 6-0. 

 

6. Discussion and possible action regarding revisions to the Palestine EDC Downtown Grant 

Program Guidelines. 

 

Director Trahan presented to the board updated language to the Downtown Grant Guidelines for 

the following section: 

 

Section 7: Restrictions 

 

B. Grant Program funds are limited to materials and labor directly contributing to the eligible 

improvements defined herein. General contracting fees and city permitting fees are not 

eligible costs for reimbursement.  

 



Minutes of the Economic Development Board Meeting of December 10, 2024 

Page 3 of 5 

 

E. If a property is sold, utilized, or conveyed for a purpose not originally intended by the grant 

application, whether by owner or by leasing tenant, within one year of grant funding being 

awarded to the applicant, the applicant may be required to reimburse the PEDC immediately for 

the full amount of the grant.  

 

Motion by Director Thompson, seconded by Secretary/Treasurer Drane to approve the item as 

presented. Upon vote, the motion carried unanimously 6-0. 

 

7. Consideration and possible action regarding a budget amendment to PEDC’s Com. Dev. Grant 

Program budget line item. 

 

Director Trahan proposed to have PEDC’s Com. Dev. Grant Program budget line item increased 

by an additional $75,000 for the fiscal year 2024-2025. 

 

Motion by Director Thompson, seconded by Director Patel to amend the Com. Dev. Grant 

Program budget line to $150,000.00. Upon vote, the motion carried unanimously 6-0. 

 

8. Consideration of and possible action on Resolution No. R-06-24, a resolution of the PEDC 

declaring projects of the PEDC offering economic development grants to incentivize 

community development and authorizing and directing staff to publish notice of the same. 

 

Motion by Director Thompson, seconded by Vice President Willmott to approve the item as 

presented. Upon vote, the motion carried unanimously 6-0. 

 

9. Presentation and possible action regarding services for an updated promotional video for 

PEDC. 

 

Marketing Analyst James presented to the board multiple bids for work regarding an updated 

promotional video for PEDC. 

 

Motion by Director Thompson, seconded by Secretary/Treasurer Drane to approve the contract 

with Viking Film Works in the amount of $20,000.00. Upon vote, the motion carried 

unanimously 6-0. 

 

10. Consideration and possible action regarding an Easement Agreement between PEDC and 

Stewart & Jane Kenderdine. 

 

Motion by Director Thompson, seconded by Vice President Willmott to approve the item as 

presented. Upon vote, the motion carried unanimously 6-0. 

 

11. Presentation from John Christon with Venture Commercial Real Estate, LLC. regarding the 

Palestine Mall. 

 

A presentation was made by Venture Commercial Real Estate, LLC representatives John Christon, 

Will Meachum, and Josh Devin regarding the business plan for the Palestine Mall and requesting 

financial assistance from the PEDC for renovations to the parking lot.  



Minutes of the Economic Development Board Meeting of December 10, 2024 

Page 4 of 5 

 

 

G. CLOSED SESSION 

Dan Bochsler announced the board will go into closed session pursuant to Texas Government 

Code, Chapter 551, subchapter D. The time was 12:15 p.m. 

 

1. Section 551.087 deliberation regarding Economic Development negotiations; to discuss or 

deliberate regarding commercial or financial information that the governmental body has 

received from a business prospect that the governmental body seeks to have locate, stay, or 

expand in or near the territory of the governmental body and with which the governmental body 

is conducting economic development negotiation or to deliberate the offer of a financial or other 

incentive to a business prospect described by Subdivision. 

 

a.) Palestine Mall - Letter of Intent/Resolution R-7-24 declaring a project for the expenditure of 

funds for an economic development initiative. 

b.) Saundra Vasquez d/b/a Warren’s Barber Shop 

c.) Mollard Properties, Ltd., a Texas limited partnership 

 

H. RECONVENE IN REGULAR SESSION 

President Bochsler reconvened the board meeting into regular session at 12:58 p.m. 

 

I. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON CLOSED SESSION ITEMS 

 

1. Discussion and possible action regarding Palestine Mall - Letter of Intent/Resolution R-7-24 

declaring a project for the expenditure of funds for an economic development initiative. 

 

Motion by Secretary/Treasurer Drane, seconded by Director Haghighi to approve the items as 

presented. Upon vote, the motion carried 5-1. 

 

2. Discussion and possible action regarding Saundra Vasquez d/b/a Warren’s Barber Shop. 

 

Motion by Director Thompson, seconded by Vice President Willmott to approve the Downtown 

Grant application and Performance Agreement for Saundra Vasquez d/b/a Warren’s Barber Shop 

in the amount of $5,550. Upon vote, the motion carried unanimously 6-0. 

 

3. Discussion and possible action regarding Mollard Properties, Ltd., a Texas limited 

partnership. 

 

Motion by Director Patel, seconded by Director Thompson to approve the Downtown Grant 

application and Performance Agreement for Mollard Properties, Ltd., a Texas limited 

Partnership in the amount of $40,106.25. Upon vote, the motion carried unanimously 6-0. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Minutes of the Economic Development Board Meeting of December 10, 2024 

Page 5 of 5 

 

K. ADJOURN 

With no other business to come before the Board, President Bochsler adjourned the meeting at 

1:01 p.m. 

 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 14th DAY OF January 2025. 

 

 

             

       Dan Bochsler, President 

ATTEST: 

 

__________________________________  

Lisa Bowman, Administrative Assistant 

 



Agenda Date: 01/14/2025
To: Palestine Economic Development Corporation
From: Lisa Bowman, Economic Development Admin
Agenda Item: Consider approval of the December 2024 Financial Report.

SUMMARY:
Consider approval of the December 2024 Financial Report.
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Staff recommends approval of the December 2024 Financial Report.
 

Attachments
Dec. 2024 Financial Report 



Palestine Economic Development Corporation
Financial Statement

As of December 31, 2024

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 3,986,395$     3,896,395$     2,611,873$     

REVENUE
41013 PEDC SALES TAX 1,325,055        116,282           353,096           26.6% 971,959           327,089           26,007             
41609 RENT - SUITE B 36,000             3,000                9,000                25.0% 27,000             9,000                -                        
41610 RENT - RESULTS CO -                        -                        -                        0.0% -                        53,861             (53,861)            
41807 ETEX FIBER RECAPTURE 400,000           -                        102,400           25.6% 297,600           99,381             3,019                
41818 DEBT OR OTHER FINANCING -                        -                        -                        0.0% -                        -                        -                        
41901 INTEREST REVENUE 65,000             10,211             35,312             54.3% 29,688             27,911             7,400                
41932 TAH LOAN PYMT 34,064             2,839                8,516                25.0% 25,548             8,516                -                        
41938 SALE OF PROPERTY -                        -                        -                        0.0% -                        -                        -                        

1,860,119        132,333           508,324           27.3% 1,351,795        525,758           (17,434)            

EXPENSE

PERSONNEL
51010 SALARIES & WAGES 175,555           13,431             39,609             22.6% 135,946           30,166             9,443                
51030 LONGEVITY 288                   39                     80                     27.7% 208                   48                     31                     
51036 CELL PHONE ALLOWANCE 600                   50                     123                   20.4% 478                   127                   (4)                      
51040 SOCIAL SECURITY 13,817             1,031                3,036                22.0% 10,780             2,318                718                   
51050 HEALTH INSURANCE 24,943             1,881                6,776                27.2% 18,167             5,043                1,733                
51061 WORKER'S COMPENSATION 708                   55                     163                   23.1% 545                   124                   39                     
51070 RETIREMENT 26,124             1,959                5,769                22.1% 20,355             4,302                1,466                

242,034           18,446             55,556             23.0% 186,478           42,130             13,426             

SUPPLIES AND MATERIALS
52010 OFFICE SUPPLIES/EQUIPMENT 4,100                112                   327                   8.0% 3,773                369                   (41)                    
52020 POSTAGE 300                   -                        -                        0.0% 300                   -                        -                        
52091 FURNITURE & OFFICE EQUIPMENT 2,500                33                     33                     1.3% 2,467                575                   (543)                 

6,900               145                   360                   5.2% 6,540               369                   (41)                    

PROF/CONTRACTUAL SERV
53010 LEGAL SERVICES 55,000             -                        878                   1.6% 54,123             14,104             (13,227)            
53020 AUDIT & ACCOUNTING SERVICES 5,000                -                        742                   14.8% 4,258                436                   306                   
53030 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 45,000             -                        -                        0.0% 45,000             1,200                (1,200)              
53031 CONSULTANT SERVICES 20,000             -                        -                        0.0% 20,000             -                        -                        
53090 IT SUPPORT 1,897                -                        305                   16.1% 1,593                609                   (305)                 
53095 SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE 833                   -                        230                   27.7% 603                   273                   (43)                    
53150 MARKETING SERVICES 75,000             10,049             12,594             16.8% 62,406             12,208             386                   
53311 PRINTER/COPIER LEASE 3,500                237                   237                   6.8% 3,263                -                        237                   
53500 LEGAL NOTICES 3,000                -                        -                        0.0% 3,000                -                        -                        
53509 MEMBERSHIPS & SUBSCRIPTIONS 22,250             173                   8,707                39.1% 13,543             16,980             (8,272)              
53510 TRAVEL AND TRAINING 10,000             312                   4,096                41.0% 5,904                663                   3,434                
53512 PRINTING SERVICES -                        -                        -                        0.0% -                        -                        -                        
53514 TML INSURANCE 13,000             -                        15,187             116.8% (2,187)              12,135             3,052                

% of 
Budget

INC/(DEC)  
Prior Year

*** TOTAL REVENUE ***

*** EXPENSE CATEGORY TOTALS ***

*** EXPENSE CATEGORY TOTALS ***

Budget 
Balance

Prior Year                
Y-T-D Actual

Current 
Budget Current Period Current Y-T-D



Palestine Economic Development Corporation
Financial Statement

As of December 31, 2024

% of 
Budget

INC/(DEC)  
Prior Year

Budget 
Balance

Prior Year                
Y-T-D Actual

Current 
Budget Current Period Current Y-T-D

53515 INSURANCE AND BONDS 1,100                -                        -                        0.0% 1,100                -                        -                        
53520 JANITORIAL SERVICES 4,100                -                        600                   14.6% 3,500                1,225                (625)                 
53617 PROJECTS SUPPORT GRANTS 300,000           -                        -                        0.0% 300,000           -                        -                        
53662 ATH COMPLEX IMPROVEMENTS GRANT 25,000             -                        -                        0.0% 25,000             -                        -                        
53663 COM DEV GRANT-GENERAL PROGRAM 75,000             -                        -                        0.0% 75,000             -                        -                        
53664 BLDG IMPROVEMENT GRANT PROG 250,000           21,338             84,865             33.9% 165,135           13,100             71,765             

909,680           32,110             128,442           14.1% 781,238           72,933             55,508             

MAINTENANCE & REPAIR
54010 BLDG/STRUCTURE/GRNDS MAINTENANCE 100,000           3,008                3,665                3.7% 96,335             15,115             (11,450)            

100,000           3,008               3,665               3.7% 96,335             15,115             (11,450)            

UTILITIES
54500 UTILITIES - ELECTRIC 78,000             4,661                6,788                8.7% 71,212             1,167                5,621                
54501 UTILITIES - WATER/SEWER 4,000                381                   893                   22.3% 3,107                700                   193                   
54503 PHONES/INTERNET 3,000                244                   799                   26.6% 2,201                1,241                (442)                 

85,000             5,287               8,480               10.0% 76,520             3,108               5,621               

OTHER/MISC.
55009 BUSINESS RETENTION/EXPANSION 15,000             -                        -                        0.0% 15,000             308                   (308)                 
55200 MEETING MEALS 3,500                407                   485                   13.9% 3,015                865                   (380)                 

18,500             407                   485                   2.6% 18,015             1,173               (688)                 

DEBT SERVICE
56005 REVENUE BOND PRIN PAYMENT 563,374           -                        -                        0.0% 563,374           (5,687)              5,687                
56050 INTEREST- BONDED DEBT 168,554           -                        (32,879)            -19.5% 201,433           -                        (32,879)            
56054 PAY/ESCROW AGENT FEES -                        -                        -                        0.0% -                        -                        -                        

731,928           -                        (32,879)            -4.5% 764,807           (5,687)              (27,192)            

CAPITAL OUTLAY
58000 CAPITAL OUTLAY -                        -                        -                        0.0% -                        -                        -                        

-                        -                        -                        0.0% -                        -                        -                        

INTERFUND ACTIVITY
59010 TRANSFER TO/FROM GENERAL FUND -                        2,614                7,843                0.0% (7,843)              -                        7,843                
59570 TRANSFER TO FLEET FUND 250                   -                        175                   69.9% 75                     175                   

-                        2,614               7,843               0.0% (7,843)              -                        7,843               

2,094,042        -    62,016             -    171,951           -    8.2% -    1,922,091        -    129,141           -    43,027             

PROJECTED ENDING FUND BALANCE 3,752,472$     4,232,767$     3,008,490$     

*** EXPENSE CATEGORY TOTALS ***

*** EXPENSE CATEGORY TOTALS ***

*** EXPENSE CATEGORY TOTALS ***

*** TOTAL EXPENSE ***

*** EXPENSE CATEGORY TOTALS ***

*** EXPENSE CATEGORY TOTALS ***

*** EXPENSE CATEGORY TOTALS ***

*** EXPENSE CATEGORY TOTALS ***



Palestine Economic Development Corporation
Financial Statement

As of December 31, 2024

CITY PEDC TOTAL CITY PEDC TOTAL CITY PEDC TOTAL
83.33% 16.67% 100.00% 83.33% 16.67% 100.00% 83.33% 16.67% 100.00%

October 489,264$     97,876$        587,141$     587,141$         October 462,340$     92,490$        554,831$     554,831$         October 581,389$     116,306$     697,695$     697,695$         
November 695,073        139,048        834,121$     1,421,262        November 583,576$     116,743        700,320$     1,255,151        November -                     -                     697,695           
December 713,079        142,650        855,729$     2,276,991        December 761,258$     152,288        913,546$     2,168,697        December -                     -                     697,695           
January 488,228        97,669          585,897$     2,862,888        January 489,699$     97,963          587,663$     2,756,359        January -                     -                     697,695           
February 479,957        96,014          575,972$     3,438,860        February 531,445$     106,315        637,760$     3,394,119        February -                     -                     697,695           
March 615,561        123,142        738,703$     4,177,563        March 645,886$     129,208        775,094$     4,169,213        March -                     -                     697,695           
April 491,534        98,330          589,865$     4,767,428        April 544,061$     108,838        652,899$     4,822,112        April -                     -                     697,695           
May 546,115        109,249        655,365$     5,422,792        May 546,384$     109,303        655,687$     5,477,799        May -                     -                     697,695           
June 647,699        129,571        777,270$     6,200,063        June 609,622$     121,954        731,575$     6,209,374        June -                     -                     697,695           
July 509,983        102,021        612,004$     6,812,067        July 557,769$     111,581        669,349$     6,878,723        July -                     -                     697,695           
August 591,982        118,425        710,407$     7,522,474        August 517,921$     103,609        621,530$     7,500,254        August -                     -                     697,695           
September 581,058        116,239        697,297$     8,219,771        September 666,098$     133,252        799,350$     8,299,604        September -                     -                     697,695           

6,849,535$  1,370,236$  8,219,771$  6,916,060$  1,383,544$  8,299,604$  581,389$     116,306$     697,695$     

Sales Tax History:  Fiscal Years 2023 - 2025

FY 2023 FY 2024
CUMULATIVE 

TOTAL
CUMULATIVE 

TOTAL

FY 2025
CUMULATIVE 

TOTAL

FY 2025 $697,695
FY 2024 $554,831 $700,320 $913,546 $587,663 $637,760 $775,094 $652,899 $655,687 $731,575 $669,349 $621,530 $799,350
FY 2023 $587,141 $834,121 $855,729 $585,897 $575,972 $738,703 $589,865 $655,365 $777,270 $612,004 $710,407 $697,297

 $-

 $100,000

 $200,000

 $300,000

 $400,000

 $500,000

 $600,000

 $700,000

 $800,000

 $900,000

 $1,000,000



Palestine Economic Development Corporation
Financial Statement

As of December 31, 2024

Palestine Athens Henderson Jacksonville Kilgore Mount
Pleasant

Sulphur
Springs

$ Sales Tax Received Dec-2024 697,694.93 882,246.43 852,746.95 401,370.14 857,773.15 726,655.80 765,665.87
% Inc(+) Dec(-) from prior year 25.75% 25.83% 12.80% 37.33% 3.29% 1.43% 22.73%

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

30.00%

35.00%

40.00%

 $-

 $100,000

 $200,000

 $300,000

 $400,000

 $500,000

 $600,000

 $700,000

 $800,000

 $900,000

 $1,000,000

Sales Tax FY 2025 - October- Period 1



Cash

Investments

Cash
Investments

Net Accretion & Amortization
Purchases
Maturities/Calls
Changes to Market Value

Net Monthly Activity

Cash

Investments

Palestine Economic Development Corporation
Summary of Cash and Investment Activity
For the Month Ending: December 31, 2024

Par Value Market Value
Ratio Market-to-Book 

Value

$3,448,355.61 $3,448,355.61 100.00%

Activity

$54,934.63 $54,934.63

Total 3,696,694.66              $3,696,694.66 100.00%

Beginning Balances

$248,339.05 248,339.05$               100.00%

$9,924.49 $9,924.49

-                                4,228.98                      

$64,859.12 $69,088.10

Ending Balances

Total 3,761,553.78$            3,765,782.76$            100.11%

$303,273.68 303,273.68                 100.00%

$3,458,280.10 $3,462,509.08 100.12%



Price Yield Principal

N/A N/A N/A Cash In Bank 303,274$             100.000$  1.000% 303,274$        303,274$             303,274$             -$                   1

N/A N/A N/A TEXSTAR Investment Pool 2,665,868            100.000$  4.560% 2,665,868$    2,665,868$          2,665,868$          -                     1

12/23/2022 12/23/2024 9497634P8 Wells Fargo Bank 249,000               4.50% 100.000    4.500% 249,000          249,000               248,385               -                     -8

7/19/2024 7/21/2025 89841MBG1 Trustone Financial Credit Union 248,000               5.10% 100.000    5.100% 248,000          248,000               248,640               -                     202

7/31/2024 7/31/2025 291916AQ7 Empower Fed Credit Union 244,000               5.1 100.000    5.100% 244,000          244,000               244,703               212

Palestine Economic Development Corporation
Summary of Cash and Investment Activity
For the Month Ending: December 31, 2024

Purchase 
Date

Maturity 
Date

CUSIP / CD 
Number Security Type Par Value Coupon

Purchase
Book Value Market Value Gain / (Loss)

Days to 
Maturity

3,710,141$          3,710,869$          -$                   28

Benchmark - 4-Week Coupon Equivalent Treasury Bill Rate 4.290%

Totals/Weighted Average 3,710,141$          4.337% 3,710,141$    



i

1 to 30 days 2,969,141$        80.0%
31 to 90 days 249,000              6.7%
91 to 180 days 0.0%
181 days to 1 year 492,000              13.3%
1 to 2 years 0.0%
More than 2 years 0.0%

3,710,141$        100.0%

Cash 303,274$            8.2%
US Agencies & Instrumentalities -                           0.0%
Eligible Investment Pools 2,665,868          71.9%
Certificates of Deposit 741,000              20.0%
US Treasury Bills / Notes / Bonds -                           0.0%
Money Market Mutual Funds 0.0%
Repurchase Agreements -                           0.0%

3,710,141$        100.0%

Distribution by Investment Type

Book Value Percent

Palestine Economic Development Corporation
Summary of Cash and Investment Activity
For the Month Ending: December 31, 2024

Distribution by Maturity

Par Value Percent

0.0%

20.0%

40.0%

60.0%

80.0%

100.0%

Distribution by Maturity

1 to 30 days 31 to 90 days 91 to 180 days

181 days to 1 year 1 to 2 years More than 2 years

Cash
8%

Distribution by Investment Type



Cash $286.90
Investment Pool 6,597.51$    
CDs 3,326.98$    

Total Monthly Interest $10,211.39

This monthly report is in full compliance with the investment
strategies as established in the City's Investment
Policies and the Public Funds Investment Act, Chapter
2256, Texas Government Code.

Andrew Sibai
Finance Director

Palestine Economic Development Corporation
Monthly Interest

For the Month Ending: December 31, 2024



Agenda
Date: 01/14/2025

To: Palestine Economic Development Corporation
From: Lisa Bowman, Economic Development Admin
Agenda
Item:

Discussion and possible action regarding the Downtown Grant Perf. Agreement with
Mabrico Phil Johnson, sole proprietor d/b/a Dogwood Embroidery.

SUMMARY:
Discussion and possible action regarding the Downtown Grant Perf. Agreement with Mabrico Phil
Johnson, sole proprietor d/b/a Dogwood Embroidery.
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Staff recommends the board approve the final payment to Mabrico Phil Johnson, sole proprietor d/b/a
Dogwood Embroidery for work completed under their Grant Performance Agreement.
 

Attachments
P. Johnson completion docs 





























Agenda
Date: 01/14/2025

To: Palestine Economic Development Corporation
From: Lisa Bowman, Economic Development Admin
Agenda
Item:

Discussion and possible action regarding the Downtown Grant Performance Agreement
with Thorough Food Company, LLC.

SUMMARY:
Discussion and possible action regarding the Downtown Grant Performance Agreement with Thorough
Food Company, LLC.
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Staff recommends the board approve the final payment to Thorough Food Company, LLC for work
completed under their Grant Performance Agreement.
 

Attachments
Thorough Foods completion docs 
Completion Pictures 











































Agenda
Date: 01/14/2025

To: Palestine Economic Development Corporation
From: Lisa Bowman, Economic Development Admin
Agenda
Item:

Consideration and possible action regarding an amendment of the Downtown Grant Perf.
Agreement for Palestine Community Theater, Inc.

SUMMARY:
Consideration and possible action regarding an amendment of the Downtown Grant Perf. Agreement for
Palestine Community Theater, Inc.
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Staff recommends the board consider and take possible action regarding an amendment of the
Downtown Grant Perf. Agreement for Palestine Community Theater, Inc.
 

Attachments
Palestine Theater Amendment 



FIRST AMENDMENT TO DOWNTOWN GRANT PERFORMANCE 

AGREEMENT 

 

 

  THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO DOWNTOWN GRANT PERFORMANCE 

AGREEMENT (“First Amendment”) is made effective the 14th day of January 2025, (“Effective 

Date”) by and among Palestine Economic Development Corporation, a Texas non-profit Type B 

economic development corporation (“PEDC”), and Palestine Community Theater, Inc. (“PCT”). 

The PEDC, and the PCT may be referred to herein as the “Parties” and, each separately, as a 

“Party.” 

 

 RECITALS 

 

A. The Parties entered into that certain Downtown Grant Performance Incentive 

Agreement executed by PEDC on April 23, 2024 (“Performance Agreement”), which is 

incorporated herein by reference. 

 

B. Unless otherwise defined herein, all capitalized terms used in this First Amendment 

shall have the same meanings as defined in the Performance Agreement. 

 

C. The PCT has requested a ninety (90) day extension to the requirement in the 

Performance Agreement that they will secure completion of all the improvements, including 

replacement of an HVAC system at the business property of The Historic Texas Theater, that being 

213 W. Crawford St, Palestine, TX 75801, before January 17, 2025. 

 

D. The PCT understands that payment of the remaining 50% of his total grant award 

will not be made until a finding of completion of all improvements is made by the PEDC board of 

directors. 

 

E. The Parties wish to modify the Performance Agreement to extend the deadline to 

ensure the successful completion of the obligations and requirements under the Performance 

Agreement. 

 

F. The ultimate purposes and goals of the Performance Agreement for encouraging 

economic development shall still be met; therefore, the extension of deadlines is warranted to 

accomplish those purposes and goals. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements set forth 

herein, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are 

hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 

 

1. The above-stated recitals are true and correct and are incorporated herein by 

reference and made a part hereof. 

 

2. Section 1.4 of the Performance Agreement is amended as follows: 
 



 

 2 

APPLICANT shall secure completion of the improvements in compliance with its 

APPLICATION, the GRANT APPLICATION APPROVAL, and the GRANT 

PROGRAM before April 17, 2025. 
 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this First Amendment to be 

executed as of the Effective Date. 

 

      Palestine Economic Development Corporation 

      (a Texas non-profit Type B economic  

development corporation)                                                                      

 

 

 

 

      By: ______________________________________ 

            Name: Dan Bochsler 

Its: President 

 

 

      Dogwood Embroidery 

 

 

 

      By: ______________________________________ 

             Name: Linda McDonald 

       Its: Board Member  

 

 

      City of Palestine 

 

 

      By: ______________________________________ 

             Name: Mitchell Jordan 

       Its: Mayor 

 

 

 

 

This is the signature page to that certain First Amendment to Performance Agreement 

effective January 14, 2025. 



Agenda
Date: 01/14/2025

To: Palestine Economic Development Corporation
From: Lisa Bowman, Economic Development Admin
Agenda
Item:

Consideration and possible action regarding an Interlocal Agreement with the Texas State
Railroad Authority.

SUMMARY:
Consideration and possible action regarding an Interlocal Agreement with the Texas State Railroad
Authority.
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Staff recommends the board consider and take possible action regarding an Interlocal Agreement with
the Texas State Railroad Authority.
 

Attachments
TSRA Interlocal Agreement 



 

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------------------------- 

Interlocal Agreement  1 of 14 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN THE PALESTINE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION AND 

THE TEXAS STATE RAILROAD AUTHORITY 

 

This INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into by and 

between the Palestine Economic Development Corporation, a Texas non-profit Type B 

economic development corporation (“PEDC”), created and operated pursuant to the provisions of 

Chapters 501 and 505, Local Government Code, as amended, and the Texas State Railroad 

Authority, a special district created under Section 59, Article XVI, Texas Constitution, and Texas  

Special District Local Laws Code Chapter 4501 (“TSRA”). Collectively, the PEDC and TSRA 

may be referred to herein as the “Parties” and, each separately, as a “Party.” 

 

RECITALS 

 

WHEREAS, The Interlocal Cooperation Act (the “Act”), Chapter 791 of the Texas Government 

Code, as amended, authorizes the PEDC and TSRA to enter into an interlocal agreement to provide 

a governmental function or service; and  

 

WHEREAS, the PEDC has established policies to adopt and provide for such reasonable projects, 

as are permitted by law, to attract industry, to create and retain primary jobs, and to promote or 

develop new or expanded business enterprises within the City of Palestine, Anderson County, 

Texas (the “City”), and, thereby, expand the growth and enhance the economic stability of the 

City; and, 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Texas Local Government Code Chapters 501 and 505, the PEDC may 

directly incentivize the economic development of the City through the development and 

diversification of the economy, the elimination of unemployment and underemployment, and the 

development and expansion of commerce within the State of Texas; and,  

 

WHEREAS, TSRA desires and proposes to invest in the City by constructing rail infrastructure 

improvements and by performing commercial transloading operations and railcar storage within 

the City of Palestine, Anderson County, Texas, on the Property as defined below, with a capital 

investment of $1.3 million (the “Project”); and,  

 

WHEREAS, consistent with its public purpose under Texas Special District Local Laws Code 

Chapter 4501, TSRA seeks to complete the Project to diversify the economy, lower unemployment 

and underemployment, and to develop or expand commerce; and 

 

WHEREAS, PEDC is the owner of the Property and desires to grant TSRA access to the Property 

for the Project, and TSRA desires to obtain access to the Property to facilitate the Project; and 

  

WHEREAS, the PEDC desires and intends to grant TSRA the exclusive right to perform 

transloading operations and railcar storage in exchange for TSRA’s construction of the Project on 

the Property; and, 

 



 

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------------------------- 

Interlocal Agreement  2 of 14 

WHEREAS, the Parties entered into a Non-Binding Letter of Intent, approved by the PEDC’s 

Board of Directors on February 1, 2024, attached hereto as Exhibit A, whereby the Parties 

negotiated and informally captured the intent and agreement of the Parties pertaining to the Project, 

which the Parties now intend to formally translate into this Agreement; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the Parties enter this Agreement with the intention of entering into one or more 

related Economic Development Performance Agreements in the future; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the PEDC’s Board of Directors has found that this Agreement and the expenditures 

proposed hereunder will further economic investment in the City and are required, suitable, and 

necessary to promote and develop new and expanding business enterprise and to maintain a higher 

level of employment, economic activity, and stability; and, 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual benefits and promises contained herein, and 

for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 

acknowledged by the Parties, the PEDC and TSRA each agree to as follows:  

 

AGREEMENT 

 

ARTICLE 1 

Project 

 

1.01 Property. TSRA shall construct rail infrastructure improvements on the Property, that 

being approximately 270 acres in Anderson County, Texas, and more specifically 

described in Exhibit B (the “Property”). 

1.02 Project Design.  PEDC shall design the Project to serve the needs of prospective 

commercial cargo enterprises (“Prospects”) and the construction of railroad 

improvements and a commercial transloading facility.  TSRA shall have the right to 

designate a rail switching operator (“Operator”) that may assist with Project Design. 

PEDC may incorporate feedback and input from the TSRA in the Project Design.   

 

ARTICLE II  

Authorization and Findings 

 

2.01 Recitals. The foregoing Recitals are hereby incorporated into the body of this Agreement 

and shall be considered part of the mutual covenants, representations, consideration, and 

promises that bind the Parties. 

 

2.02 Agreement. The PEDC and TSRA enter into this Agreement in anticipation of the PEDC’s 

provision of a direct incentive to TSRA under the Project which shall be memorialized in 

a separate formal Economic Development Performance Agreement upon approval of the 

Project Design and the completion of construction of the Project Design.  

 

2.03 Authority of Parties. Each Party represents and warrants to the other Party that it has all 

requisite power and authority to execute, deliver, and to perform its obligations under this 

Commented [CT1]: The PEDC board decided to go ahead 
and fund the project design so we could better control the 
timeline and layout of the improvements. I’ve modified this 
article and other dependent terms in the agreement. 



 

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------------------------- 

Interlocal Agreement  3 of 14 

Agreement; and, upon execution of this Agreement, this Agreement will constitute valid 

and binding legal obligations of each party. 

 

2.04 Fair Compensation. The Parties acknowledge and agree that each of the covenants 

contemplated by this Agreement fairly compensates the performing Party for the services 

or functions to be performed under this Agreement. 

 

ARTICLE III 

Definitions 

 

3.01 Definitions. As used in this Agreement, the following terms shall have the meaning set 

forth below:  

  

(a) “Construction Period” means that period of time that TSRA is required to 

construct the railroad improvements. The “Construction Period” shall begin on 

the Effective Date of this Agreement and shall continue until all construction is 

completed which shall be on or before December 31, 2026. 

 

(b) The “Cure Period” is that period during which, upon receipt of written notice of 

default, the defaulting Party must correct and cure its failure to perform under this 

Agreement. The Cure Period shall begin upon the date of written notice of the 

default. The Cure Period shall then last for a period of thirty (30) days thereafter.  

 

(h) A “Default” is a material breach of this Agreement – that allows for the termination 

of this Agreement – that occurs if TSRA (i) fails to complete construction of the  

railroad improvements and a commercial transloading facility as specified in the 

Project Design approved by the PEDC on or before December 31, 2026; (ii) fails 

to comply with any one or all of the terms of this Agreement; or, (iii) if any 

representation by TSRA in this Agreement is found to be false or misleading in any 

respect.  

 

(i) The “Effective Date” of this Agreement as used herein shall mean the date on 

which this Agreement is last executed by TSRA or the PEDC. 

 

(j) An “Event of Bankruptcy or Insolvency” means the dissolution or termination of 

TSRA’s existence as an ongoing business, insolvency, the appointment of a 

receiver for any of TSRA's property or inventory and such appointment is not 

terminated within ninety (90) days after such appointment is initially made.  

 

(m) “Incentives” are those exclusive economic development benefits received by 

TSRA, from the PEDC, as provided for in this Agreement, in consideration for the 

representations, promises, and covenants of TSRA. 

 

 



 

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------------------------- 

Interlocal Agreement  4 of 14 

3.02 Terms Not Listed. There may be terms not listed herein this Article that appear in this 

Agreement. Those terms not listed herein this Article shall be provided those meanings 

assigned herein this Agreement or as is otherwise obvious or stated. 

 

 

ARTICLE IV 

TSRA’s Obligations 

 

4.01 Obligations of TSRA. In consideration of receiving those economic development 

incentives provided to TSRA by the PEDC and as described in this Agreement, TSRA 

agrees it shall:  

 

(a) Construction of Rail Improvements and Commercial Transloading Facility.  

TSRA shall build the rail improvements and transloading facility on the Property.  

TSRA shall have access to the Property solely for the construction of the rail 

improvements and the commercial transloading facility consistent with the Plan 

Design during the Construction Period. Access to the Property may include the 

storage of construction materials, the parking of vehicles and construction 

equipment, the use of a mobile office, and other related construction activities. 

During the Construction Period, TSRA shall provide the PEDC a copy of all 

required documents submitted to the City for the construction of the rail 

improvements and commercial transloading facility. During the Construction 

Period, TSRA shall submit a quarterly report, in writing, to the PEDC detailing 

the progress of the construction. 

(b) Capital Investment. TSRA shall, through its designated Operator, make a capital 

investment of One Million Three Hundred Thousand Dollars and No Cents 

($1,300,000.00), with Six Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars and No Cents 

($650,000.00) committed during Fiscal Year 2024-2025, and Six Hundred Fifty 

Thousand Dollars and No Cents ($650,000.00) committed during Fiscal Year 2025-

2026 with such capital investment consisting of real property improvements 

pursuant to the Project Design (TSRA’s “Capital Investment”). At the PEDC’s 

request, TSRA shall provide financial records which may include but is not limited 

to, tax returns, receipts, cancelled checks, and bank statements, evidencing that 

TSRA or its Operator has expended not less than $1.3 million in real estate property 

improvements on or at the Property, with such improvements being on or at the 

Property and being in conformity with the Project Design and the City’s Home Rule 

Charter and Code of Ordinances. 

 

(c) Project Design Approval. Prior to commencing construction, TSRA must first 

obtain all applicable approvals and permits by the City of Palestine and any other 

regulatory entities. 

 

Commented [CT2]: Language change requested by TSRA 
since they are a tex-exempt entity. 

Commented [HC3]: If PEDC is now doing the Project 
Design, shouldn’t we also change this? 



 

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------------------------- 

Interlocal Agreement  5 of 14 

(d) Assumption of Risk.  TSRA shall assume all responsibility, risk, and liability for 

all activities on the Property related to the construction of the Project Design, and 

the provision of its transloading or railcar storage operations. 

 

(e) Uninterrupted Rail Services.  TSRA shall ensure that an interchange agreement 

remains in place between the TSRA’s Operator and the Union Pacific Railroad 

Company. TSRA will ensure that any existing or future interchange agreements 

between a common carrier and TSRA’s Operator or any other business enterprises 

that utilize TSRA’s services on the Property comply with Common Carrier 

Obligations pursuant to the Interstate Commerce Act of 1887, the Staggers Rail Act 

of 1980, and U.S. Code Title 49, which are incorporated by reference, by requiring 

delivery and acceptance of railcars from the TSRA in a timely manner to ensure 

uninterrupted rail services. Should rail service operations on the Property cease for 

any reason (except for those reasons outlined in Section 11.08 that would not 

constitute the need for a replacement operator), the TSRA shall immediately file a 

petition with the Surface Transportation Board to grant emergency operating 

authority to a replacement operator to maintain uninterrupted rail services to the 

Property. 

 

   

(f) Legal Compliance. TSRA, at its sole cost and expense, shall comply with all 

governmental laws, ordinances, and regulations applicable to the use of the 

Property, and at its sole cost and expense shall promptly comply with all 

governmental orders and directives for the correction, prevention, and abatement 

of nuisances in, upon, or connected with the Property. TSRA may not use the 

Property for any activity that violates any applicable federal, state, or local law, 

including but not limited to those laws related to air quality, water quality, 

hazardous materials, wastewater, waste disposal, air emissions, or other 

environmental matters.  During the Construction Period, TSRA may not use the 

Property for the permanent or temporary storage of any hazardous material which 

means any pollutant, toxic substance, hazardous waste, hazardous material, 

hazardous substance, solvent, or oil as defined by any federal, state, or local 

environmental law, regulation, ordinance, or rule existing as of the date of this 

Agreement or later enacted. After the Construction Period, TSRA may only use the 

Property for the permanent or temporary storage of any hazardous material, as 

defined herein, in a manner and quantity necessary for the ordinary performance of 

TSRA’s operations, and then in compliance with all applicable laws. TSRA 

SHALL DEFEND, INDEMNIFY, AND HOLD HARMLESS THE PEDC FROM 

AND AGAINST ANY AND ALL CLAIMS, DEMANDS, LIABILITIES, 

CAUSES OF ACTION, SUITS, JUDGMENTS, DAMAGES AND EXPENSES 

(INCLUDING REASONABLE ATTORNEYS’ FEES AND COSTS OF 

CLEANUP AND REMEDIATION) ARISING FROM TSRA’S FAILURE TO 

COMPLY WITH THE PROVISONS OF THIS SECTION. THIS INDEMNITY 

PROVISION SHALL SURVIVE THE TERMINATION OR EXPIRATION OF 

THIS AGREEMENT. 

 

Commented [HC4]: Should we delete this as well? 

Commented [CT5]: I ran into a snag with this. Some items 
listed under our Force Majeure would constitute a scenario 
where we would want TSRA to be obligated to file a 
petition. A strike would be one good example. I’ve put 
language here that address is the best that I can, but if you 
think this could be drafted better, have at it. 

Commented [CT6]: Outside of the construction period, 
this term will not work for the TSRA. Some of the materials 
that they already transload for a local surfactant 
manufacturer are hazardous. How can we address? 

Commented [HC7R6]: Try this. 



 

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------------------------- 

Interlocal Agreement  6 of 14 

(g) Maintenance. All maintenance of the Property during the Construction Period shall 

be at TSRA’s sole cost and expense. 

 

(h) Surrender of the Property. At the end of Term or upon termination of this 

Agreement pursuant to Article VII, TSRA shall surrender the Property to PEDC in 

the same or better condition as it was received. TSRA will leave the Property in a 

clean condition free of all trash, debris, personal property, hazardous materials, and 

environmental contaminants. 

 

(i) Alterations, Additions, and Improvements. No clearing, removing of trees, 

alteration, additions, or improvements to the Property, other than as contained in 

the approved Project Design, shall be made by TSRA without PEDC’s written 

approval. 

 

(j) Insurance. During the Construction Period, TSRA shall procure and maintain, at 

its sole expense, comprehensive commercial general liability insurance on the 

Property with minimum policy limits $1,000,000.00 per claim / $2,000,000.00 

aggregate on account of bodily injuries or death of one or more persons and 

property damage insurance. TSRA shall designate PEDC as an additional insured 

on its commercial general liability policy. At the request of PEDC, TSRA shall 

furnish PEDC with a certificate of insurance reflecting each policy of insurance 

required to be maintained by TSRA. All required insurance shall continue for at 

least sixty (60) days after the Construction Period, to include performance of all 

warranty work. Thereafter, TSRA shall procure and maintain sufficient comprehensive 

general liability insurance for the operation of the commercial transloading facility. 

 

 

(k) Waiver of Subrogation.  It is agreed by the undersigned parties that if the Property 

shall be damaged or destroyed by an insured peril, then, and to the extent allowable 

without invalidating such insurance, and whether or not such damage or destruction 

was caused by negligence of the other party, neither party shall have any liability 

to any insurer of the other for or in respect of such damage or destruction.  

 

(l) Utility Services. During the Construction Period, TSRA shall pay the cost of all 

utility services during the Term as well as during any period in which TSRA is in 

possession of the Property. 

 

 

ARTICLE V 

PEDC’s Obligations 

 

5.01 Property Access. PEDC shall provide TSRA access to the Property solely for the 

construction of the rail improvements, the use of the rail improvements, and the 

commercial transloading facility consistent with the Project Design during the Term of this 

Agreement. Access to the Property may include the storage of construction materials, the 

Commented [CT8]: This references a lease. Would we 
have this language here with no other references to lease in 
the agreement? 

Commented [HC9R8]: I stole some of this language from 
a lease agreement.  See if this works better. 

Commented [CT10R8]: See above comment regarding 
hazardous materials. 

Commented [HC11R8]: See if the addition above works 
for you. This is challenging because here, we are referring to 
the entirety of the Property, but we know PEDC will be 
signing over a portion of the Property to TSRA... 

Commented [HC12]: What kind of insurance do you want 
TSRA to maintain during the term of this Agreement? This is 
example language from a lease agreement that might be 
helpful.  Also see the Waiver of Subrogation language 
below. 

Commented [CT13R12]: I’ll have to discuss with the 
TSRA. But we can leave this language as is for now. 

Commented [CT14]: I’ve understood this term to mean 
during the construction period but on closer look, I’m not 
sure of that anymore. Can we narrow this language a bit so 
that there is no ambiguity that would suggest TSRA would 
ever be responsible for any utilities except for its own? 



 

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------------------------- 

Interlocal Agreement  7 of 14 

parking of vehicles and construction equipment, the use of a mobile office, and other 

related construction activities. 

 

5.02 Exclusive Right to Perform Transloading Operations and Railcar Storage.  Upon 

execution of this Agreement, PEDC shall grant TSRA the exclusive right to perform 

commercial transloading operations and railcar storage on the Property.  During the Term 

of this Agreement, PEDC shall not recruit any other dedicated commercial transloading or 

railcar storage operators.  Any transloading or railcar storage operations facilitated or 

required by any business enterprise on the Property are understood by the Parties to be 

incidental to that business enterprise’s operations and not in conflict with TSRA’s 

exclusive rights granted hereunder. 

 

5.03 Assignment.  TSRA may assign its exclusive right to perform transloading operations and 

railcar storage on the Facility Property and its other rights and responsibilities to its 

Operator, but any assignment must include a provision stating that, in the event TSRA 

terminates its agreement with said Operator, all rights and responsibilities revert back to 

TSRA. 

 

ARTICLE VI 

Term 

 

6.01 This Agreement shall be effective as of the Effective Date and shall terminate the earlier 

of: (l) the date TSRA has completed construction on all rail infrastructure improvements 

in accordance with the Project Design and the PEDC has conveyed all of the Property 

identified in the Project Design by means of sale or incentive; or (2) as terminated pursuant 

to Article VII below. 

 

ARTICLE VII 

Events of Default; Termination 

 

7.01 Declaration of Default. During the period which this Agreement is effective, TSRA is in 

default if it: (i) fails to complete construction of the railroad improvements and the 

commercial transloading facility as specified in the Project Design approved by the PEDC 

on or before December 31, 2026; (ii) fails to comply with any one or all of the terms of this 

Agreement; or, (iii) if any representation by TSRA in this Agreement is found to be false 

or misleading in any respect. 

 

7.02 Notice and Opportunity to Cure. Unless otherwise stated herein this Agreement, if any 

Party fails to meet its obligations under this Agreement during the Term, the other Party 

will terminate this Agreement. Prior to such termination, the non-defaulting Party shall 

provide written notice to the defaulting Party of the default and intent to terminate this 

Agreement. Upon receipt of written notice of default, the defaulting Party shall be allowed 

a period of thirty (30) days to correct and cure such failure (the “Cure Period”). 

 

7.03 Termination.  

 



 

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------------------------- 

Interlocal Agreement  8 of 14 

(a) Default. In the event TSRA defaults on or causes a default of this Agreement, this 

Agreement may then be terminated by the PEDC pursuant to Sections 7.01 and 

7.02. 

 

(b) Discontinuation of Operations. In the event TSRA discontinues the operation of 

the commercial transloading and railcar storage facility for any reason other than a 

force majeure event, as defined in this Agreement, for a period of more than one 

(1) year during the Term, then this Agreement shall terminate. 

 

(c) Bankruptcy or Insolvency. TSRA shall be deemed in default under this Agreement, 

which shall be deemed a breach hereunder, if TSRA experiences an Event of 

Bankruptcy or Insolvency; however, if TSRA retains ownership of its assets and 

maintains business operations under a bankruptcy reorganization, such event shall 

not constitute a default or breach of this Agreement.  

 

7.04 Funding. The Parties understand and acknowledge that the funding of this Agreement is 

contained in each Party’s annual budget and is subject to the approval of each Party in each 

fiscal year. The Parties further agree that should the governing body of any Party fail to 

approve a budget that includes sufficient funds for the continuation of this Agreement, or 

should the governing body of any Party fail to certify funds for any reason, then and upon 

the occurrence of such event, this Agreement shall automatically terminate as to that Party 

and that Party shall then have no further obligation to the other Party. When the funds 

budgeted or certified during any fiscal year by a Party to discharge its obligations under 

this Agreement are expended, the other Party’s sole and exclusive remedy shall be to 

terminate this Agreement. 

 

ARTICLE VIII 

Future Potential Economic Development Incentives 

 

8.01 Consistent with Chapters 501 and 505 of the Texas Local Government Code, particularly 

that legislative intent expressed in Section 501.004 of the Texas Local Government Code, 

the Project shall promote and develop new and expanded business enterprises through the 

development and expansion of business, commerce, and industry and, as a result, 

maintaining a higher level of employment, economic activity, and stability. The Project, 

Property, and Project Design are all intended to attract prospective commercial cargo 

enterprises ("Prospects"). To be considered for the receipt of certain economic 

development incentives, those which may include but not be limited to land and other direct 

cash incentives consisting of the expenditure, abatement, and rebate of certain tax revenues, 

a Prospect must (1) make a minimum capital investment of $1 million, or more, in 

furtherance of the Project for each acre of Property to be considered as a part of economic 

development incentives and (2) commit to the creation of, at least, twenty (20) fulltime 

primary jobs at peak employment. The PEDC shall have the right to approve or deny the 

provision of any and all economic development incentives, those which may include but 

not be limited to land and other direct cash incentives consisting of the expenditure, 

abatement, and rebate of certain tax revenues, to a Prospect or to the TSRA, at the sole 

discretion of the PEDC's Board of Directors. 



 

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------------------------- 

Interlocal Agreement  9 of 14 

 

8.02  Any economic development incentives, those which may include but not be limited 

to land and other direct cash incentives consisting of the expenditure, abatement, 

and rebate of certain tax revenues, considered for existing business enterprises 

that have operations located in the immediate vicinity of the Property will not be 

subject to the capital investment and job creation requirements outlined in this 

Agreement. Any economic development incentives considered for these enterprises 

will be negotiated separately from this agreement and in accordance with Chapters 

50 l and 505 of the Texas Local Government Code. Those business enterprises are 

understood to be the TSRA, the TSRA's Operator and Verdant Specialty Solutions 

US LLC. 

8.03 If the PEDC enters into negotiations to sell portions of the Property without any 

economic development incentives, it will only consider the sale of the 

property at a price equal to or greater than the fair market value at the time of sale, as 

determined by a Texas Certified General Appraiser selected by the PEDC, and as 

required by Texas law. 

 

 

ARTICLE IX 

Indemnification 

 

TSRA, IN PERFORMING ITS OBLIGATIONS UNDER THIS AGREEMENT, IS 

ACTING INDEPENDENTLY, AND THE PEDC ASSUMES NO RESPONSIBILITIES OR 

LIABILITIES TO THIRD PARTIES IN CONNECTION WITH THE PROJECT DESIGN, 

CONSTRUCTION, RAILCAR STORAGE, OR OPERATION OF A TRANSLOADING 

FACILITY ON THE PROPERTY, OPERATOR IMPROVEMENTS OR OPERATIONS, 

OR ANY OTHER IMPROVEMENTS TO THE PROPERTY. TSRA AGREES TO 

INDEMNIFY, DEFEND, AND HOLD HARMLESS THE PEDC, ITS OFFICERS, 

AGENTS, EMPLOYEES, AND VOLUNTEERS IN BOTH THEIR PUBLIC AND 

PRIVATE CAPACITIES FROM AND AGAINST CLAIMS, SUITS, DEMANDS, LOSSES, 

DAMAGES, CAUSES OF ACTION, AND LIABILITY OF EVERY KIND, INCLUDING 

BUT NOT LIMITED TO EXPENSES OF LITIGATION OR SETTLEMENT, COURT 

COSTS, AND ATTORNEY’S FEES WHICH MAY ARISE DUE TO ANY DEATH OR 

INJURY TO A PERSON OR THE LOSS OF, LOSS OF USE OF, OR DAMAGE TO 

PROPERTY ARISING OUT OF OR OCCURRING AS A CONSEQUENCE OF THE 

PERFORMANCE OF THIS AGREEMENT, INCLUDING ANY ERRORS OR 

OMISSIONS, OR NEGLIGENT ACT OR OMISSION OF THE PEDC, ITS OFFICERS, 

AGENTS, OR EMPLOYEES. 

 

ARTICLE X 

Access to Information 

 

10.01 Access to Information. TSRA agrees to allow the PEDC, upon request, access to 

information necessary to ensure compliance with this Agreement. 

 



 

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------------------------- 

Interlocal Agreement  10 of 14 

 

ARTICLE XI 

Miscellaneous Provisions 

 

11.01 Mutual Assistance. TSRA and the PEDC shall do all things necessary or appropriate to 

carry out the terms and provisions of this Agreement and to aid and assist each other in 

carrying out those terms and provisions.  

 

11.02 Representation and Warranties. TSRA represents and warrants to the PEDC that it has 

the requisite authority to enter into this Agreement. TSRA represents and warrants to the 

PEDC that it will not violate any Federal, State, or local laws in completing the Project and 

that all proposed improvements shall conform to all applicable building codes, ordinances, 

and regulations. 

 

11.03 Section or Other Headings. Section or other headings contained in this Agreement are for 

reference purposes only and shall not affect, in any way, the meaning or interpretation of 

this Agreement.  

 

11.04 Attorney’s Fees. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, each party shall bear its 

own costs and attorney’s fees in connection with this Agreement, including any dispute 

relating thereto. 

 

11.05 Entire Agreement. This Agreement, the Exhibits attached hereto, embody the entire 

agreement between the Parties relative to the subject matter hereof, and there are no oral 

or written agreements between the Parties, nor any representations made by either Party 

relative to the subject matter hereof, which are not expressly set forth herein. 

 

11.06 Amendment. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, this Agreement shall be 

subject to changes, amendments, or modifications only in writing with the signatures and 

mutual consent of all Parties hereto. 

 

11.07 Beneficiaries.  This Agreement shall bind and benefit the respective parties and their legal 

successors and shall not be assignable, in whole or in part, by any party without first 

obtaining written consent of the other party.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed 

to establish any third-party beneficiaries.  

 

11.08 Force Majeure. In the event either Party is rendered unable, wholly or in part, by Force 

Majeure to carry out any of its obligations under this Agreement, except the obligation to 

pay amounts owed or required to be paid pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, then the 

obligations of such Party, to the extent affected by such Force Majeure and to the extent 

that due diligence is being used to resume performance at the earliest practicable time, shall 

be suspended during the continuance of any inability so caused to the extent provided but 

for no longer period. As soon as reasonably possible after the occurrence of the force 

majeure relied upon, the Party whose contractual obligations are affected thereby shall give 

notice and full particulars of such force majeure to the other Party. Such cause, as far as 

possible, shall be remedied with all reasonable diligence. The term “Force Majeure,” as 



 

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------------------------- 

Interlocal Agreement  11 of 14 

used herein, shall include without limitation of the generality thereof, acts of God, strikes, 

lockouts, or other industrial disturbances, acts of the public enemy, orders of any kind of 

the government of the United States or the State of Texas or any civil or military authority, 

insurrections, riots, epidemics, landslides, lightning, earthquakes, fires, hurricanes, 

tornadoes, storms, floods, washouts, drought, arrests, restraint of government, civil 

disturbances, explosions, breakage or accidents to machinery, pipelines or canals, partial 

or entire failure of water supply resulting in an inability to provide water necessary for 

operation of the water and wastewater systems hereunder, if any, and any other inabilities 

of any Party, whether similar to those enumerated or otherwise, which are not within the 

control or the Party claiming such inability, which such Party could not have avoided by 

the exercise of due diligence and care.  

 

11.09 Notice. Any notice provided or permitted to be given under this Agreement must be in 

writing and may be served by (i) depositing the same in the United Stated mail, addressed 

to the party to be notified, postage prepaid, registered or certified mail, return receipt 

requested; or (ii) delivering the same in person to such party; or (iii) utilizing an overnight 

or messenger delivery service that retains regular records of delivery and receipt. The initial 

addresses of the parties for the purpose of notice under this Agreement are as follows: 

 

 If to the PEDC:   Palestine Economic Development Corporation 

      Attn: Dan Bochsler, Vice President 

      100 Willow Creek Parkway, Ste. A 

      Palestine, Texas 75801 

 

 With a copy to:   Randle Law Office Ltd., L.L.P. 

      Attn: Heather N. Cook 

      820 Gessner Road 

      Suite 1570 

      Houston, Texas 77024 

 

 If to TSRA:    Texas State Railroad Authority 

      Attn: Ben Campbell, President 

C/O City of Palestine Finance Department 

504 N. Queen Street 

      Palestine, TX 75801  

 

 

11.10 Interpretation. Regardless of the actual drafter of this Agreement, this Agreement shall, 

in the event of any dispute over its meaning or application, be interpreted fairly and 

reasonably, and neither more strongly for or against any Party. 

 

11.11 Venue and Applicable Law. This Agreement and any amendment thereto shall be 

performable and enforceable in Anderson County, Texas, and shall be construed in 

accordance with the laws of the State of Texas. The sole venue for any action, controversy, 

dispute, or claim arising under this Agreement shall be exclusively in a court of appropriate 

jurisdiction in Anderson County, Texas. 



 

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------------------------- 

Interlocal Agreement  12 of 14 

 

11.12 Sovereign Immunity Acknowledged and Retained. THE PARTIES EXPRESSLY 

ACKNOWLEDGE AND AGREE THAT NO PROVISION OF THIS AGREEMENT IS 

IN ANY WAY INTENDED TO CONSTITUTE A WAIVER BY ANY PARTY OF ANY 

IMMUNITY FROM SUIT OR LIABILITY THAT A PARTY MAY HAVE BY 

OPERATION OF LAW. THE PEDC AND THE TSRA RETAIN ALL APPLICABLE 

GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITIES. 

 

11.13 Severability. In the event of any one or more words, phrases, clauses, sentences, 

paragraphs, sections, or other parts of this Agreement, or the application thereof to any 

person, firm, corporations, or circumstance, shall be held by a court of competent 

jurisdiction to be invalid or unconstitutional for any reason, then the application, invalidity, 

or unconstitutionality of such words, phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs, sections, or 

other parts of this Agreement shall be deemed to be independent of and severable from the 

remainder of this Agreement, and the application, validity, or constitutionality of the 

remaining parts of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby. 

 

11.14 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which 

shall be considered an original, but all of which shall constitute one instrument. 

 

11.15 No Joint Venture. Nothing contained in this Agreement is intended by the Parties to create 

a joint venture or any other joint partnership between the Parties. 

 

11.16 No Third-Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is entered solely by and between the 

PEDC and the TSRA and may be enforced only by and among the Parties. Except as set 

forth herein, this Agreement shall not be deemed to create any rights in, or obligations to, 

any third parties. 

 

11.16 Alternative Dispute Resolution. Pursuant to Texas Government Code § 791.015 and 

Texas Government Code Chapter 2009, in the event of a dispute over the terms and 

conditions of this Agreement or the Parties’ rights, duties, and performance under this 

Agreement, the Parties agree to submit such dispute to alternative dispute resolution 

procedures set forth in Texas Civil Practice and Remedies Code Chapter 154. 

  

11.17 No Personal Liability. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as creating any 

personal liability on the part of any employee, officer, or agent of any Party to this 

Agreement. 

 

11.18 Modification. The Agreement cannot under any circumstance by modified orally, and no 

agreement shall be effective to waive, change, modify, or discharge this Agreement in 

whole or in part unless such agreement is in writing and is signed by the Parties. 

 

 

 

 

 



 

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------------------------- 

Interlocal Agreement  13 of 14 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[Signature pages to follow] 

 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, and in acknowledgment that the Parties hereto have read and 

understood each and every provision hereof, the Parties have executed this Agreement on the dates 

subscribed below:   

 

     PEDC: 

 

PALESTINE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 

 

 

     By: ____________________________________________ 

            DAN BOCHSLER, President 

      

 

Date of Execution by the PALESTINE ECONOMIC 

DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION:  

__________________________________________ , 2024 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

By: __________________________________________ 

Kim Willmott, PEDC Vice President 

 

        

 

STATE OF TEXAS §  

 §  

ANDERSON COUNTY §  

 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the __________ day of ____________________ 

2024, by Dan Bochsler, President, Palestine Economic Development Corporation, on behalf 

of said municipal corporation. 

 

 



 

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------------------------- 

Interlocal Agreement  14 of 14 

              

       NOTARY PUBLIC, State of Texas 

 

      
      

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TSRA:  

 

TEXAS STATE RAILROAD AUTHORITY 

 

 

     By: ____________________________________________ 

             Ben Campbell, President 

 

Date of Execution by TSRA: 

__________________________________ , 2024 

 

 

      

 

STATE OF TEXAS §  

 §  

ANDERSON COUNTY §  

 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the __________ day of ____________________ 

2024, by Ben Campbell, President, Texas State Railroad Authority, on behalf of said business 

entity. 

 

 

              

       NOTARY PUBLIC, State of Texas 

 

 

 


	Agenda
	AI_5414_Review monthly Director's Report.
	       ATT_Director's Report
	       ATT_ETEX Report
	AI_5415_Review monthly Marketing Analyst Report.
	       ATT_Marketing Report
	AI_5416_Presentations regarding Downtown Grant Applications & Perf. Agreements.
	       ATT_Duncan Depot - Application
	       ATT_Duncan Depot - Perf. Agreement
	       ATT_Bloodlines - Application 1
	       ATT_Bloodlines - Perf. Agreement 1
	       ATT_Bloodlines - Application 2
	       ATT_Bloodlines - Perf. Agreement 2
	       ATT_H. Grant - Application 1
	       ATT_H. Grant - Perf. Agreement 1
	       ATT_H. Grant - Application 2
	       ATT_H. Grant - Perf. Agreement 2
	       ATT_K. Fuhr - Application 1
	       ATT_K. Fuhr - Perf. Agreement 1
	       ATT_K. Fuhr - Application 2
	       ATT_K. Fuhr - Perf. Agreement 2
	AI_5422_Consider approval of the PEDC Minutes from December 10, 2024.
	       ATT_PEDC Minutes 12.10.24
	AI_5423_Consider approval of the December 2024 Financial Report.
	       ATT_Dec. 2024 Financial Report
	PEDC Fund Detail
	Sales Tax Report
	Jul-21
	Invest
	Invest_2
	Invest_3
	Invest_4

	AI_5424_Discussion and possible action regarding the Downtown Grant Perf. Agreement with Mabrico Phil Johnson, sole proprietor d/b/a Dogwood Embroidery.
	       ATT_P. Johnson completion docs
	AI_5425_Discussion and possible action regarding the Downtown Grant Performance Agreement with Thorough Food Company, LLC.
	       ATT_Thorough Foods completion docs
	       ATT_Completion Pictures
	AI_5426_Consideration and possible action regarding an amendment of the Downtown Grant Perf. Agreement for Palestine Community Theater, Inc.
	       ATT_Palestine Theater Amendment
	AI_5427_Consideration and possible action regarding an Interlocal Agreement with the Texas State Railroad Authority.
	       ATT_TSRA Interlocal Agreement

